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In accardance with
Sectron 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4{1) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009

0S INOT

Registration of an overseas company opening a

UK establishment
/
e

A fee 1s payable with this form
Please see ‘How to pay’ on the last page

Part 1

J What this form is for
You may use this form to register a
UK establishment

What this form 1s ©
You cannot use this
the details of an exis

Conniparitio s Hoi

é WA

19/07/2011

officer or establishme A23 05/07/2011 139
COMPANIES HOUSE
LDz 23/06/2011 29
COMPANIES HOUSE

Overseas company details {(Name)

Do you propose to <arry on busmess in the UK under the corporate name as
incorperated in your home state or country, or under an alternative name?

+ To register using your corporate name, go to Section A1
+ To register using an alternative name, go to Sechion A2

- Filling (n this form
Please complete 1n typescript {10pt
or above}, or i bald black capitals

All fields are mandatory unless
specified or mdicated by *

Corporate company name

Corporate name®

@ This must be the corporate name in

|

the home state or country in which
the company is incorporated under
which you propose o camy on
business in the UK

Alternative name

The company wishes to register an alternative name under which 1t proposes to
carry on business in the UK under section 1048 of the Companies Act 2006

O Please give your corporate name
as incorporated i your home state
or country

Corporate name ®

CIRCLE HOLDINGS PLC

© A company may register an
alternative zame under which 1t

proposes to carry on business in the

Alternative name
{if applicable}®

CIRCLE HOLDINGS {UK) PLC

United Kingdom under Secteon 1048
of the Companies Act 2006

Overseas company name restrictions@

This sectron does not apply to a European Economic Area (EEA) company
registering Its corporate name

& Overseas company name
restrictions
A list of sensitive or restricted words

Please tick the box only ¥ the proposed company name contains sensitive of
restricted words or expressions that require you to seek comments of a
government department or other speafied body

(3 1 confirm that the proposed company name contains sensitive or restricted
words or expressions and that approval, where appropriate, has been
sought of a govermment department or other speafied body and | attach a
copy of their response

or expressions that require consent
can be found in guidance available
on our website

www companieshouse gov uk

BIS

Department for Business
Innovation & Skills

CHFPDDO
03/11 Version 4 1




0S INO1

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 2

Overseas company details

BT

UK establishment
registration number

Particulars previously delivered

Have particulars about this company been previously delivered 1n respect of
another UK establishment ®

2 No Goto Section B2

2 Yes Please enter the registration nrumber below and then go to Part 5
of the form Please note the original UK establishment particulars
must be filed up 1o date

DUHEEEREEE

@ The particulars are legal form,
identity of register, number
reqstration, director and secretaries
details, whether the company 1s

a credit or financial wnstituton,

law, governing law, accounting
reguirements, objects, share capital,
constitution, and accounts

Credit or financial institution

Is the company a credit or fimanaal institunon?@

L} Yes
Na

@ Please ik one box

Company details

i the company is registered n 1ts country of incorporation, please enter the
details below

Legal form @ PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY
Country of !JERSEY, CHANNEL ISLANDS
incorporation * l

|dentity of register |JFSC COMPANIES REGISTRY
inwhich it 1s

registered @

Registration number in
that register

|
[rlefofelsfel T [T

O This indudes whether the company
15 a private of public company or
whether or not the company Is
[tmited

O This wiil be the registry where the
company 1s registered in 1ts parent
country

EEA or non-EEA member state

Was the campany formed qutside the EEA?

+ Yes Complete Sections B5 and B6
+ No Goto Section Bé

Governing law and accounting requirements

Please give the law under which the company 1s incorporated

Governing law @

ICOMPANIES (JERSEY LAW) 1991

|

Is the company required ta prepare, audit and disclose accounting decuments
under parent Jaw?

+Yes Complete the details below
+No GotoPart3

@ This means the relevant rules or
legislation which regulates the
corporation of companies in that
state

CHFF000
03/11 Version 4 1




From

0S INO1

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Please give the period for which the company 1s required to prepare accounts by
parent law

or R

To

Months

Please give the peqiod allowed far the preparation and public disclosure of
accounts for the above accounting penod

[ofs

Latest disclosed accounts

Are capies of the latest disclosed accounts being sent with this form? Please
note if accounts have been disclosed, a copy must be sent with the form, and, if
applicable, with a certified translation @

Yes
Please indicate what documents have been disclosed
Please tick this box if you have enclosed a copy of the accounts

[] Please tick this box If you have enclosed a certified translation of the
accounts

[] Please tick this box if no accounts have been disclosed

@ Please tick the appropriate box({es)

CHFPOOD
03/11 Version 4 1
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Regstration of an overseas company apening a UK establishment

Part 3

Constitution

Constitution of company

The following documents must be delvered with this application
- Certified copy of the company’s constitution and, if applicable, a certified
translatron

Please tick the appropnate box(es) below
1 have enclosed a certified copy of the company's constitution @
[] 1lenclose a certified translation, if applicable ©®

@A certified copy is defined as
a copy certified as carract and
authenticated by - the secretary ora
drector of the company, permanent
representative, admimistrator,
administrative receiver, recelver
manager, receiver and Iiquidator

& A certified translation into Enghish
must be authenticated by the
secretary of a director of the
company, permanent representative,
administrator, administrative
receiver, recelver manager, recelver
and hquidator

EEA or non-EEA member state

Was the company formed outside the EEA?

2 Yes Goto Section C3
%+ No Go to Part 4 'Officers of the company’

Constitutional documents

Are all of the following details in the copy of the constitutional documents of the

company?

- Address of principal place of business or registered office in hame country
of incorporation

- Objects of the Company

- Amount of issued share capital

% Yes  Go to Part 4 'Officers of the company’
+ No  If any of the ahove details are not included in the consttutional
documents, please enter them in Section C4
The information is not required if it is contained within the constitutional
documents accompanying this registration

Information not included in the constitutional documents

Please give the address of pnincipal place of business or registered office in the
country of incorporation ©

Bullding name/number [ 12
Street |CASTLE STREET
Post town {ST HELIER
County/Region | JERSEY
ok i [ [s[R[T [
Country
Please give the objects of the company and the amount of 1ssued share capital
Obyects of the [HOLDING COMPANY
company©®

Amount of issued
share capital®

62,771,049

O This address will appear on the
public recard

OPlease give a brief desciption of the
company’s business

O Please speaify the amouat of shares
tssued and the value

CHFPOOO
03/11 Version 4 1




0S INO1

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part4

Secretary

Officers of the company

Have particulars about this company been previously delivered in respect of
another UK establishment?

+ Yes Please ensure you entered the registration number in Section B1
and then go to Part 5 of this form
4+ No Complete the officer details

For a secretary who 1s an mdividual, go to Section D1, for a corporate secretary,
go to Section E1, for a director who 1s an individual, go to Section F1, or for a
corporate director, go to Section G1

Continuatton pages

Please use a continuation page
if you need to enter more officer
details

Secretary details®

Use this section to hist all the secretanes of the company
Please complete Sections D1-D3 For a corporate secretary, complete
Sechions E1-E5 Please use a continuation page if necessary

Full forename(s)

|

Surname

Former name(s)@

9 Corporate details
Please use Sections E1-E5 to enter
corporate secretary details

Former name(s)

Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes dunng the pertod of

this return Married women do

not need to give former names
unless previously used for business
purposes.

o2

Secretary’s service address®

Building name/number l

O Service address
This 1s the address that will appear

Street r on the public record This does not
have to be your usual restdential
‘ address
Post town ' If you provide your residential
address here 1t will appear on the
County/Region r public record
Postcode ' I I
Country I
Secretary's authority
Please enter the extent of your authonty as secretary Please tick one hox @ you have indicated that the extent
of your autharity s mited, please
Extent of authonty provide a breef descniption of the
£ Limited ® irmited authority in the box below
O  Unlimuted

Dascription of lumted
authonty, If applicable

’ Are you authonised to act alone or jaintly? Please tick one box

0 Alone
O Jontly®

If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

-
-

Of you have wdicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jomntly, please enter the name(s} of
the person(s) with whom you are
authensed to act below

CHFPOOO
03/11 Version 4 1
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate secretary

m Corporate secretary details®

Use this section to list all the corporate secretanes of the company O Registered or principal address

Please complete Sections £1-E5 Please use a continuation page If necessary | Thisis the address that will appear
on the public record This address

Name of corporate | CAPITA COMPANY SECRETARIAL SERVICES must be a physical location for the
body or firm ’ delivery of documents. It cannot be

a PO hox number {unless contatned
within a full address), DX number or
LP (Legal Post n Scotland) number

Building name/number ‘THE REGISTRY

Street | 34 BECKENHAM ROAD

Post town { BECKENHAM

County/Region [ KENT

s [a[n[s] [+[T[0]_

Country 'U K

E Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

Is the corporate secretary registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?

+ Yes Complete Section £3 only
+ No Complete Section E4 anly

E EEA companies®
Please give details of the register where the company file 1s kept (ncluding the  |®EEA
relevant state) and the registration number in that register A full list of countrees of the EEA can
be found i our guidance
Where the company/ [U K www companieshouse gov uk

©This 15 the register mentioned In
Article 3 of the First Company Law
Pirective (68/151/EEC)

firm 15 registered © |

Registration number \65306796

E Non-EEA companies

Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the lawby  |@Non-EEA
which 1t 1s governed If applicable, please also give details of the register in which Where you have provided detalls of

the register {including state) where
it is entered (induding the state) and its registration number in that register the company or fim 1 registered,

you must also provide i1ts number in
that register

Legal form of the l
corporate body r
r

or firm

Governing law

If applicable, where
the company/firm 1s
registered @ ]

if apphcable, the
registration number

CHFPOOO
03/11 Version 4 1
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate secretary’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authonty as corparate secretary @1f you have indicated that the extent
Please tick one box of your authonity 15 imited, please
E P—ry provide a brief description of the
xtent of authon limited authonity in the box below
R4 O LUmited @ ' autrority in the
a
Unlimited ©1f you have ndicated that you are

not authonsed to act alone but only
jomntly, please enter the namefs) of

Description of imited

the person{s} with whom you are

authonity, if applicable authonsed to act below
.1t appl Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

Alone

O Jontly @
If applicable, name(s) [
of person(s) with
whom you are [
acting jointly

CHFPQOO

03111 version 4 1
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director

W Director details @

Use this section to Iist all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5 Please
use a cantinuation page If necessary

Full forenamefs) 'MICHAEL JAMES

Surhame foRKwooo

Former name(s)® r

Country/Siate of UK
residence @
Nationality ﬁ!RlTISH

Date of birth Fo—lﬁ’ Im_o\lzﬁ_ W[’?]’_ﬂ?

Business occupation r DIRECTOR

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-GS 1o enter
carporate director details.

@ Former name(s}
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years
Married women do not need te give
former names urless previgusly used
for business purposes

© Country/State of residence
This is in respect of your usual
restdentral address as stated in
Section F3

O Business occupation
If you have a business accupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave hlank

(if any) @ r

Director’s service address @

Building name/number 152 O Service address
Thus 15 the address that will appear

Street ]TNE LBECK STREET on the publi¢ record This does not
have to be your usual residential

r address

Post town |LONDON If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the

County/Region I public record

Postcode lwl1e] Jefefu]|

Country 'U K

CHFPOOD
03/11 Version 4 1




0S INO1

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

r

Director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authonty as director Please tick one box

Extent of authonty

O Limited @
Unlimited

Description of limited
authonty, If applicable

©1f you have ndicated that the extent
of your authonity 1s Imited, please
provide a bnef description of the
hmited authonty m the box below

@1f you have indicated that you are
not authonsed ta act alone but only
Jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the persen(s) with whom you are

l Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box authonised to act below

Alone

O Jointly @
If applicable, name(s) I
of person(s) with
whom you are ‘
acting jointly |

CHFPOOD

03/11 Version 4 1




N

In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Compames
Regulations 2009

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director

Gl

Director details ©

Please use this sectien to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5

Full forename(s) ELI

Surname ‘EARSADOUST

Former name({s)}®

Country/State of UK

residence ©

Nationality |BRITISH (FORMERLY IRANIAN)

Date of birth Fz_ﬁ ﬁfﬁ PT'TQ_,W‘?

Business occupation IDIRECTOR

(f any) @

O Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years
Married women do not need to give
former names untess previously used
for business purposes.

O Country/State of residence
This 1s in respect of your usual
residennial address as stated in
Section F3

O Business occupatron
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here if you do not,
please leave blank

Director’s service address @

Building name/number |32

Street I\TVELBECK STREET
|
Post town ’LONDON
County/Reqton
Postcode W,TI?TI—B—ITE— '—U—I_~
Country IU K

O Service address
This i5 the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have 10 be your usual residentral
address

If you provide your residentral
address here 1t will appear on the
public record

CHFPOOQ
03/11 Version 4 1




0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK estabhishment

W Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as director Please tick one hox ©1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority 1s imited, please
Extent of authonty provide a brief description of the
O Lmited @ hmited authonty in the box below
Unlimited @1f you have ndicated that you are
not authonised ta act alone but only
Descnption of imited jontly, pleace enter the name(s) of
authanty, if applicable the person(s) with whom you are
o 1 app P\fe you authonised to act alone of jointly? Please tick one box authorised to act below
Alone
O Jointly ®
If applicable, name(s)
of person{s) with
whom you are |
acting jomntly
CHFPDOD

03711 Version 4 1



in accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Compames Act 2006 &
Regulawon 4{1} of the
Overseas Companres
Requlatrons 2009

Director

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

&

Director details @

Please use this section to hist all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sectians G1-G5

Full forenamefs) [PAOLO GEORGE

Surname ’PIERI

Former name(s)®

Country/State of UK

residence ©@

Nationality (BRITISH

Date of hirth FT"’—?;_ I"’_Oyﬁ F\_"?F’f:‘\?

Business occupation

{if any) @

| DIRECTOR

f

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corperate director details

B Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes i the last 20 years
Married women do not need to give
former names unless prevtously used
for business purposes

© Country/State of residence
This 15 1n respect of your usual
restdentral address as stated In
Section F3

©Business occupation
If you have a business accupation,
please enter here i you do not,
please leave blank

Director’s service address @

Buillding name/number |§2

Street WVELBECK STREET
|
Post town EONDON
County/Region r
oo (w1 e [ [a[£[u]
Country ﬁj K

O Senvice address
This 15 the address that will appear
on the pubiic record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record

CHFPOOQ
03/11 Version 4 1




0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your autharity as director Please tick one box

Extent of authority

O ULimited @
Unlimited

Description of hmited
authorrty, If apphcabte

@ (f you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty is lirited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authorty in the box below

@ 1If you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
jontly, please enter the name(s) of
the parson(s) with whom you are

| Are you authonised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one biox authonised to act below

Alone

O Jointly @
If applicable, name(s) i
of person(s) with
whom you are '
acting jointly I

CHFPCOO

03711 Version 4 1




tn accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Compames Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Compames
Regulations 2009

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director

@

Director details @

Please use this section to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5

Full forename(s) [MASSOUD

Surname [KEYVAN-FOULADI

Former name(s)® [

Country/State of UK
residence ®
Nationality BRITISH

Date of birth "31_'?3— WI—"B— FPQ_I’%\FO—

Business occupation IDIRECTOR

@ Corporate details
Please use Sectrons G1-G5 to enter
carporate director details

O Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for bustness
purposes in the last 20 years
Marrted women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes.

© Country/State of residence
This 1s 10 respect of your usual
residential address as stated n
Section F3

0 Busmness occupation
i you have a business occupation,

o please enter here. if you do not,

i any) please leave blank

Director’s service address ©®

Bulding name/number I32 O Service address
This is the address that will appear

Street PVELBECK STREET on the public record This does not
have to be your usuat residential

l address

Post town ’LO NDON If you provide your residential
address heve twill appear on the

County/Region r public record

s fw[1fo[ [ale[o

Country UK

CHFPOOD
03/11 Version 4 1




0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director’s authority

[Please enter the extent of your authorsty as director Please tick one bax ©1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is hmited, please

Extent of authority provide a brief descriptron of the
O Umited @ limited authority 1n the box below
Unlimited ©1f you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
Description of hmited jointly, please enter the names) of
authonty, if applicable the person(s) with whom you are
.1t app Are you authonised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box avthonised to act below
Alone
O Jontly ®

If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are
acting jountly

[
I

]

CHFPGOO
03711 Version 4 1




tn accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulatian 41) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulatrons 2009

Director

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details @

Please use this section to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5

Full forenamed(s)

ILORRAINE INGRID

Surname |BALDRY

Former name(s)® |

Country/State of ‘U K

residence ©

Nationality IBRITI SH

Date of birth EE [nFl'mS_ WE—FW
Business occupation l DIRECTOR

(fany) @

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G G5 1o enter
corporate director details

@ Former name(s)
Piease provide any previous names
which have been ysed for business
purposes in the last 20 years
Marned women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes

© Country/State of residence
This is 1n respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Sectton F3

© Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please feave blank

Director's service address©

Building name/number ’32

Street WELBECK STREET
|
Post town LONDON
County/Region |
Fostcode wiife [ efelul
Country IU K

@ Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address

if you provide your residentia!
address here it will appear on the
public record

CHFPOQD
03/11 Version 4 1




0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

H Director's authority
Please enter the extent of your authonty as diector Please tick one box @If you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty 1s linited, please
Extent of authonty provide a brief description of the
O Limited @ limited authonity in the box below
Unlimited @If you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
Descrrption of limited jointly, please enter the name(s) of
authority, f applicable the person(s) with whom you are
o1l app Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box aythonsed to act below
Alone
O Jontly @
If applicable, name(s)
of persen(s) with
whom you are
acting jointly

CHFPOOO
03/11 Version4 1




In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulatigns 2009

Director

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

i

Director details @

Please use this section to list all the directors of the company Piease complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-GS

Full forename(s) WMOTHY BRIAN

Surname |BUNTING

Former name(s) @ l

Country/State of UK

residence ©

Nationality BRITISH

bweotbih P02 o8  [1[s[e 3
Business occupation WRECTOR

(fany)@

-

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-GS to enter
corporate director details

© Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes n the last 20 years
tMarrted women do not need to give
former names unless previgusly used
for business purposes

@ Country/State of residence
This 1s in respect of your usual
restdentral address as stated in
Section F3

O Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave blank

r2 I

Director’s service address ©

Building hame/number |32

Street WELBECK STREET
|
Post town LONDON
County/Region |
oot (w1 o [s[E[u]_
Country W

O 5Service address
This 15 the address that will appear
on the public record This does rot
have to be your usual residential
address

If you provide your residential
address here 1t will appear on the
public record

CHFPOOD
03711 Version 4 1




0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director's authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as director Please tick one box ©f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority 1s limited, please
Extent of authonty pravide a brief desanption of the
O Limited @ himited authonty in the box below
Unlimited @ 1f you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
Description of imited jointly, please enter the nameis) of
authonty, if apphcable the person(s} with whom you are
.1t 2pp Are you authonised to act alone or Jointly? Please tick one box authonsed to act below
Alone
O Jomtly @
i applcable, name(s) ]
of person(s) wath
whom you are I
acting jountly ‘

CHFPOOO
03/11 Version 8 1



In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Requlation 4(1) of the
Overseas Compantes
Regulatrons 2009

Director

0S INOT - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details @

Please use this section to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5

Full forename(s) |ﬁETER CHARLES EDWARD

Surname IEORNELL

Former name(s)®

Country/State of GUERNSEY

residence ©

Nationality &ITISH

Date of birth [0 F? FT[T le_g"’?’?

Business occupation

(f any) @

| DIRECTOR

O Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details

B Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years
Married women do net need to give
former names unless previousty used
for business purposes.

© Country/State of residence
This 1s In respect of your usual
restdential address as stated in
Section F3

OBusiness accupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here i you do not,
please leave biank

Director’s service address @

Bullding name/number |32

Street WELBECK STREET
|
Post town lLONDON
County/Region
s [wlifo| [s[e[v]_
Country ]U K

O Service address
This 15 the address that will appear
on the public recard This does not
have to be your usual residential
address

If you provide your restdential
address here it will appear on the
public record

CHFPQOO
03/11 Version 4 1




OS INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

m Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as director Please tick one box © | you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty 1s hmited, please
Extent of authonty provide a bnef descnption of the
O Linuted @ imited autharity in the box below
Unlimited ®1f you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
Description of hmited l jointly, please enter the name(s) of
authority, if applicable the person(s) with whom you are
.1t app | Are you authonised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box authonsed to act below
Alone
O Jomntly®
If apphcable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are |
acting jointly
CHFPOOD

03/11 Version 4 1
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Regsstration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate director

Corporate director details @

Use this section to list all the corporate directors of the company
Please complete G1-G5 Please use a continuation page if necessary

Name of corporate r

body or firm ‘

Building name/number r

Street |

|
Post town '
County/Region '

HERENEEN

Postcode

Country

O Registered or principal address
This is the address that will appear
on the pubke record This address
must be a physical location for the
dehvery of dacuments. It cannot be
a PO box number (unless contained
within a full address), DX number or
LP (tegal Post in Scotland} number

Location of the registry of the corparate body or firm

Is the corporate director registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?

+ Yes Complete Section G3 only
+ No Complete Section G4 only

EEA companies @

Please give details of the register where the company file is kept (including the
relevant state) and the registration number in that register

Where the company/ r

firm 15 regrstered © I

OEEA
A full hst of countnies of the EEA can
be found in our guidance
www companieshouse gov uk

© This is the register mentioned n
Article 3 of the First Company Law

&

Registration number r Directive (68/151/EEC)
Non-EEA companies
Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by~ |@Non-EEA

which 1t is governed 1f applicable, please also give details of the register in which
it 1s entered (Including the state) and its registration number in that register

Legal form of the

-

corporate body
or firm

-

Governing law

If apphcable, where

registered @

|
the company/firm is }
|

If applicable, the
registration number

Where you have provided detanls of
the register (including state} where
the company or firm 15 registered,
you must also provide 1ts number in
that register

CHFPOOO
03711 Version 4 1
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your autharity as corporate director ©f you have indicated that the extent
Please tick one box of your authonity 1s imited, please
provide a brief descnption of the
Extent of autharity O Lmited © Iimited authonty in the box below
@If you have indicated that you are
0O Unlimited not authanised to act alone but only

jomntly, please enter the namefs) of
Descniption of limited I the person(s) with whom you are

authonty, if applicable authonised to act below
.1 app 1 Are you authonised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

O Alone

O Jontly®
If applicable, name(s) I
of person(s) with
whom you are ]
acting jointly

CHFPO00O

0311 Version 4. 1
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Parts

UK establishment details

UK establishment
registration number

Documents previously delivered - constitution

Has the company previously regrstered a certified copy of the company's
constitution with material delivered in respect of another UK establishment?
+ No Goto Section H3

+ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to
Section H2

DEREEEEEE

2

UK establishment
registration number

Documents previously delivered — accounting documents

[ Has the company previously delivered a copy of the company’s accounting
documents with materiat delivered in respect of another UK establishment?
+ No Goto Section H3

+ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to
Section H3

s TTTTTT

|7Sect|0ns H3 and H4 must be completed In all cases

Delivery of accounts and reports

Please state if the company intends to comply with accounting requirements
with respect to this establishment or in respect of another UK establishment @

In respect of this establishment Please go to Section H4

O Inrespect of another UK establishment Please give the registration number
below, then go to Section H4

UK establishment
registration number

2iERRRENE

© Please tick the appropnate box

CHFPOOO
03/11 Version 4 1
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

W Particulars of UK establishment ®

Please enter the name and address of the UK establishment @ Address

This 1s the address that will appear

Name of establishment] CIRCLE HOLDINGS (UK) PLC on the public record
Bullding name/number [32
Street \WELBECK STREET
Post town |LONDON
County/Region l
Postcode WFETFEWT
Country IU K

Please give the date the establishment was opened and the businass of the

establishment
Date establishment |2 [%3 o |5 2 1'0 (M1 "1
Date s 25 o5 [2fofit
Business carnied on at | HEAD OFFICE ACTIVITIES
the UK establishment

CHFPOOD

03/11 Version 4 1
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 6 Permanent representative

Please enter the name and address of every person authonised to represent the
company as a permanent representative of the company in respect of the UK
astablishment

s

Permanent representative’s details

Please use thus section to hst all the permanent representatives of the company
Please complete Sections J1-14

Full farename(s) ‘CAPITA COMPANY SECRETARIAL SERVICES

Surname

Continuation pages
Please use a continuation page if you
need to enter more details.

! Permanent representative’s service address @

Building name/number |THE REGISTRY

Street |34 BECKENHAM ROAD
|
Post town ‘BECKENHAM
County/Region I KENT
i [ [R[3[ [#[T[0]_
Country IU K

O 5ervice address
This 15 the address that will appear
on the pubhe record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address.

1f you provide your residential
address here 1t will appear on the
public record

H

Permanent representative’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as permanent representative
Please tick one box

Extent of authonity O Limited ®

Unliruted

Description of hmited

& f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority 1s imited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authority in the box below

©/f you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
Jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s} with whom you are

authonity, if applicab! authansed to act below
onty. i applicable Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick ane box

Alone

O Jontly ®
If apphcable, name(s)
of person(s} with
whom you are |
acting jointly

CHFPQOO

03/11 Version 4 1
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 7

Person authorised to accept service

Does the company have any persons) in the UK authonsed to accept service of
documents on behalf of the company 1n respact of ts UK establishment?

% Yes Please enter the name and service address of every person(s)
authonised below
2 No Tick the box below then go to Part 8 ‘Signature’

[ ] If there s no such person, please tick this box

Details of person authorised to accept service of documents
in the UK

Please use this sectron to list all the persons’ authonsed to accept service below
Please complete Sections K1-K2.

Full forename(s)

CAPITA COMPANY SECRETARIAL SERVICES

Surname

Continuation pages
Please use a continuatton page if you
need to enter mose detalls

2]

Service address of person authorised to accept service ®

Building name/number [THE REGISTRY

O 5ervice address

This 1s the address that will appear
Street ‘al BECKENHAM ROAD an the public recard This does not
have to be your usual residentsal

r address Please note, 2 DX address
Postiown lEE CKENHAM would not be acceptable
County/Region IKENT
Postcode FEHT[TF]TF'
Country IU K

CHFPOOO

03/11 Version 41
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 8 Signature

This must be completed by all companies

I am signing this form on behalf of the company

Signature Signature
This form may be signed by
Girerctor, Secretary, PermrementTepresemntative

CHFPOOO
03111 Version 4 1
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

B Presenter information

mmportant information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if
you do 1t will help Companies House if there 15 3 query
on the form The contact information you give will be
visible to searchers of the public record

| Comecta \/ICTORIA DALBY

Cepamnze S APITA COMPANY SECRETARIAL
SERVICES

THE REGISTRY

34 BECKENHAM ROAD

|Addxess

BECKENHAM
I CountyfReq-on KENT

I Post tgwn

== [o[m[3] [+[T[u]_
Country
| _ UK
l Tetephone
020 7954 9527

mecklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing

Please make sure you have remembered the

following

O The overseas corporate name on the form matches
the constitutional documents exactly

O You have included a copy of the appropriate
correspondence in regard to sensitive words, if
appropnate

O You have included certified copies and certified
translations of the constitutional documents, if
appropnate

O You have included a copy of the latest disclosed
accounts and certified translations, if appropriate

[0 You have completed all of the company details in
Section B3 if the company has not registered an
existing establishment

I You have complete details for all company
secretanies and directors in Part 4 1f the company
has not registered an existing establishment

{1 Any addresses given must be a physical location
They cannot be a PO Box number (unless part
of a full service address), DX or LP {Legal Post in
Scotland) number

O You have completed details for all permanent
representatives in Part 6 and persons authonsed to
accept service m Part 7

O You have signed the form

O You have enclosed the correct fee

Please note that all information on this form
will appear on the publc record, apart from
imformation relating to usual residential
addresses

E How to pay

A fee of £20 is payable to Companies House In
respect of a registration of an overseas company
Make cheques or postal orders payable to

‘Companies House*

@ Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House
address, however for expediency we advise you to
return 1t to the appropriate address below

England and Wales:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ

DX 33050 Cardiff

Scotland

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

13% Fountanbndge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post)

Northern Ireland

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG

DX 481 NR Belfast 1

Higher protection

If you are applying for, or have been granted, higher
protection, please post this whole form to the
different postal address below

The Regustrar of Companies, PO Box 4082,

Cardiff, CF14 3WE

Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www companieshouse gov uk
or email enquines@compameshouse gov uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

This form has been provided free of charge by Companies House

CHFPOOO
03/11 Version 4 1




Jersey Financial
Services Commission
Companies Registry

COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW 1991
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

CHANGE OF NAME OF A LIMITED COMPANY

Registered Number 100016

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT
HEALTH INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

a private company incorporated under the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991,
as amended, having changed its name by special resolution, has today
been enfered on the Register of Companies incorporated in Jersey as a
private company having the name of

CIRCLE HOLDINGS PLC
Dated this 13th day of May 2011

am—

or and on behalf of the Registrar




Jersey Financial
Services Commission
Companies Registry

COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW 1991

CERTIFICATE OF
INCORPORATION OFA
LIMITED COMPANY

Registered Number 100016

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT
HEALTH INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

is this day incorporated as a private company
under the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991

Dated this 19th day of February 2008

Orelotoo 7=
o

For and on behalf of the Re,




CIRCLE HOLDINGS PLC

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Adopted by special resolution dated 1 June 2011

CERTIFIED A TRUE COPY
OF THE ORIGINAL

Company Secretary / Dicector
For and bind). o rpiker

Coraconu. S eloniod Seruceg

BLAW-20454285
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THE COMPANIES (JERSEY) LAW, 1991

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF
CIRCLE HOLDINGS PLC .
AXTWAVKZ®
A23 05/07/2011

Definitions and Interpretation

In these Articles, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall

have the following meanings:

“Accounting Date” means, in relation to the Company, [31 December] in each year or

such other date as the Directors may from time to time determine;

“Accounting Period” means the period commencing on the day immediately following
an Accounting Date and ending on and including the next succeeding Accounting Date
save that the first Accounting Period of the Company shall commence on the

incorporation of the Company and end on and include the Accounting Date in 2011,

“Administrater” means a person appointed by the Company for the time being and

acting as admimstrator in relation to the Company,
“AIM” means the AIM Market, a market operated by London Stock Exchange Ple,

“AIM Rules for Companies™ means the rules for AIM compames pubhshed from time
to time by the London Stock Exchange plc governing admission to and the operation of
AIM;

“Alternate Director” means any altemate director of the Company appointed in

accordance with these Articles;

“Articles” means these articles of association as amended. modified or replaced from

fime ©0 time,

COMPANIES HOUSE
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“Associate” means, 11 relation to a company, any company which 1s a subsidiary or a
holding body of that company or a subsidiary of any such holding company and any
individual, partnership or other unincorporated association or firm which has direct or
indirect control of that company and any company which 1s directly or indirectly
controlled by any such individual, partnership or other unincorporated association or
firm, and n relation to an individual, partnership or other unincorporated association,
means any company directly or indirectly controlled by that individual, partnership or

other unincorporated association,
“Auditors” means the auditor or auditors for the ime being of the Company;
“Board” means the board of Directors from time to time,

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday. Sunday or public holiday on which

commercial banks are normally open for full banking business in Jersey;

“Company” means the company incorporated under the Law in respect of which these

Articles have been registered,

“CREST” means the facilities and procedures for the time being of the relevant system of

which CRESTCo has been approved as operator pursuant to the CREST Regulations;
“CRESTCo” means Euroclear UK and Ireland Limuted,

“CREST Jersey Regulations” means the Companies (Uncertificated Securities) (fersey)
Order 1999,

“CREST Jersey Requirements™ means such rules and requirements of CRESTCo as
may be applicable to Jersey issuers as from time to time specified in the CREST Manual;

“CREST Manual” means the document entitled “CREST Reference Manuai” issued by
CRESTCo;

“CREST Regulations™ means the Uncertificated Securtties Regulations 2001 (812001
No 9755);

“Directors” means the directors of the Company appointed in accordance with these



Articles or as the case may be, the Directors assembled as a Board or as a commuttee of
the Board;

“Electronic Communication” has the meaning given in the Electronic Communzcations

(Jersey) Law 2000,

“Equity Securities” means Shares, or rights to subscnbe for, or to convert securities

into, Shares;

“Interim Accounting Date” means [30 June] 1n each year or such other date as the

Directors may from time to time determine,

“Interim Accounting Period” means the period commencing on the day immediately
following an Interim Accounting Date and ending on and including the next succeeding
Interrm Accounting Date save that the first Interim Accounting Penod of the Company
shall commernce on the incorporation of the Company and end on and include the Intertm

Accounting Date in 2011,

“Law” means the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, including any statutory modificationor ~ *

re-enactment thereof for the ime being in force,

“Member” means a person who 1s registered as the holder of a Share or Shares 1n the

Register,

“Memorandum” means the memorandum of association of the Company as amended

from time to tume;

“Month” means a calendar month;

“Notice™ means a notice in writing unless otherwise specifically stated,
“Office” means the registered office of the Company,

“Ordinary Resolution” means a resolution of the Company 1n a general meeting or of
the holders of any class of Shares in a class meeting in each case passed by a simple

mayority of the votes cast at that meeting;

“Paid Up” shall include credited as paid up;
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“Register” means the register of Members of the Company to be kept pursuant to the

provisions of the Law,
“Seal” means the common seal or official seal of the Company;

“Secretary” means the secretary of the Company or any other person appointed to
perform the duties of the secretary of the Company including a joint, assistant or deputy

secretary;

“Settlement” means, 1n relation to any transaction, the payment of the momes due in

respect of such transaction;

“Share” or “Shares” means the ordinary shares 1n the capital of the Company destgnated
as such and having the nghts and being subject to the restrictions specified in these

Articles or any or all of them as the case may be,

“Share Scheme” means a share scheme for employees, directors and/or consultants of

the Company, any of its subsidiaries and/or 1ts holding body or bodies,

‘Special Resolution” means a resolution of the Company in a general meeting or of the
holders of any class of Shares in a class meeting in each case passed by a majonty of not
less than 75% of Members who (being entitled to do so) vote in person or by proxy at

that meeting,

“Takeover Code” means the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers;
“Takeover Panel” means the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers, and
“United Kingdom™ means Great Britain and Northern Ireland.

In these Articles

(@ a reference to any statute or statutory provision shall, unless the context otherwise
requires, be construed as a reference to such statute or statutory provision as the
same may have been or may from tume to time be amended, modified, extended,
consolidated, re-enacted or replaced and shall include any subordinated

legislation made thereunder;
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words or expressions defined in the Law shall have the same meaning where used
in these Articles but excluding any statutory modification thereof not in force

when these Articles became binding on the Company,

references to a “subsidiary” or “hoiding body” shall be construed in accordance

with Articles 2 and 2A of the Law;
words denoting the singular include the plural and vice versa;
words denoting a gender include every gender;

where a word or phrase is given a particular meaning, other grammatical forms of

that word or phrase have corresponding meanings;

references to persons shall include firms, corporations, partnerships, associations

and other bodies of persons, whether corporate or not;

the word “may” shall be construed as permissive and the word “shall” shall be

construed as imperative;

the word “signed” shall include a signature or a representation of a signature

affixed by mechanical means,

the words “in writing” shall mean written, telexed, facsimiled, or otherwise
electromcally fransmitted in a readable form, printed, photographed or
lithographed or represented by any other substitute for writing or partly one or
partly another; and

a reference to an Article, unless the context otherwise requires, is a reference to

an article of these Articles,

The headings in these Articles are intended for convenience only and shall not affect the

interpretation of these Articles

The standard table prescribed pursuant to the Law shall not apply to the Company and is

hereby expressly excluded in 1ts entirety.
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Preliminary Expenses

The preliminary expenses incurred in forming the Company and in connection with its
initial offer of Shares to the public shall be amortised over such period and/or in such

manner as the Directors may determune.
Situation of Office of Company and Register

The Office shall be at such address in the Island of Jersey as the Directors shall from time

to time deternune.

The Directors shall keep the Register, or cause 1t to be kept, at the Office or at such other
place in Jersey where 1t 1s made up (but not, for the avoidance of doubt, at a place outside
Jersey) as the Directors may from time to time determine In each year, the Directors
shall prepare or cause to be prepared and filed an annual return containing the particulars
required by the Law. No counterpart or branch of the Register shall be maintamned outside
Jersey and no copy of the Register, or any list, record or information 1n respect of the
Members kept or marntained outside Jersey shall constitute the Register or any part of the
Register and the Company shall not be bound to recognise any interest or nght in respect
of any Share by virtue of it being contained or recorded in such copy of the Register or

that list, record or information (as the case may be).
Share Capital

Whenever, as a result of a consohidation, division or sub-division of shares, any Members
would become entitled to fractions of a Share, the Directors may, on behalf of those
Members. sell the Shares representing the fractions for the best price reasonably
obtainable to any person (including the Company) and distnbute the net proceeds of sale
in due proportion among those Members (except that any amount otherwise due to a
Member, being less than [£3] or such other sum as the Board may from time to time
determine, may be retained for the benefit of the Company) The Directors may authorise
any person to execute an instrument of transfer of the Shares or, in the case of Shares for
the time being in uncertificated form, to take such other steps in the name of the holder as
may be necessary to transfer such Shares The transferee shall not be bound to see to the

application of the purchase money nor shall his title to the Shares be affected by any



43

44

4.6

51

52

rregularity 1n or invalidity of the proceedings in reference to the sale.

The Directors may in their absolute discretion refuse to accept any apphication for Shares

or may accept any application in whole or in part

The Company may, from time to time and subject to the provisions of the Law and to any
spectal nghts for the time being attached to any existing Shares, issue redeemable shares
or convert existing non-redeemable shares, whether issued or not, into shares which are to
be redeemed or are liable to be redeemed at the option of the Company or the holder
thereof

Subject always to the Law, the Company shall be entitled to pay any brokerage or

commussion on the issue of its Shares.

Subject to the provisions of these Articles and without prejudice to any special rights for
the time being conferred on the holders of Shares (which special nghts shall not be varied
or abrogated except with such consent or sanction as provided by Article 8 1), any Share
may be 1ssued with or have attached thereto such preferred, deferred or other special
rights, or such restrictions whether m regard to dividend, return of capital, voting or

otherwise as the Directors may determine.

Save as required by law, no person shall be recognised by the Company as holding any
Share upon any trust, and (save as otherwise provided by these Arficles or by law) the
Company shall not be bound by or recognise (even when having notice thereof) any
equitable, contingent, future or partial interest in any Share, save an absolute right of the

registered holder to the entirety thereof
Issue of Shares

Subject to the provisions of these Articles, the allotment and 1ssue of Shares shall be
made wn such manner, at such times and on such terms and conditions as the Directors

may determne The restrictions referred to above are as follows

On its receipt by the Company, the subscription price of a Share shall be credited to the
nominal capital account and share premium capital account of the Company as

appropriate.

e rem—
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(a) The Directors shall have power to 1mpose such restrictions as they may in their
absolute discretion consider necessary for the purpose of ensuring that no Shares
are acquired or held by any person wt breach of the law or requirements of any

country or governmental authority

(b)  Writhout prejudice to the provisions of paragraph (a) of this Article, the Directors
are permitted to discontinue temporarily, cease altogether or hmit the 1ssue of
Shares at any time to persons by reason of their residence, domucile or

estabhishment 1n certain countries or temtores

(c) The Company may not knowingly take any action that would permit or result in
an offering of Shares in any country or any jurisdiction, except in conformity with

the laws and regulations relating to the offering of securities in that jurisdichion

Subject as indicated in this Article, and unless the Company shall by Special Resolution
otherwise direct, after the Admission Date. umssued shares i the capital of the Company

shall only be allotted for cash in accordance with the provisions of this Article,

(@ all shares to be allotted (the “offer shares”) shall first be offered to the Members

(the “relevant members”),

(b)  the offer to relevant members set out in sub-paragraph (a) above (the “offer”)
shall be made in proportion to the existing holdings of Shares of relevant
members (but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors
may deem necessary or expedient n relation to fractional entitlements or legal ot
practical problems under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised

regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any country or junsdiction);

(c) the offer shall be made by written notice (the “offer notice”) from the Directors
specifying the number and price of the offer shares and shall invite each relevant
member to state in winting within a penod, not being less than fourteen days,
whether they are willing to accept any offer shares and, 1f so, the maximum

number of offer shares they are willing to take;

(d)  at the expwation of the time specified for acceptance in the offer notice the

Directors shall allocate the offer shares to or amongst the relevant members who

10
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shall have notified to the Directors thewr willingness to take any of the offer shares
but so that no relevant member shall be obliged to take more than the maximum

number of shares notified by him under sub-paragraph (c) above,

(e) if any offer shares remain unallocated after the offer, the Directors shall be
entitled to allot, grant options over or otherwise dispose of those shares to such
persons on such terms and i such manner as they think fit save that those shares
shall not be disposed of on terms which are more favourable to their subscribers

than the terms on which they were offered to the relevant members; and

H this Article shall not apply to Shares which are issued as bonus shares or n

connection with an employee share scheme.,
Untraced Members

Subject to the Law, and wtthout affecting the ability of the Company to wind up in
accordance with the Law, the Company shall be entitled to sell at the best prnice
reasonably obtainable the Shares of a Member or the Shares to which a person 1s entitled

by virtue of transmission on death or bankruptcy 1f and provided that

(a)  dunng the pertod of 12 years prior to the date of the publication of the
advertisements referred to in Article 6 1(b) below (or, if published on different
dates, the earlier thereof) at least three dividends in respect of the Shares in
question have become payable and all warrants and cheques in respect of the
Shares in question sent in the manner authorised by these Articles have remamed

uncashed, and

(b)  the Company on expiry of the said period of 12 years shall have inserted
advertisements in one national newspaper in the United Kingdom and 1n a
newspaper circulating 1n the area of the registered address of such Member or
other person who may be affected in accordance with these Articles, as appeanng

mn the Register, giving notice of its intention to sell the said Shares; and

{c)  durmng the said period of 12 years and the period of three months following the
publication of the said advertisements the Company shall not have received

indication, either of the whereabouts or of the existence of such Member or

1§



62

63

L O

person; and

(d)  notice has been given to the London Stock Exchange Plc and to any other relevant

listing authority or investment exchange of its intention to make such sale.

To give effect to any such sale, the Company may appoint any person to execute as
transferor an instrument of transfer of the said Shares and such instrument of transfer
’shall be as effective as if it had been executed by the registered holder of or person
entitled by transmussion to such Shares and the title of the transferee shall not be affected
by any urregulanty or invalidity in the proceedings relating thereto The net proceeds of
sale shall belong to the Company, which shall be obliged to account to the former
Member or other person previously entitled as aforesard for an amount equal to such
proceeds and shall enter the name of such former Member or other person in the books of
the Company as a creditor for such amount. No trust shall be created 1n respect of the
debt, no interest shall be payable in respect of the same and the Company shall not be
required to account for any money earned on the net proceeds, which may be employed in
the business of the Company or invested in such investments {other than Shares or shares
of the Company’s holding company, if any) as the Directors may from time to time think
fit.

Subject to the Law, 1if there shall be untraced Members for the purposes of Article 6 1 on
the date of the commencement of the winding up of the Company, the Company shall
give notice by advertissment m one national newspaper circulating mn the United
Kingdom of its intention to sell the Shares of the untraced Member and :f within 3
months of the giving of such notice the Company shall not have received indication,
either of the whereabouts or of the existence of such untraced Member, the Company

shall be entitled to sell the Shares of the untraced Member 1n accordance with Article 6 2,

Disclosure of substantial interests in Shares

Notification of voting rights

7.1

If at any time the Company shall have any of its Shares admitted to trading on AIM, the
provisions of Chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules (as amended from time
to time) of the UK Financial Services Authority Handbook (“DTR 5) relating to the

disclosure of voting rights shall apply to the Company. its Shares and persons mterested

12
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in those Shares as 1f the Company were an “issuer” for the purposes of DTR 3 and as 1f
the provisions of DTR 5 were set out in full herein and accordingly the vote holder and
issuer notification rules set out in DTR 5 shall apply to the Company and each holder of

Shares 1n the Company,

A Member shall, to the extent he is lawfully able to do so, comply with the requirements
of DTR §

if 1t shall come to the notice of the Directors that any Member has not, within the
requistie period, made or, as the case may be, procured the making of any notification
required by Article 71 and 7 2, the Company may (at the absolute discretion of the
Durectors) at any time thereafter by notice (for the purposes of Articles 71 to 7 13
mclusive, a “restriction notice”) to such Member direct that, in respect of the Shares i
relation to which the default has occurred (for the purposes of Articles 71 to 7.13
inclusive, the “default shares™ which expression shall include any further Shares which
are 1ssued wn respect of any default shares), the Member shall not be entitled to be present
or to vote on any question, either 1n person or by proxy, at any general meeting of the
Company or separate general meeting of the holders of any class of Shares, or to be

reckoned 1n a quorum.

Where the default shares represent at least 0 25 per cent of the 1ssued Shares of the same

class as the default shares, then the restriction notice may also direct that.

(a) any dividend or any part thereof ar other monies which would otherwise be
payable on or in respect of the default shares shall be withheld by the Company,
shall not bear interest against the Company, and shall be payable (when the
restriction notice ceases to have effect) to the person who would but for the

restriction notice have been entitled to them, and/or

(b)  where an offer of the nght to elect to receive Shares instead of cash in respect of
any dividend or part thereof is or has been made by the Company, any election
made thereunder by such Member n respect of such default shares shall not be

effective, and/or

(c}  no transfer of any of the Shares held by such Member shall be recognised or

13



registered by the Directors unless;
) the transfer 1s a permutted transfer; or

(i)  the Member is not himself in default as regards supplying the requisite
information required under Article 7 1 and 7 2 and, when presented for
registration, the transfer 15 accompanied by a certificate by the Member in
a form satisfactory to the Directors to the effect that after due and careful
enquiry the Member is satisfied that none of the Shares the subject of the

transfer are default shares

Upon the giving of a restriction notice its terms shall apply accordingly.

75  The Company shall send a copy of the restriction notice to each other person appearing to

be interested 1n the Shares the subject of such notice, but the failure or omission by the

Company to do so shall not invalidate such notice.

76  Any restriction notice shall have effect in accordance with its terms until not more than

seven days after the Directors are satisfied that the default in respect of which the

restrichion notice was 1ssued no longer continues but shall cease 1o have effect m relation

to any Shares which are validly transferred by such Member pursuant to Article 7 4(c).

The Company may (at the absolute discretion of the Directors} at any time give notice to

the Member cancelling, or suspending for a stated penod the operation of, a restriction

notice in whole or in part

77  Notwithstanding the time limuts for disclosure set outin DTR 3, the Company 1s required

by Rule 17 of the AIM Rules for Compames to announce via a Regulatory Information

Service, all the (nformation contained 1n any vote holder notification “without delay™

Power of the Company to investigate interests in Shares

78  For the purposes of Articles 7.8 to 7 19 mclusive.

(a)

“Relevant Share Capital” means the Company’s 1ssued share capital of any

class carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company; and for the avoirdance of doubt (a) where the Company’s share capital

1s divided 1nto different classes of Shares, references to Relevant Share Capital
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are to the issued share capital of each such class taken separately and (b) any
adjustment or restriction of voting rights (whether temporary or otherwise) in
respect of Shares comprised 1n 1ssued share capital of the Company of any such
class does not affect the application of Article 7.8 to 7 19 inciustve m relation to

interests in those or any other Shares compnsed in that class;

“interest” means, in relation to the Relevant Share Capital, any interest of any
kind whatsoever in any Shares comprised theren (disregarding any restraints or
restrictions to which the exercise of any right attached to the interest 1n the Share
is, or may be, subject) and without Lmiting the meaning of “interest” a person

shall be taken to have an interest in a Share if:

(1) he enters 1nto a contract for i1ts purchase by him (whether for cash or other

consideration), or

(1)  not being the registered holder, he is entitled to exercise any right
conferred by the holding of the Share or is entitled to contro! the exercise
or non-exercise of any such right (and for these purposes a person 1s
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of a right conferred by the
holding of Shares if he has a right (whether subject to conditions or not)
the exercise of which would make him so entitled, or 15 under an
obligation (whether subject to conditions or not) the fulfilment of which

would make him so entitled); or

{m)  heis abeneficiary of a trust where the property held on trust includes an

mierest in the Share; or
{(1iv)  hehas aright to call for delivery of the Share to himself or to his order; or

4%) he has a nght to acquire an interest tn the Share or 1s under an obligation

to take an wnterest in the Share, or
{(vi)  he has a night to subscribe for the Share,

whether in any case the contract, right or obligation is absolute or conditional,

legally enforceable or not and evidenced in writing or not, and 1t shall be

15



(c)

)

(e)

immaternal that a Share in which a person has an interest is umdentifiable.

Persons having a joint interest are treated as each having that interest;

a person is taken to be interested m any Shares in which his spouse or civil
partner or any infant child or step-child of his is interested, and “infant’ means a

person under the age of 18 years;

a person 1s taken to be interested in Shares if a body corporate 1s interested in

them and

(i) that body or its directors are accustomed to act tn accordance with his

directions or Instructions; or

(n)  he is enntled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of

the voting power at general meetings of that body,

and for the purposes of this paragraph (d) a person 1s treated as entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of voting power 1f (A} another body corporate 13
entitied to exercise or control the exercise of that voting power, and he is entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-thurd or more of the voting power at
general meetings of that body corporate; or (B) he has a right (whether or not
subject to conditions) the exercise of which would make him so entitled, or he 15
under 2n obhgation {whether or not subject to conditions) the fulfilment of which

would make him so entitled; and

an interest i Shares may arise from an agreement between two or more persons
that mcludes provision for the acqusition by any ane or more of them of interests

in Shares. Articles 7.8 to 7 19 apply to such an interest if:

() the agreement includes provision imposing obligations or restrictions on
any one or more of the parties to it with respect to their use, retention or
chsposal of their interests in the Shares acquired in pursuance of the
agreement (whether or not together with any other interests of thetrs in the

Shares to which the agreement relates), and

16
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(u)  an interest in the Company’s shares 1s 1 fact acquired by any of the

parties m pursuance of the agreement,

and the reference above to the “use of” interests 1n Shares 1s to the exercise of any
rights or of any control or influence ansing from those interests (including the
right to enter into an agreement for the exercise, or for control of the exercise, of
any of those rights by another person) Once an interest in Shares has been
acquired i pursuance of the agreement, Articles 7 8 to 7 19 continue to apply to
the agreement so long as the agreement continues to wnclude provisions of any
description mentioned above This apphes irrespective of whether or not any
further acquusitions of interests wn the Shares take place in pursuance of the
agreement, any change in the persons who are for the trume being parties to 1t or
any vanation of the agreement. References 1n this paragraph (e} to the agreement
include any agreement having effect {whether directly or indirectly} n
substitution for the original agreement, and “agreement” mcludes any agreement
or arrangement and references to provisions of an agreement include
undertakings, expectations or understandings operative under an arrangement,
and any provision whether express or implied and whether absolute or not Ths
paragraph (e) does not apply to an agreement that is not legally binding unless it
involves mutuality n the undertakings, expectations or understandings of the
parties to it, or to an agreement to underwrite or sub-underwrite an offer of
Shares, provided the agreement is confined to that purpose and any matters

incidental to 1t

Each party to an agreement to which Article 7.8(e) applies is treated as interested 1n all
Shares 1n which any other party to the agreement 15 interested apart from the agreement
{whether or not the interest of the other party was acquired, or includes any interest that
was acquired, i pursuance of the agreement) For those purposes an tnterest of a party to
such an agreement in Shares is an interest apart from the agreement 1f he is interested in
those Shares otherwise than by virtue of the apphcation of Article 7 8(e) (and this Article
7.9) in relation to the agreement Accordingly, any such interest of the person (apart from
the agreement) includes for those purposes any interest treated as hus under Article 7 8 (¢)
or {d) (family or corporate mterests) or by the application of section Article 7.8 (e} (and

this Article 7.9) in relation to any other agreement with respect to Shares to which he 15 a

17
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party A notification with respect to his interest in Shares made to the Company under
Article 7.11 by a person who 1s for the time being a party to an agreement to which

section Article 7 8 (e) applies must.
(a)  state that the person making the notification is a party to such an agreement;

(b)  include the names and (so far as known to him) the addresses of the other parties

to the agreement, identifying them as such, and

{c)  state whether or not any of the Shares to which the notification relates are Shares
in which he 1s interested by virtue of Article 7.8 (¢) (and this Article 7 9) and, iof

50, the number of those Shares.

The provisions of Article 7 § to 7.19 inclusive are in addition to , and separate from, any
other rights or obligations ansing at law or otherwise The Company may by notice 1n
writing request any person whom the Company knows or has reasonable cause to beheve
to be interested or, at any time during the three years immediately preceding the date on
which the notice is 1ssued, to have been interested, in Shares comprised in the Relevant

Share Capital.

(a)  to confirm that fact or (as the case may be) to state whether or not it 1s the case;

and

(b)  if he holds, or has during that time held, any such interest, to give such further

information as may be requested in accordance with this Article 7
A notice under Article 7 10 may require the person to whom it is addressed.

(a) to give particulars of his own past or present interest in Shares comprised 1 the
Relevant Share Capital (held by him at any time during the three year pertod
mentioned n Article 7 10),

(b)  where the interest 1s a present interest and any other interest m the Shares subsists
or, in any case, where another interest in the Shares subsisted during that 3-year
period at any time when his own interest subsisted, to give (so far as hes within
tus knowledge) such particulars wath respect to that other interest as may be

requested by the notice including (without hirmitation):

13
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(i) the 1dentity of persons interested in the Shares in question, and

(i)  whether persons mterested in the same Shares are or were parties to an
agreement or arrangement relating to erther the acquisition by one or more
of them of interests tn Shares or the exercise of any rights conferred by

the holding of the Shares; and

(¢)  where lus interest 15 a past interest. to give (so far as lies withun his knowledge)
particulars of the identity of the person who held that interest immediately upon

his ceasing to hold 1t.

A notice under Article 7 10 shall request any information given in response to the notice
to be given in writing within such time as may be specified 1n the notice, being a period

of not less than 14 days following service thereof.

The provisions of Articles 7 8 to 7.19 imclusive apply in relation te a person who has or
previously had, or is or was entitled to acquire, a nght to subscribe for Shares which
would on 1ssue be comprised in Relevant Share Capital as 1t applies 1n relation to a
person who 1s or was interested in Shares so comprised, and references above 1n this
section to an interest in Shares so comprised and to Shares so compnised are to be read
accordingly n any such case as including respectively any such right and Shares which

would on issue be so comprised.

Fuailure to comply with notification requirements or a request notice

714

Subject to the provisions of Articles 7 18 and 7 19, if any Member, or any other person
appearing to the Dhrectors to be interested in any Shares held by such Member, has been
served with a request notice under Article 7 9 and does not withm the 14 day perniod
prescribed therein supply to the Company the information thereby requested, in each case
the Company may (at the absolute discretion of the Directors) at any time thereafter by
notice (for the purposes of Articles 7.14 to 7 17 inclusive, a “restriction notice™) to such
Member direct that, 1n respect of the Shares in relation to which the default has occurred
(for the purposes of Articles 7.14 to 7.17 inclusive, the “default shares” which
expression shall include any further Shares which are 1ssued n respect of any default
shares), the Member shall not be entitled to be present or to vote on any question, either

1n person or by proxy, at any general meeting of the Company or separate general meeting
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of the holders of any class of Shares, or to be reckoned 1n a quorum.

Where the default shares represent at least §) 25 per cent of the 1ssued Shares of the same

class as the default shares, then the restriction notice may also direct that:

(a)

()

(c)

any dividend or any part thereof or other momes which would otherwise be
payable on or 1n respect of the default shares shall be withheld by the Company,
shall not bear interest against the Company, and shall be payable (when the
restriction notice ceases to have effect) to the person who would but for the

restrichion notice have been entitled to them, and/or

where an offer of the nght to elect to recerve Shares instead of cash in respect of
any dividend or part thereof 1s or has been made by the Company, any election
made thereunder by such Member in respect of such defanlt shares shall not be

effective; and/or

no transfer of any of the Shares held by such Member shall be recognised or

registered by the Directors unless:
Q) the transfer is a permitted transfer; or

(i)  the Member 1s not himself in default as regards supplying the requisite
information required under Article 7 1, 7.2 or 7.8 to 7 19 inclusive and,
when presented for registration, the transfer is accompanied by a
certificate by the Member in a form satisfactory to the Directors to the
effect that after due and careful enquiry the Member 1s satisfied that none

of the Shares the subject of the transfer are default shares.

Upon the giving of a restriction notice its tetms shall apply accardingly.

The Company shall send a copy of the restriction notice to each other person appearing to

be interested 1n the Shares the subject of such notice, but the failure or omission by the

Company to do so shall not invalidate such notice,

Any restriction notice shall have effect in accordance with 1fs terms unti] not more than

seven days after the Directors are satisfied that the default in respect of which the

restriction notice was issued no longer continues but shall cease to have effect in relation
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1o any Shares which are transferred by such Member 1n accordance with Article 7 15(c)
above on receipt by the Company of notice that a transfer as aforesaid has been made
The Company may (at the absolute discretion of the Directors) at any time give notice to
the Member cancelling, or suspending for a stated period the operation of, a restriction

notice in whole or i part.

For the purposes of Articles 7 8 to 7 19 inclusive a person shall be treated as appearing to

be interested in any Shares if*

(a) the Member holding such Shares has given to the Company a notification whether
following service of a notice under Article 7 8 to 7 18 inclusive or otherwise

which names such person as being so interested, or

(b)  after taking mto account any such notification as 1s referred to in paragraph (a)
above or any other relevant mformaton 1n the possession of the Company the
Drrectors know or have reasonable cause to believe that the person in question 1s

or may be interested 1n the Shares

For the purposes of Articles 7 1, 72 or 7 8 to 7 18 inclusive, a transfer of Shares 15 a

“permitted transfer” if but only if.

(a)  1tisatransfer by way of, or 1n pursuance of|, acceptance of a takeover offer for the
Company meaning an offer to acquire all the Shares, or all the Shares of any class
or classes, (other than Shares which at the date of the offer are already held by the
offeror or persons acting in concert with the offeror), being an offer on terms
which are the same in relation to all the Shares to which the offer relates or,
where those Shares include Shares of different classes, in relation to all the Shares

of each class; or

(b)  the Directors are satisfied that the transfer is made pursuant to a bona fide sale of
the whole of the beneficial ownership of the Shares to a third party not connected
with the transferring Member or with any other person appearing to the Directors

to be interested in such Shares,

720  The Company shall maintain a register of interested parties to which the provisions of

these Articles and Articles 42 and 72 of the Law shall apply mutatis mutandis and
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whenever in pursuance of a requirement itmposed on a Member as aforesaid the Company
15 informed of an interested party, the identity of the interested party and the nature of the
interest shall be promptly inscribed therein together with the date of the request The
register kept under this Article must be kept avatlable for inspection at the Office and

must be open to mspection by any person without charge. Any person is entitled, on

request and on payment of such reasonable fee as the Directors may prescribe, to be

provided with a copy of any entry in the register. A request to inspect or obtain a copy of

the register must contain the following information
(a) in the case of an individual, his name and address;

(b)  inthe case of an orgamisation, the name and address of an indvidual responsible

for making the request on behalf of the organisation;

{c)  the purpose for which the information is to be used. and

(d)  whether the information will be disclosed to any other person. and if so
(i where that person is an individual, his name and address;

{)  where that person 15 an organisation, the name and address of an

mdividual responsible for recerving the information on 1ts behalf, and

(11)  the purpose for which the information is to be used by that person

Notification of Directors’ transfers

7.21

81

In order to enable the Company to comply with its obligations under Rule 17 of the AIM
Rules, any Member who 1s a Director shall notify the Company immediately of all
“deals” (as that term 15 defined 1n the AIM Rules) mn relation to Shares of the Directors
and members of their “family” (as that term is defined (n the AIM Rules), notifying the
Company of all the information requured to be disclosed under Schedule 5 to the AIM
Rules.

Modification of Rights

Whenever the capital of the Company is divided into different classes of Shares the
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special nghts attached to any class may (unless otherwise provided by the terms of 1ssue
of the Shares of that class) be varied or abrogated either while the Company is a going

concern or during or in contemplation of a winding up.

(a)  with the consent in writing of the holders of no Iess than 75% 1n number of the

1ssued Shares of the class; or

(b}  with the sanction of a Special Resolution passed at a separate meeting of the

holders of the Shares of the class.

To every such separate meeting all the provisions of these Articles relating to general
meetings of the Company or to the proceedings thereat shall, mutatis mutandis, apply
except that the necessary quorum shall be two or more persons holding or representing by
proxy one-third in number of the issued Shares of the class (but so that if at any
adjourned meeting of such holders a quorum as above defined is not present, those

Members who are present shall be a quorum)

The rights attached to the Shares shall be deemed to be varied by the creation or 1ssue of
any Shares (other than Shares of the same class) ranking pan passu with or 1n priority to
them as respects voting participation in the profits of the Company or in a winding up or

reduction of capital

Subject to Article 8 2, the special rights conferred upon the holders of any Shares or class
of Shares 1ssued with preferred, deferred or other special nghts shall not, unless otherwise

expressly provided by the terms of 1ssue of such Shares, be deemed to be varied by
() the creation, allotment ar issue of Shares of the same class; or

(b)  if the Company shall be wound up, by the exercise by a liquidator of his powers
under Articles 43 | and 43.3

Certificated Shares

Every Member who makes a request to receive his Shares 1n a certificated form, upon
becoming the holder of any Shares, shall be entitled, without payment, ta one certificate
for all the Shares held by him or several certificates each for one or more of his Shares

upon payment, for every certificate after the first, of such reasonable sum as the Directors
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may determine.

Every certificate shall either be sealed with the Seal or signed by two Directors or a
Director and the Secretary, or by such persons as the Directors shall authonse from time
to time, and shall specify the number, class and distingwishing numbers (if any) of the
Shares to which it relates and the amount or respective amounts paid up thereon. The
Directors may from time to time determine that any signatures to be affixed to any such
certificates need not be manual but may be printed or reproduced in any other manner
notwrthstanding any other provisions of these Articles with respect to the affixing of the
Seal provided that if at any time all the issued Shares are fully paid up and rank pari passu
for all purposes none of those Shares need thereafter have a distinguishing number so
long as they remain fully paid up and rank pan passu for all purposes with all Shares for
the time being 1ssued and fully paid up

If a Share certificate 15 defaced, worn out, lost or destroved it may be renewed on such
terms (if any) as to evidence and indemmity and payment of the expenses reasonably
incuwrred by the Company in investigating evidence, as the Directors may determine, and

(1in the case of defacement or wearing out) on delivery up of the old certificate

The Company shall not be bound to register more than four persons as the joint holders of
any Shares. Where two or more persons are regtstered as the holders of any Share they
shall be deemed to hold that Share as joint tenants, subject to Article 19 2 and to the

following provisions.

{a)  the joint holders of any Shares shall be hable, severally, as well as jointly, in

respect of all payments which ought to be made in respect of such Share;

(b)  any one of such joint holders may give an effectual receipt for any dividend,

bonus, return of capital or other payment payable to such joint holders,

(¢}  only the first-named of the joint holders of a Share shall be entitled to delivery of
the certificate relating to such Share or to receive notices from the Company to
attend general meetings of the Company and any notice given to the first-pamed

of joint holders shall be deemed to be notice given to all the joint holders.

Share certificates sent to Members shall be sent at the risk of such Members.
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CREST Arrangements

The Directors may unplement such arrangements as they may think fit in order for any
class of Shares to be admutted to settlement by means of the CREST system provided that
no proviston of the Articles shall apply or have effect to the extent that 1t 15 inconsistent
with

(a)  the holding of Shares of that class in uncertificated form,
(b)  the transfer of title to Shares of that class by means of the CREST system; or
(c}  the CREST Jersey Regulations and the CREST Jersey Requirements.

Where any class of Shares 15 for the time being adrmutted to settlement by means of the
CREST system, such secunties may be issued 1n uncertificated form in accordance with
and subject as provided in the CREST Jersey Regulations and the CREST Jersey

Requirements

Unless the Directors otherwise determine, securittes held by the same Member or joint
Member 1n both certificated form and uncertificated form shall be treated as separate

holdings

Secunties may be changed from uncertificated to certificated form and from certificated
to uncertificated form in accordance with and subject as provided in the CREST Jersey

Regulations and the CREST Jersey Requirements.

The Company will, for every Member who makes a request to recerve their Shares in
uncertificated form, arrange for CRESTCo (or such other clearing system as the Directors
may from time to time determune) to credit the appropriate stock amounts in CREST of
the Members concerned with their respective entitlements for Shares. The Shares will be
delivered through the CREST system and no share certificate will be 1ssued to the

relevant shareholder
Lien

The Company shall have a first and paramount lien on every Share (not being a fully paid

Share) for all montes (whether presently payable or not) payable at a fixed time or called
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in respect of that Share. The Directors may at any time declare any Share to be wholly or
in part exempt from the provisions of this Article The Company’s lien on a Share shall

extend to any amount payable in respect of 1t

Without prejudice to the provisions of these Articles providing for the forfeiture or
surrender of Shares, the Company may sell in such manner as the Directors determine any
Shares on which the Company has a lien 1f a sum in respect of which the lien exists 1s
presently payable and 1s not paid within 14 days after notice has been given to the
Member of the Share or where required by law, to the person entitled to 1t in consequence
of the death or bankruptey of the holder demanding payment and stating that if the notice

1s not complied with the Shares may be sold.

To give effect to a sale of Shares pursuant to this Article, the Directors may authorise

some person to execute an instrument of transfer in respect of the Shares

A person, anty of whose Shares have been sold pursuant to this Article, shall cease to be a
Member in respect of them and shall deliver to the Company for cancellation the
certificate for the Shares sold but shall remamn lable to the Company for all momnes
which, at the date of sale, were presently payable by him to the Company in respect of
those Shareg with mterest at the rate at which interest was payable on those monies before
such sale or at such rate not exceeding [2 per cent above the base rate of Barclays Bank
plc per annum] as the Directors may determine from the date of sale until payment
provided that the Directors may waive payment wholly or in part or enforce payment
without any allowance for the value of the Shares at the time of sale or for any

consideration received on their disposal

The net proceeds of the sale after payment of the costs shall be applied in payment of so
much of the sum for which the lien exists as 1s presently payable and any residue shall
(upon delivery to the Company, for cancellation, of the certificate or certificates for the
Shares sold and subject to a like lien for any monies not presently payable as existed upon
the Shares before the sale) be paid to the person entitled to the Shares at the date of the

sale.

Calls on Shares and Forfeiture
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Subject to the terms of allotment, the Directors may make calls upon the Members 1n
respect of any consideration agreed to be pawd for such Shares that remains unpaid and
each Member shall (subject to receiving at least 14 days notice specifying when and
where payment is to be made) pay to the Company as required by the notice the amount
called on such Shares A call may be required to be paid by mstalments. A call may
before receipt by the Company of any sum due thereunder be revoked in whole or part
and payment of a call may be postponed in whole or part A person upen whom a call is
made shall remain hable for calls made upon him notwrthstanding the subsequent transfer

of the Shares 1n respect whereof the call was made.

A call shail be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Directors

authorising the call was passed

The joint holders of a Share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in respect
thereof.

If a call remains unpaid after 1t has become dug and payable, the person from whom it 15
due and payable shall pay mterest on the amount unpaid from the day it became due and
payable until 1t is paid at the rate fixed by the terms of allotment of the Share or in the
notice of the call or at such rate not exceeding ten per cent per annum as the Directors
may determine provided that the Directors may waive payment of the interest wholly or

In part.

An amount payable in respect of a Share on allotment, or at any fixed date, shall be
deemed to be a call and if it 15 not paid the provisions of these Articles shall apply as if
that amount had become due and payable by virtue of a call. The Company may accept
from a Member the whole or a part of the amount remaining unpaid on Shares held by

him although no part of that amount has been called up

Subject to the terms of allotment. the Directors may make arrangements on the issue of
Shares for a difference between the holders in the amounts and times of payment of calls

on their Shares

If a call remarns unpaid after it has become due and payable, the Directors may give to

the person from whom it is due not less than 14 days notice requining payment of the
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amount unpaid together with any interest which may have accrued. The notice shall
name the place where payment is to be made and shall state that, i1f the notice 15 not

comphed with, Shares 1n respect of which the call was made will be hable to be forfeited.

If the notice referred to in Article 12.7 1s not comphied with, any Share in respect of
which 1t was given may, at the discretion of the Directors and before the payment

required by the notice has been made be erther

{a) forferted by a resolution of the Directors and the forfeiture shall include all
drvidends or other monies payable in respect of the forfeited Shares and not paid

before the forferture, or

(b)  accepted by the Company as surrendered by the holder thereof in lieu of such
forfeiture

A forfeited or surrendered Share may be sold, ce-allotted or otherwise disposed of on
such terms and in such manner as the Directors determine either to the person who was
before the forfeiture the Member or to any other person and at any time before sale re-
allotment or other disposition, the forferture or surrender may be cancelled on such terms
as the Directors think fit. Where, for the purposes of its disposal, a forferted or
surrendered Share 15 to be transferred 1o any person, the Directors may authonse some

person to execute an instrument of transfer in respect of the Share.

A person, any of whose Shares have been forfeited or surrendered, shall cease to be a
Member in respect of them and shall deliver to the Company for cancellation the
certificate for the Shares forfeited or surrendered (if any) but shall remain hable to the
Company for all monies which at the date of forfeiture or surrender were presently
payable by him to the Company in respect of those Shares with interest at the rate at
which mterest was payable on those monies before such forfeiture or surrender at such
rate not exceeding ten per cent per annum as the Directors may determine from the date
of forfeiture or surrender until payment provided that the Directors may watve payment
wholly or in part or enforce payment wathout any allowance for the value of the Shares at

the fime of forfeiture or for any consideration received on their disposal

A declaration under oath by a Director or the Secretary that a Share has been forfeited or
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surrendered on a specified date shall be conclusive evidence of the facts stated in such
declaration as against all persons claiming to be entitled to the Share and the declaration
shall (subject to the execution of an instrument of transfer 1f necessary) constitute a good
title to the Share and the person to whom the Share 1s disposed of shall not be bound to
see to the application of the consideration, 1f any, nor shall his title to the Share be
affected by any wuregulanty in or invahdity of the proceedings in reference to the

forfeiture, surrender or disposal of the Share.
Transfer of Shares

Subject as provided below, any Member may transfer all or any of his Shares. The
transfer of any Shares that are in certificated form shall be made by instrument of transfer
in any form which the Directors may approve, The instrument of transfer of a Share shall
be signed by or on behalf of the transferor and the transferor shall be deemed to remain
the holder of the Share until the name of the transferee 1s entered 1n the Register in

respect thersof.

The Directors may decline to register any transfer of certificated Shares unless the
instrument of transfer is deposited at the Office or such other place as the Directors may
reasonably require, accompanied by the certificate of the Shares to which 1t relates, and
such other evidence as the Directors may reasonably require to show the right of the
transferor to make the transfer. The Directors may refuse to register a transfer of any
Share which is not fully paid up or on which the Company has a lien provided that this
would not prevent dealings from taking place on an open and proper basis If the
Directors decline to register a transfer of any Share, they shalil, within two months after
the date on which the transfer was lodged with the Company, send to the transferee notice
of the refusal Subject to the provisions of the CREST Jersey Requirements, the Directors
may also refuse to register any transfer of Shares unless such transfer is accompanied by
the certificate of the Shares to which it relates, 15 in respect of one class of Share only, is
in favour of no more than four transferees and 1s deposited at the Office or such other

place as the Directors may reasonably require.

Subject to the provisions of the CREST Jersey Requirements, the registration of transfers

may be suspended at such times and for such periods as the Directors may from time to
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time determune provided always that such registration shall not be suspended for more

than thirty days in any year.

No fee shall be payable to the Company in respect of the registration of any probate,
letters of admimistration, certificate of marriage or death, power of attorney, or other

document relating to or affecting the title to any Shares

A record of all instruments of transfer which shall be registered shall be retained for
twelve years by the Company, but any mnstrument of transfer which the Directors may
decline to register shall {except in any case of fraud) be returned to the person depositing

the same.

The exercise by the Directors of the powers conferred by this Article shall not be
questioned or invalidated in any case on the ground that there was insufficient evidence
of ownership of Shares by any person or that the true ownership of any Shares was
otherwise than appeared to the Directors at the relevant date provided the said powers

shall have been exercised in good faith.

Where the Company 15 ertitled under any provisions of the Law or the rules made and
practices instituted by the operator of any relevant system or under these Articles to
dispose of, forfert, enforce a lien or sell or otherwise procure the sale of any Shares which
are held in uncertificated form, such entitlement (to the extent permutied by the CREST
Jersey Regulations, the CREST Jersey Requirements and the CREST Regulations and the
rules made and practices instituted by the operator of the relevant system) shall include

the nght to:

(a)  request or require the deletion of any computer-based entries n the relevant

system relating to the holding of such Shares 1n uncertificated form, and/er

(b)  require any holder of any uncertificated Shares which are the subject of any
exercise by the Company of any such entitlement or require CRESTCo n respect
of any such Shares, by notice in writing to the holder concerned or to CRESTCo
(as appropriate), to change such holding of such uncertificated shares mto
certificated form within such period as may be specified in the notice, prior to

completion of any disposal, sale or transfer of such Shares or direct the holder or
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CRESTCo to take such steps, by instructions given by means of a relevant system

or otherwise, as may be necessary to sell or transfer such Shares, and/or

(©) appoint any person to take such other steps, by instruction given by means of a
relevant system or otherwise, in the name of the holder of such Shares as may be

requred to effect the transfer of such Shares and such steps shall be as effective

- as If they had been taken by the registered holder of the uncertificated Shares

concerned, and/or

(d) transfer any uncertificated Shares which are the subject of any exercise by the
Company of any such entitlement by entering the name of the transferee 1n the

Register in respect of that Share as a transferred Share, and/or

{e) atherwise rectify or change the Register in respect of that Share i such manner as

may be appropriate, and/or

{f}  take suchother action as may be necessary to enable those Shares to be registered
n the name of the person to whom the Shares have been soid or disposed of or as

directed by him
Transmission of Shares

If a Member dies, the survivors or survivor where he was a joint holder, and the execufors
or admunistrators of the deceased where he was a sole or only surviving holder, shall be
the only persons recognised by the Company as having title to his interest in the Shares,
provided that nothing in this Article shall release the estate of the deceased holder
whether sole or joint from any hability in respect of any Shares solely or jointly held by

him.

Any person becoming entitled to a Share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or
incapacity of a Member shall, upon producing such evidence of hs title as the Directors
may require, have the right either to be registered mself as the holder of the Share or to
make such transfer thereof in accordance with the provisions of these Articles as the
deceased, bankrupt or incapacitated Member could have made. If he elects to become the
Member he shall give notice to the Company to that effect If he elects to transfer the
Share he shall execute an instrument of transfer of such Share to the transferee  All of the
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limitations, resinictions and provisions of these Articles relating to the transfer of Shares
shall apply to the notice or instrument of transfer as 1f it were an instrument of transfer
executed by the Member and the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of the Member had not

occurred

A person becoming entitled to a Share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or

“incapacity of a Member shall have the rights to which he would be entitled 1f he were the

holder of such Share, save that he shall not before being registered as the Member be
entitled 1n respect of 1t to be sent notice of or to attend or vote at a general meeting of the
Company or at any separate meeting of the holders of any class of Shares PROVIDED
ALWAYS that the Directors may at any time give notice requiring any such person to
elect either to be registered himself or to transfer the Share and if the notice 15 not
comphed with within ninety days the Directors may thereafter withhold al) dividends or
other monies payable or other nghts due in respect of the Share until the requirements of

the notice have been complied wrth.

Variation of Share Capital

The Company may from time to time by Special Resolution:

{a)  1ncrease or reduce the number of Shares which 1t is authorised to 1ssue, or
(b)  consolidate and divide all or any of 1ts Shares (whether issued or not)

All new Shares shall be subject to the provisions of these Articles with reference to

transfer, transmission, forferture and otherwise

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may by Special Resolution from time
to time reduce 1ts capital accounts in any way, and in particular, without prejudice to the

generality of the foregoing power, may

(@)  extinguish or reduce the liability of any of its Shares in respect of share capital

not paid up, or
(®)  with or without extinguishing or reducing hiability on any of its Shares:

6)) cancel any capital account by an amount which is lost or which is
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unrepresented by available assets; or

(u)  pay off any amount standing to the credit of a capital account which isn

excess of the Company’s requirements.

and may, if and so far as 15 necessary, alter 1its Memorandum of Association by

reducing the amount of its share capital and of 1ts Shares accordingly.

The Company may from time to time subject to the provisions of the Law purchase its
own Shares in any manner authorised by the Law and with and subject to all prior
authorities of the Company in general meeting as specified under the Law provided that
in the event that the Company shall purchase any Shares which are admitted to hsting or
trading on any investment exchange, such purchases shall be made in accordance with

any relevant restrictions imposed by any such listing authority or exchange.
General Meetings

The Company shall. within eighteen months of its incorporation and, subject to the Law,
in each subsequent calendar year following the calendar year in which the first annual
general meeting is held, hold a general meeting as its annual general meeting n addition
to any other meeting n that year Annual general meetings and general meetings
(including class meetings) shall be held at such time and place as may be determined by

the Directors

All general meetings (other than annual general meetings) shall be called extraordinary

general meetings.

The Directors may call an extraordinary general meeting whenever they think fit
Extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on such requisition, or in default may
be convened by such requisitionists, and in such manner, as provided by the Law save
that the number of Members who may requisition an extraordinary general meeting shall
be such number of Members as hold at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
five per cent of the total voting nghts of the Members who have the right to vote at the

meeting requisitioned

The Company is required to circulate to Members entitled to receive notice of a general
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meeting a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to-
(a)  amatter referred to 1n a proposed resolution to be dealt with at that meeting, or
(b)  other business to be dealt with at that meeting,

once 1t has recerved requests to do so from Members representing at least 3% of the total
voting rights of all the Members who have a relevant nght to vote (excluding any voting
rights attached to any Shares held as treasury shares) or at least 100 Members who havea
relevant nght to vote and hold Shares on which there has been paid up an average sum,
per Member, of at least £100 A “relevant right to vote” means (i) in relation to a
statement with respect to a matter referred to in a proposed resolution, a nght to vote on
that resolution at the meeting to which the requests relate, and (i1) 1n relation to any other
statement, a right to vote at the meeting to which the requests relate. A request may be in
hard copy form or by means of Electronic Communication, must identify the statement to
be circulated, must be authenticated by the Member or Members making it and must be

recerved by the Company at least one week before the meeting to which 1t relates.

If the Company is required under Article 16 4 to circulate a statement, 1t must send a copy
of 1t to each Member entitled to receive notice of the meeting tn the same manner as the
notice of the meeting, and at the same tume as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after,
it gives notice of the meeting However. the Company 15 not required to circulate a
Members” statement under Article 16 4 if the Directors have reason to believe that the

rights conferred by Article 16.4 are being abused

The expenses of the Company in complying with Article 16 5 need not be paid by the
Members who requested the circulation of the statement 1if the meeting to which the
requests relate 1s the Company’s annual general meeting and requests sufficient to require
the Company to circulate the statement are recetved before the end of the financial year
preceding the meeting Otherwise, subject to the provisions of the Law, the expenses of
the Company in complymng with Article 165 must be paid by the Members who
requested the circulation of the statement unless the Company resolves otherwise, and
unless the Company has previously so resolved, it 1s not bound to comply with Articles
16 4 and 16.5 uniess there is deposited with or tendered to it, not later than one week

before the meeting, a sum reasonably sufficient to meet 1ts expenses in doing so.
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Notice of General Meetings

An annual general meeting shall be called by at least 14 clear days’ notice and any other
general meeting shall be called by at least 14 clear days’ notice. The notice shall be
exclusive of the day on which it is served, or deemed to be served, and of the day of the

meeting. A general meeting may, however, be called by shorter notice if it is so agreed.

(a) 1 the case of an annual general meeting, by all the Members entitled to attend

and vote thereat, and

(b)  inthe case of any other meeting, by a majority in number of the Members having
a night to attend and vote at the meeting, being 2 majority together holding not
less than 95 per cent of the total voting nights of the Members who have that
right

The notice shall specify the day. time and place of the meeting and the general nature of
the business to be transacted and in the case of an annual general meeting, shall specify
the meeting as such The notice convening a meeting to propose resolutions shall set out
such resolutions and shall specify the intention to propose them as ordinary or special

resolutions, as appropriate

Subject to the provisions of these Articles and to any restrictions imposed on any Shares,
a notice of a general meeting shall be given to all the Members, to all persons entitled toa
Share in consequence of the death, bankruptey or incapacity of a Member and to the
Phirectors, the Administrator and the Auditors Each of the Directors and the Auditors

shall be entitled to attend and speak at any general meeting of the Company

In every notice calling a meeting of the Company, or of any class of Members of the
Company, there shall appear with reasonable prominence a statement that a Member
entitled to attend and vote is entitied to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote

mstead of him and a proxy need not also be a Member

The accidental omission to give notice to or to send a form of proxy to, or the non-receipt
of notice or form of proxy by, any person entitled to receive notice or form of proxy shall

not 1nvalidate the proceedings at any general meeting
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Proceedings at General Meetings

All business shall be deemed special that is transacted at an extraordinary general
meeting, and also all business that is transacted at an annual general meeting with the
exception of declaring or approving the payment of dividends, the consideration of the
accounts and balance sheet and the reports of the Directors and Auditors, the election of
Directors 1n the place of those retiring, and the appointment and the fixing of the

remuneration of the Auditors

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum 1s present Save
as otherwise provided 1n these Articles, two persons entitled to vote upon the business to
be transacted, each being 2 Member or a proxy for a Member shall be a2 quorum. A
representative of a corporation authorised pursuant to Article 20 and present at any
meeting of the Company or at any meeting of the holders of any class of Shares shall be

deemed to be a Member for the purpose of counting towards a quorum

If, wathin half an hour from the time appownted for the meeting or such longer interval as
the Chairman of the meeting may think fit and allow, a quorum 1s not present or 1f, during
a meeting, such a quorum ceases to be present, the meeting, 1f convened on the
requisition of or by Members, shall be dissolved. In any other case, it shall stand
adjourned to the same day m the next week at the same time and place or to such other
day and such other time and place as the Chairman may determune and, if at such
adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within guarter of an hour from the time
appointed for holding the meeting, those Members present in person or by proxy shall be

a quorum.

The Chairman of the Board or, failing him, some other Director nominated by the
Directors shall preside as Chairman at every general meeting of the Company, but 1f at
any meeting neither the Chairman of the Board nor such other nomuinated Director be
present within a quarter of an hour after the ime appomnted for holding the meeting. or 1f
neither of them be willing to act as Chairman, the Directors present shall choose one of
their number to be Charrman, or if no Director be present or if all the Directors present
decline to take the chair, the Members present and entitled to vote shall choose one of

their number to be Chairman
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The Chairman may with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present (and
shall if so directed by the meeting) adjourn the meeting from time fo ttme and from place
to place but no business shall be transacted by any adjourned meeting except business
which mught lawfully have been transacted at the meeting from which the adjournment
took place When a meeting 1s adjourned for 14 days or more, seven clear days’ notice at
the least specifying the place, the day and the hour of the adjourned meeting, shall be
given but it shall not be necessary to specify in such notice the nature of the business to
be transacted at the adjourned meeting. Save as aforesaid, 1t shall not be necessary to
grve any notice of an adjournment or of the business fo be transacted at an adjourned

meeting.

At any general meeting, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided ona
show of hands unless before or upon the declaration of the result of the show of hands a

poll 1s demanded Subject to the provisions of the Law, a poll may be demanded by
(a)  the Chairrman of the meeting,
(b) at least two Members having the right to vote on the resolution,

© a Member or Members representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting

nights of all the Members having the right to vote on the resolution; or

(d)  aMemberor Members holding Shares conferning a right to vote on the resolution
being Shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less than

one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the Shares confernng that nght.

Unless a poll is so demanded, a declaration by the Charrman that a resolution has been
carmed, or carried unanimously, or by a particular majornty, or lost, or oot carmed by a
particular majority, and an entry to that effect in the book containing the minutes of the
meeting shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or

proportion of the votes recorded m favour of or agawnst such resolution,

The instrument appointing a proxy to vote at a meeting shall be deemed also to confer
authority to demand or join in demanding a poll and, for the purposes of Article 18 6, a

demand by a person as proxy for a Member shall be the same as a demand by a Member
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If a poll 1s duly demanded, it shail be taken in such manner and at such place as the
Chairman may direct (including the use of ballot or voting papers or tickets) and the
result of a poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was
demanded The Chairman may, in the event of a poll, appoint scrutineers and may fix a

day, time and place for the purpose of declaring the result of the poll.

In the case of an equality of votes. whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the Chairman
of the meeting at which the show of hands takes place or at which the poll 1s demanded

shall be entitled to a second or casting vote.

A poll demanded on the election of a Chairman and 2 poll demanded cn a question of
adjournment shall be taken forthwith A poll demanded on any other question shall be
taken at such time and place as the Chairman directs not being more than thirty days from

the date of the meeting or adjoumed meeting at which the poll was demanded

The demand for a poll shall not prevent the continuance of a meeting for the transaction
of any business other than the question on which the poll has been demanded. Ifapollis
demanded before the declaration of the result on a show of hands and the demand 1s duly
withdrawn before the poll 1s taken, the meeting shall continue as 1f the demand had not

been made

The demand for a poll may, before the poll 15 taken, be withdrawn but only with the
consent of the Chairman and a demand so withdrawn shall not be iaken to have

invalidated the result on a show of hands declared before the demand was made.

No notice need be given of a poll not taken forthwith 1f the day, tme and place at which
1t 1s to be taken are announced at the meeting at which it 1s demanded In any other case
at least seven days’ notice shall be given specifying the day, time and place at which the

poll 1s to be taken
Votes of Members

Subject to any special rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class of

Shares-

(a)  onashow of hands every Member who is present in person shall have one vote,
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and

(b}  ona poli every Member who 1s present 1n person or by proxy shall be entitled to

one vote in respect of each Share held by um.

In the case of joint holders of a Share, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote whether
in person or by proxy shail be accepted to the exciusion of the votes of the other joint
holders, and for this purpose sentonity shall be determined by the order in which the

names stand tn the Register in respect of the Share

A Member 1n respect of whom an order has been made by any court having junsdiction
(whether 1n Jersey or elsewhere) in matters concerning mental disorder may vote whether
on a show of hands or on a poll, by his attorney, curator, receiver or other person
authorised m that behalf appointed by such court and any such attorney, curator, receiver
or other person may on a poll vote by proxy provided that such evidence as the Directors
may require of the authonty of the person claiming to vote shall have been deposited at
the Office or at such other place as 15 specified m accordance with these Articles for the
depostt of mstruments of proxy not less than forty-erght hours before the time for holding

the meeting or adjourned meeting at which such person claims to vote

No Member shall, unless the Directors otherwise determine, be entitled to vote at any
general meeting, or, at any separate meeting of the holders of any class of Shares, either
personally or by proxy, or 10 exercise any rights as a Member unless all calls or other
sums presently payable by him in respect of Shares of which he 1s the holder or one of the

Jomnt holders have been paid.

No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or
adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered and every vote not
disallowed at such meeting shall be valid for all purposes Any such objection made in
due time shall be referred to the Chairman of the meeting, whose decision shall be final

and conclusive
On a poll, votes may be given either personally or by proxy.

On a poll, a Member entitled to more than one vote need not, if he votes, use all his votes

or cast all votes he uses in the same way
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The instrument appointing a proxy shall be 1n writing under the hand of the appointer or
of his attorney duly authorised 1n writing, or 1f the appointer 1s a corporation, etther under

its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney so authorised.

Any person {(whether a Member or not) may be appointed by a Member to act as a proxy

A Member may appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any)
under which it 1s signed or a notanally cert:ified copy of such power or authority, shall be
deposited at the Office or at such other place as 1s specified for that purpose 1n the notice
of the meeting or in the instrument of proxy 1ssued by the Company not less than forty-
eight hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at
which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote and 1n default the instrument
of proxy shall not be treated as valid. No instrument appointing a proxy shall be valid
after the expiration of twelve months from the date named 1n 1t as the date of its
execution, except at an adjourned meeting or on a poll demanded at a meeting or an
adjourned meeting 1n cases where the meeting was originally held within twelve months

from such date.

An instrument of proxy shall be in the following form or such other form as the Directors

may approve.

FORM OF PROXY

/We

of

being a Member/Members of the Company
hereby appont

or failing him,

of

as my/our proxy to vote for mefus on my/our behalf at the (annual or extraordinary, as
the case may be) general meeting of the Company to be held on the day of
, and at any adiournment thereof
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Signed this day of

This form 1s to be used *{in favour of / against] the Resolution

Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy will vote or abstamn from voting as he thinks fit
* Strike out whichever is not desired "

Subject to the Law. in relation to any Shares which are held in uncertuficated form, the
btrectors may from time to ume permit appointments of a proxy to be made by means of
an electronic communication n the form of an Uncertificated Proxy Instruction (as
defined below) The Drrectors may in a similar manner permit supplements to, or
amendments or revocations of, any such Uncertificated Proxy Instruction to be made by
like means. The Directors may in addition prescribe the method of determining the time
at which any such properly authenticated dematerialised instruction (and/or other
mstruction or notification) 1s to be treated as received by the Company or such
participant Notwithstanding any other provision 1n these Articles, the Directors may treat
any such Uncertificated Proxy Instruction which purports to be or is expressed to be sent
on behalf of a Member as sufficient evidence of the authority of the person sending that
wnstruction to send it on behalf of the Member For the purpose of this Article,
“Uncertificated Proxy Instruction’ means properly authenticated dematerialised
nstructions and/or other instruction or notification, which is sent by means of the
relevant system concerned and received by such participant 1n that system acting on
behalf of the Company as the Direclors may prescribe, in such form and subject to such
terms and conditions as from time to time be prescribed by the Directors (subject

anyways to the facilities and requirements of the relevant system concerned).

For the purpose of determining which persons are entitled to attend or vote at a meeting
and how many votes such persons may cast, the Directors may specify in the notice of the
meeting a time not more than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting, by which a
person must be entered on the Register in order to have the right to attend or vote at the
meeting. Changes to the entries on the Register after the time specified by the Directors
shall be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend or vote at the

meeting notwithstanding any provision of these Articles to the contrary.

The Directors may at the expense of the Company send, by post or otherwise, to the

Members instruments of proxy (with or without prepaid postage for their return) for use
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at any general meeting, or at any meeting of any class of Members of the Company erther
1n blank or nominating in the alternative any one or more of the Directors or any other
persons If for the purpose of any meeting invitations to appoint as proxy a person or one
of a number of persons specified i the mvitations are issued at the expense of the
Company, such invitations shall be issued to all (and not to some only) of the Members

entitled to be sent a notice of the meeting and to vote thereat by proxy.

A vote given or a poll demanded 1n accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy
shall be valid notwithstanding the death or insanity of the principal or the revocation or
determination of the instrument of proxy, or of the authonty under which the instrument
of proxy was executed, or the transfer of the Share 1n respect of which the instrument of
proxy is given, PROVIDED THAT no timation in writing of such death, insamty,
revocation or transfer shall have been received by the Company at the Office or at such
other place at which the mnstrument of proxy was duly deposited before the
commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote is given or the poll
demanded or (in the case of a poll taken otherwise than on the same day as the meeting or

adjourned meeting) the time appointed for taking the poll.
Corporations Acting by Representatives

Any corporation which 1s a Member may by resolution of its directors or other governing
body or officers authonsed by such body, authorise such person as 1t thinks fit to act as 1ts
representative at any meeting of the Company or at any meeting of the holders of Shares
of any class, and the person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on
behalf of the corporation which he represents as that corporation could exercise 1f it were
an individual Member and such corporation shall for the purposes of these Articles be
deemed to be present in person at any such meeting 1f a person so authonsed 15 present

thereat
Resolutions in Writing

Anything that may, 1n accordance with the provisions of the Law, be done by a resolution
in writing signed by or on behalf of each Member is authorised by these Articles without

any restriction.
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The Directors may determine the manner in which resolutions shall be put to Members
pursuant to the terms of this Article and. wathout prejudice to the discretion of the
Directors, provision may be made in the form of a resolution in writing for each Member
10 indicate how many of the votes which he would have been entitled to cast at a meeting
to consider the resolution he wishes to cast in favour of or against such resolution or to be
treated as abstentions and the result of any such resolution 1n writing need not be

unamimous and shall be determined upon the same basis as on a poll
Directors

Unless otherwise determined by Ordinary Resolution, the number of Directors shall not

be subject to any maximum but shall be not less than three

A Durector need not be a Member, but shall be entitled to receive notice of and attend all

general meetings of the Company and all meetings of any class of Members
Alternate Directors

Any Director (other than an Alternate Director) may appoint any other Director, or any
other person, to be an Altenate Director and may remove from office an Alternate

Director so appointed by him

An Alternate Director shal! be entitled to aftend. be counted towards a quorum and vote
at any meeting of Directors and of any meeting of committees of Directors of which his
appointer is a member at which the Director appointing him is not personally present, and
generally to perform all the functions of his appointer as a Director 1n his absence but
shall not be entitied to recerve any remuneration from the Company for hus services as an
Alternate Director. It shall not be necessary to give notice of such a meeting to an

Altemate Director

(a) An Alternate Director shall cease to be an Alternate Director 1f his appointer

ceases to be a Director

(b)  Any appointment or removal of an Alternate Director shall be by notice to the
Company signed by the Director making or revoking the apporntment or in any

other manner approved by the Directors.
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Save as otherwise provided n these Articles, an Alternate Director shall be deemed for
all purposes to be a Director and shall alone be responsible for hus own acts and defaults

and he shall not be deemed to be the agent of the Director appointing him
Powers of Directors

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Memorandum and these Articles and to any
directions given by Special Resolution, the business of the Company shall be managed by

the Directors who may exercise all the powers of the Company 1n any part of the world.

No alteration of the Memorandum or these Articles and no such direction given by
Special Resolution shall invalidate any prior act of the Directors which would have been

valid if that alteration had not been made or that direction had not been given,

The powers given by this Article shall not be limited by any special power given to the
Drirectors by these Articles and a meeting of Directors at which a quorum 1s present may
exercise all powers exercisable by the Directors. If an Ordinary Resolution 1s passed
reducing the minimum number of Directors to one, a Director who has been appointed to
act as a sole Director shall have and may exercise all the powers and authorities 1n and

over the affairs of the Company as by these Articles are conferred on the Directors

The Directors may, by power of attomey or otherwise, appoint any person to be the agent
of the Company for such purposes and on such conditions as they determine, including

authority for the agent to delegate all or any of hus powers.
Delegation of Directors’ Powers

The Directors may delegate any of their powers, authorities or discretions (with power to
sub-delegate) to committees of one or more Directors, If the Directors have delegated any
power or discretion to a committee, any references in these Articles to using that power or
discretion mclude its use by the commuittee Any committee must comply with any

regulations or terms of reference laid down by the Directors.

Unless the Directors decide not to allow thus, any commuttee may sub-delegate any of its
powers or discretions to sub-commuttees. Reference in these Articles to commuttees

include sub-commuttees permitted under this Article
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If a commuttee consists of more than one person, the Articles which regulate Directors’
meetings and their procedure will also apply to commuttee meetings (if they can apply to
commuttee meetings), unless these are inconsistent with any regulations for the committee

which have been laid down under this Article.

The ability of the Directors to delegate under this Article applies to all their powers and
discretions and 1s not limited because certain Articles refer to powers and discretions

being exercised by committees authorised by Directors while other Articles do not
Appointment and Retirement of Directors

The first Darectors shall be determined in writing by the subscribers to the Memorandum,

or a majonty of them.

The Dhrectors shall have power at any time. and from time to tume, without sanction of
the Company n general meeting, to appoint any person to be a Director, exther to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director, provided that, at all times, the provisions of

Article 22.1 are fulfilled.
The Company may by Ordinary Resolution appoint any person to be a Director,

The first Directors of the Company and all subsequent Directors appointed under Article
26.2 shal] submut themselves for re-election by the Members at the first annual general
meeting after their appointment. No Director shall remain in office for longer then three
years since therr last election or re-election without submutting themselves for re-election.
At each annual general meeting, the Directors subject to retirement in accordance with
Article 26.4 shall retire from office. A Director retiring at such meeting shall retain
office until the dissolution of such meeting and accordingly on retiring a Director who is
re-elected or deemed to have been re-elected pursuant to Article 26 6 will continue in

office without a break
The Directors to retire by rotation shall be
(a) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-election,

(b)  any Director who has been, or who by the time of the next annual general meeting

will have been, in office for three years or more; and
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(c) such number of additional Directors (if any) as, when added to those Directors
referred to 1n paragraphs (a) and (b} above, equal one-third of the Directors (or, if
the number of Directors is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not exceeding one-third of the Directors), provided that such additional
Drrectors shall be those who have been longest 1n office  As between two or
more Directors who have been in office an equal length of time, the Directors to
retire shall in defauit of agreement between them be determined by lot. The
length of ime a Director has been in office shall be computed from the date of hus

last election or appointment when he has previously vacated office.
A retrring Director shall be eligible for re-election

The Company at the meeting at which a Director retires in the manner aforesaid may fill
the vacated office by appointing a person thereto by Ordinary Resolution and in default
the retirtng Director shall, 1f willing to act, be deemed to have been re-appomted unless at
such meeting it 1s expressly resolved not to fill the vacated office or a resolution for the
re-appointment of such Director shall have been put to the meeting and lost. The
Company at such meeting may also (subject to Articles 26.5 and 26.6) fill any other

vacancies.

At a general meeting a motion for the appointment of two or more persons as Directors of
the Company by a single resolution shall not be made unless a resclution that it shall be

so made has been first agreed to by the meeting without any vote being given against it

No person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Duirectors for appointment, be eligible for the office of Director at any general meeting
unless, not less than seven nor more than forty two clear days before the day appointed
for the meeting, there shall have been given to the Company notice in wrtting by some
Member (not being the person proposed) duly qualified to be present and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose such person for
appointment, and also notice 1n wrting signed by the person to be proposed of his

willingness to be appointed

A Drrector may retire from office as a Director by giving notice in writing to that effect to

the Company at the Office, which notice shall be effective upon such date as may be
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spectfied in the notice, failing which upon delivery to the Office

The provisions contained 1n sections 215 to 221 of the UK’s Compantes Act 2006 in
relation to payments made to Directors (or persons connected with Directors) for loss of
office (and the circumstances in which such payments would require the approval of
Members) shall apply to the Company and the Company shall comply with such
provisions as 1f 1t were a company tncorporated in England and Wales, notwithstanding
section 217(4)(a), section 218(4)(a) and section 219(6)(a) of the UK’s Companies Act
2006

Disqualification and Removal of Directors
The office of a Director shall be vacated 1f*

(a)  he ceases to be a Directer by virtue of any provision of the Law or becomes

prohibited by law from, or 1s disqualified from. being a Director, or

(b)  he becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with lus creditors

generally, or
{c)  he resigns his office by notice to the Company, or
{d)  he becomes of unsound mind, or

(e)  hes given notice by the majority of the other Directors (not being less than two
in number) to vacate office (without prejudice to any claim for damages for
breach of any agreement relating to the provision of the services of such

Director), or

{H he is absent from meetings of the Directors for four successive meetings without
leave expressed by a resolution of the Directors and the Directors resolve that his

office be vacated, or
{(2) the Company so resolves by Ordinary Resolution
Remuneration of Directors

The Directors shall be entitled to directors’ fees in aggregate not exceeding £[®] per
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annum or to such greater remuneration as the Company may by Ordimary Resolution
determine or in accordance with such agreements relating to the provision of the services
of the Directors as shall be entered into by the Company from time to tme and, unless
such resolution or agreement provides otherwise, the remuneration shall be deemed to

accrue from day to day.
Directors’ Expenses

The Directors may be paid all travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by
them 1n connection with their attendance at meetings of Directors or commutiees of
Drrectors or general meetings or separate meetings of the holders of any class of Shares
or of debentures of the Company or otherwise in connection with the discharge of their
duties. The Directors shall have access fo independent professional advice at the expense
of the Company where, acting reasonably, they judge 1t necessary to discharge their

responsibilities as directors
Directors’ Gratuities and Pensions

The Board may (by establishment of, or maintenance of, schemes or otherwise) provide
benefits, whether by the payment of gratuities or penstons or by insurance or otherwise,
for any past or present director or employee of the Company or any of 1ts subsidiary
undertakings or any body corporate associated with, or any business acquired by, any of
them, and for any member of his family (including a spouse, a civil partner, a former
spouse and a former civil partner) or any person who is or was dependent on him, and
may (as well before as after he ceases to hold such office or employment) contribute to

any fund and pay premiums for the purchase or provision of any such benefit

Without prejudice to the provisions of Article 44, the Board may exercise all the powers
of the Company to purchase and maintain insurance for or for the benefit of any person

who 18 or was.

(a)  aDirector, officer or employee of the Company, or any body which is or was the
holding company or subsidiary undertaking of the Company, or in which the
Company or such holding company or subsidiary undertaking has or had any
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wnterest (whether direct or indirect) or with which the Company or such holding

company or subsidiary undertaking is or was in any way allied or associated, or

(b)  atrustee of any pension fund in which employees of the Company or any other
body referred to 1n paragraph (a) of thus Article are or have been interested,

including without limitation insurance against any haknlity incurred by such person n
respect of any act or omission 1n the actual or purported execution or discharge of hus
duties or in the exercise or purported exercise of us powers of otherwise in relation to his

duties, powers or offices n relation to the relevant body or fund

No Durector or former director shall be accountable to the Company or the members for
any benefit provided pursuant to these Articles. The receipt of any such benefit shali not

disqualify any person from being or becoming a drrector of the Company

The Board may make provision for the benefit of any persons employed or formerly
employed by the Company or any of its subsidiaries other than a Director or former
director or shadow director in connection with the cessation or the transfer of the whole

or part of the undertaking of the Company or any subsidiary
Directors’ Appointments and Interests

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Directors may appoint one or more of their
number to the office of managing director of the Company or to any other executive
office in the Company and may enter into an agreement or arrangement with any Director
for his employment by the Company or for the provision by him of any services outside
the scope of the ordinary duties of a Director. Any such appointment, agreement or
arrangement may be made upon such terms as the Directors determine and they may
remunerate any such Director for hus services as they think fit. Any appointment of a
Director to an executive office shall termnate 1f he ceases to be a Director but without
prejudice to any claim for damages for breach of any agreement relating to the provision
of the services of such Director The Directors may also (without prejudice to any claim
for damages for breach of any agreement between the Director and the Company) remove

a Director from any executive office

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Board may enter into, vary and terminate an
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agreement or arrangement with any director who does not hold executive office for the
provision of his services to the Company Any such agreement or arrangement may be

made on such terms as the Board determines.

Each such Director shall be paid a fee for their services (which shall be deemed to accrue
from day to day) at such rate as may from time to time be determined by the Board Any
Director who does not hold executive office and who performs special services which in
the opimon of the Board are outside the scope of the ordinary duties of a director, may be
paid such extra remuneration by way of additional fee, salary. commussion or otherwise

as the Board may determine

A Director may hold any other office or place of profit under the Company (other than the
office of Audztor) in conjunction with his office of Director on such terms as to tenure of

office, and otherwise as the Directors may determine

No Director or intending Director shall be disqualified by his office from contracting with
the Company erther as vendor, purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any such contract or any
contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Company in which any
Duirector is 1n any way interested be liable to be avoided, nor shall any Director so
contracting or being so interested be liable to account to the Company for any
remuneration. profit or other benefit realised by any such contract or arrangement by
reason of such Director holding that office or of the fiduciary relationship thereby
established (including, without limitation, any benefit received by virtue of liability
insurance purchased for the Directors), but the nature of hus interest must be declared by
him at the meeting of the Directors at which the question of entering into the contract or
arrangement 1s first taken into consideration, of 1f the Director was not at the date of that
meeting nterested 1n the proposed contract or arrangement, then at the next meeting of
the Directors held after he becomes so interested, and in a case where the Director
becomes interested 1n a contract or arrangement after it 15 made, then at the first meeting
of the Directors held after he becomes so interested A general notice 1n writing given to
the Directors by any Director to the effect that he is a member of any specified company
or firm and 15 to be regarded as interested in any contract which may thereafter be made
with that company of firm, shall (1f such Director shall give the same at a meeting of the

Drrectors or shall take reasonable steps to secure that the same 1s brought up and read at
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the next meeting of the Directors after 1t 15 given) be deemed a sufficient declaration of

interest 1n relation to any contract so made

A Durector shall not, as a Director. vote in respect of any contract, transaction,

arrangement or proposal in which he has an interest which (together with any interest of

any person connected with um) is a material interest (otherwise then by virtue of his

mterests, direct or indirect, in Shares or debentures or other secunities of, or otherwise in

ot through, the Company) and if he shall do so lis vote shall not be counted, nor in

relation thereto shall he be counted in the quorum present at the meeting, but (in the

absence of some other material interest than 1s mentioned below) none of these

prohubttions shall apply to.

(a)

(®)

(©)

the giving of any security, guarantee or indemnity in respect of

(1 money lent or obligations incurred by him or by any other person for the

benefit of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; or

(i)  adebt or obliganion of the Company or any of its subsidiaries for which
the Durector tumse!f has assumed responstbility 1 whole or i part and
whether alone or jowntly with others under a guarantee or indemmty ar by

the giving of security;

where the Company or any of its subsidiaries 1s offering secur:ties in which offer
the Director is or may be entitled to participate as a holder of securities or in the

underwriting or sub-~underwriting of which the Director is to or may participate,

any contract, transachion, arrangement or proposal affecting any other body
corporate in which he is interested, directly or indirectly and whether as an
officer, shareholder, creditor or otherwise howsoever, provided that he (together
with persons connected with him) does not to hus knowledge hold an interest
representing one per cent or more of any class of the equity share capital of such
body corporate (or of any third body corporate through which his interest is
denived) or of the voting nghts available to members of the relevant body
corporate {any such interest being deemed for the purposes of this Articleto be a

material interest in all ¢ircumstances);
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(d)  any act or thing done or to be done in respect of any arrangement for the benefit
of the employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries under which he 15 not
accorded as a Director any privilege or advantage not generally accorded to the

employees to whom such arrangement relates; or

(e)  any matter connected with the purchase or maintenance for any Director of
insurance against any liability or (to the extent permitted by the Law) indemnities
in favour of Durectors, the funding of expenditure by one or more Directors m
defending proceedings against him or them or the doing of any thing to enable

such Director or Directors to avoid incurring such expenditure

316 A Director may, as a Director, vote (and be counted in the quorum) n respect of any
contract, transaction, arrangement or proposal in whrch he has an interest which 1s nota

matenal interest or which falls withun Article 31.5.

317 For the purposes of this Article a person shall be treated as being connected with a

Darector if that person is.

(@) a spouse, child (under the age of 18} or step chuld (under the age of 18) of the

Director, or

(b)  anassociated body corporate which is a company in which the Director alone. or
with connected persons, is directly or indirect(y beneficially interested in 20% or
more of the equity share capital or is enntled (alone or with connected persons) to
exercise or control the exercise of more than 20% of the voting power at general

meetings; or

(c) a trustee (acting in that capacity) of any trust, the beneficiaries of which include
the Director or persons falling within paragraphs (a) or (b) above excluding

trustees of a Share Scheme or employees’ pension scheme, or

{d)  apartner (acting in that capacity) of the Director or persons in categories (a) to {¢)

above,

318 A Director, notwithstanding his interest, may be counted in the quorum present at any

meeting whereat he or any other Director is appointed to hold any such office or place or
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profit under the Company, or whereat the terms of any such appointment are arranged or
whereat any contract in whiuch he is interested 1s considered, and he may vote on any such
appointment or arrangement other than his awn appowntment or the arrangement of the

terms thereaf.

Any Director may act by himself or his firm in a professional capacity for the Company,
and he or hus firm shall be entitled to remuneration for professional services as if he were
not a Director, provided that nothing herein contained shall authorise a Director or his

firm to act as Auditor to the Company

The Company may by Ordinary Resolution suspend or relax to any extent. either
generally or in respect of any particular matter, any provision of these Articles prohubiting
a Dhrector from voting at a meeting of Directors or of a committee of Directors and may

ratify any transactions not duly authorised by reason of a contravention of these Articles
Proceedings of Directors

Subject to the provisions of these Articles, the Directors may regulate their proceedings
as they think fit

A Director may, and the Secretary at the request of a Director shall, call a meeting of the

Directors.

Questions arising at a meeting shall be decided by a majonty of votes In the case of an
equality of votes the Chairman shall have a second or casting vote A person who has
been appointed as an Alternate Director by one or more Directors shall have one vote in
respect of each such appointment in addition to any vote that he may be entitled to as a

Darector.

The quorum for the transaction of the business of the Directors may be fixed by the
Directors and unless so fixed at any other number, shall be two Directors A person who
is an Alternate Director shall be counted in the quorum and any Dwector acting as an
Alternate Director shali also be counted as one for each of the Directors for whom he acts

as alternate.

All or any of the Directors or members of a commuittee may take part in a meeting of the
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Directors or a commuttee by way of a conference telephone or any communication
equipment which allows everybody to take part in the meeting by being able to hear sach
of the other people at the meeting and by being able to speak to all of them at the same
time A person taking part mn this way will be treated as being present at the meeting and
will be entitled to vote and be counted wn the quorum Such meetings will be treated as
taking place where most of the participants are or where the charrman of the meeting is if

no more than one 1s in each place

The Directors may act notwithstanding any vacanctes in their number, but, if the number
of Drrectors 15 less than the number fixed as the quorum, the continuing Directors or
Director may act only for the purpose of filling vacancies or of calling a general meeting

to appoint Directors

The Directors may appoint one of their number to be the Chairman of the Board and may
at any time remove him from that office Unless he is unwlling to do so, the Director so
appointed shall preside at every meeting of Directors at which he is present. [fthere s no
Director holding that office, or 1f the Director holding i1t 1s unwilling to preside or 1s not
present within five minutes after the time appointed for the meeting, the Directors present

may appoint one of their number to be Chairman of the meeting

All acts done by a meeting of Directors, or by a committee duly authorised by the
Directors, or by a person acting as a Director or Alternate Director or member of such
commuttee shall, notwithstanding that it be afterwards discovered that there was a defect
in the appointment of any Director or Alternate Director or member of such committee or
that any of them were disqualified from holding office, or had vacated office, or were not
entitled to voie, be as valid as if every such person had been duly appointed and was
quahified and had continued to be a Director or Alternate Director or member of such

committee and had been entitled to vote,

A resolution in writing signed by all the Directors entitled to receive notice of a meeting
of Directors or of a commuttee duly authonised by the Directors shall be as valid and
effectual as 1f it had been passed at a meeting of Directors or {as the case may be) duly
authorised by the Directors duly convened and held and may consist of several documents

in the like form each signed by one or more Directors. or tn the case of a commuttee, the
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members of such commuttee provided that a resolution signed by an Alternate Director
need not also be signed by his appointer and, if 1t 1s signed by a Director who has
appointed an Alternate Director, it need not be signed by the Alternate Director in that

capacity.

Where proposals are under consideration concerning the appointment of two or more
Duirectors to offices or employment with the Company or any body corporate 1n which the
Company is interested the proposals may be divided and considered 1 relation to each
Drirector separately and each of the Directors concerned shall be entitled to vote and be
counted 1n the quorum in respect of each resolution save that concerning his own

appointment.
Secretary

Subject to the provisions of the Law, a Secretary shall be appointed by the Directors for
such term, at such remuneration and upon such conditions as they may think fit and any

Secretary so appointed may be removed by them
Minutes

The Secretary shall cause minutes to be made in books kept for the purpose 1n accordance
with the Law.

The Seal

The Directors may at any time resolve that the Company shall have, or shall cease to

have, a common seal to be used and kept only in Jersey.

A Seal shall only be used by the authority of the Directors or of a committee of Directors
authorised by the Directors The Directors may determune who shall sign any instrument
to which the Seal is affixed and unless otherwise so determined 1t shall be signed by any

two Directors, a Director and the Secretary or a Director and a witness

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Directors may resolve to have or cease to have
an official seal for use only 1n connection with the sealing of securities issued by the
Company and such official seal shall be a copy of the common seal of the Company but

shall in addition bear the word “securities”
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Dividends

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may by Ordinary Resolution declare
dividends 1n respect of the Shares in accordance with the respective rights of the
Members but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the Directors, and

the Directors may if they think fit recommend that no dividend be declared.

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Directors may if they think fit pay mnterim
drvidends 1n respect of the Shares 1f it appears to them that they are justified by the profits
of the Company having regard always to the profits of the Company available for
distribution

Save as otherwise provided by the rights attached to the Shares and this Article, all
doidends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts pard up on the Shares on
which the dividend is pard. Except as provided in this Article all dividends shall be
apportioned and pard proportionately to the amounts paid up on the Shares during any
portion or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend s paid, but, if any Share
is issued on terms providing that it shall rank for dividend as from a particular date, that
Share shall rank for dividend accordingly.

Any resolution declaring a dividend on Shares, whether a resolution of the Company n
general meeting or a resolution of the Dhirectors, may specify that the same shall be
payable to the persons regstered as the hoiders of the Shares at the close of businessona
particular date, notwithstanding that it may be a date prior to that on which the resclution
is passed and thereupon the dividend shall be payable to such persons in accordance with
their respective holdings so registered, but without prejudice to the nghts inter se i

respect of such dividend of transferors and transferees of any Shares

A general meetng declaring a dividend may, upon the recommendation of the Directors,
direct that it shall be satisfied wholly or partly by the distribution of assets and, where any
difficulty arises in regard to the distribution, the Directors may settle the difficulty and fix
the value for distribution of any assets and may determine that cash shall be patd to any
Member upon the footing of the value so fixed 1n order to adjust the rights of Members

and may vest any assets in trustees,
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Any dividend or other moneys payable in respect of a Share may be paid by any direct
debit, bank or other funds transfer system to the holder or person entitled to payment or
by any other method approved by the Board and agreed by the holder or person
entitled to payment including, without limutation. m respect of an uncertificated Share by
means of the relevant settlement system (subject to the facilities and requirements of such
system) If two or more persons are the holders of the Share or are recognised by the
Directors as Jomntly entitled to the Share the dividend or other moneys shall be sent to the
first Member named 1n the Regsster or to such person or persons entitled and to such
address as the Directors shall in their abselute discretion determine Every such payment
shall be a good discharge to the Company. Any joint holder or other person jountly
entitled to a Share as aforesaid may give receipts for any dividend or other monies

payable in respect of such Share

The Directors may deduct from any dividend or other momes payable to any Member or
other person entitled on or 1n respect of a Share all sums of money (if any) presently
payable by him to the Company on account of calls or otherwise 1n relation to any Shares

held by such Member or other person entitled

All unclaimed dividends may be invested or otherwise made use of by the Directors for
the benefit of the Company until claimed No dividends shall bear interest against the
Company The payment by the Directors of any unclaimed dividend or other monies
payable on or in respect of a Share into a separate account shall not constitute the

Company a trustee in respect thereof

Any drvidend which has rematned unclaimed for 10 years from the date when it became
due for payment shall, if the Directors so resolve, be forferted and cease to remam owing

by the Company.

The Company may, upon the recommendation of the Board, by Ordinary Resolution, direct
payment of a2 dividend to be satisfied wholly or partly by the distribution of assets and the
Board shall give effect to such resolution.

Capitalisation of Profits

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the holders of Shares may by Ordinary Resolution,
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upon the recommendation of the Directors, resolve that it 1s desirable to capitalise any

part of the amount for the time being

(a)  standing to the credit of any of the Company’s reserve accounts (including capital

O [eVenue reserve); or
(b)  standing to the credit of the profit and loss account, or

(c)  which s otherwise available for distribution to holders of Shares and not required

for payment of dividend on any Shares with a preferential nght to dividend,

and accordingly that such sum or sums be set free for distribution amongst the Members
who would have been entitled thereto if 1t had been distributed by way of dividend and in
the same proportion on condition that the same be not paid in cash but be applied erther
mn or towards paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on any Shares of that class
held by such Members respectively or 1n paying up in full unissued Shares of that class to
be allotied and disinbuted (credited as fully patd up) to and amongst such Members in the
proportion aforesaid, or partly 1n the one way and partly n the other, but the capital or
revenue reserve and any profits which are not available for distribution may, for the
purposes of this Article, only be applied in paying up umssued Shares to be allotted to
Members credited as fully paid up.

Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been passed the Directors shall make
all appropriations and applications of the undivided profits resolved to be capitalised
thereby, and all allotments and 1ssues of fully paid Shares, if any, and generally shall do
all acts and things required to give effect thereto with full power to the Directors to make
such provision by payment in cash or otherwise as they think fit in relation to Shares and
to authorise any person to enter on behalf of all the Members entitled thereto into an
agreement with the Company providing for the allotment to them respectively, credited as
fully paid up, of any further Shares to which they may be entitled upon such capitalisation
or (as the case may require) for the payment up by the Company on their behalf by the
application thereto of their respective proportions of the profits resolved to be capitalised
or of the amounts or any part of the amounts remaiting unpaid on their existing Shares,
and any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and binding on all such

Members.
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Capital Accounts

The Directors shall establish in respect of the Shares an account to be called the nominal
capital account and an account to be called the share premium account and shall carry to
the credit of such accounts from time to time the sums required to be credited thereto in

accordance with the provisions of these Articles

There shall be debited to the share premium account applicable to the Shares on the
redemption of a Share of that class the monies payable on redemption of such Shares in
the event and to the extent that the Directors do not exercise their discretion to pay such
sum in whole or 1n part out of the other sources permitted by Law attributable to that
Share

Reserve Acconnts

The Directors may establish a reserve account and before the declaration of a dividend on
any class of Shares may set aside any part of the profits of the Company and carry to the
credit of any reserve account such sums as they think proper which shall, at the discretion
of the Directors, be applicable for any purpose to which the profits or reserves may be
properly applied and pending such application may at the like discretion be employed in
the business of the Company and invested 1n such investments as the Directors may from

time to time think fit.
Accounts
The Directors shall cause to be kept proper accounts with respect to:

(a)  all sums of money received and expended in relation to the Company and the

matters in respect of which such receipt and expenditure takes place,
(b)  all sales and purchases in relation to the Company, and
(c)  the assets and liabihties of the Company

so as to enable the accounts of the Company and any report to Members to be prepared in
accordance with these Articles, the Law and (to the extent applicable} the AIM Rules for

Companies
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41.2

The books of account shall be kept at the Office and shall always be open to inspection
by the Directors No Member (other than a Director) shall have any right of inspecting
any account or book or document of the Company except as conferred by the Law or as

authonsed by the Directors or by Ordinary Resolution.

The Directors shall cause to be prepared in respect of the Company a profit and loss
account, balance sheet, statement of cash flows and a report made up to the Accounting
Dates and the Intennm Accounting Dates for the Company and such other dates as the
Directors may determine which in the case of the profit and loss accounts. balance sheets,
statement of cash flows and reports for the Company made up to the Accounting Date,
shall be audited, prepared in accordance with the Law and shall be laid before the

Company 1n general meeting

A printed copy of every account, balance sheet and report which are laid before the
Company 1n general meeting 1n accordance with Article 40 3 shali not less than fourteen
days prior to the meeting be delivered or sent by post to the registered address of every
person entitled to receive notices m accordance with Article 46 and a printed copy of
every account, balance sheet and report made up to each Intennm Accounting Date for the
Company shall be delrvered or sent by post to the registered address of every person
entitled to receive notices in accordance with Article 46 within three months of such
Accounting Date or [nterim Accounting Date (as the case may be) PROVIDED THAT
this Article shall not require a copy of these documents fo be sent to more than one of the

joint holders of any Shares.

Every account of the Directors when audited and approved by any general meeting shall
be conclusive except as regards any error discovered therein witinn three months next
after the approval thereof Whenever such an error 15 discovered within that period the

accounts shall forthwith be comrected and thereupon shall be conclusive
Audit

The Company shali at each annual general meeting appoint Auditors to hold office from

the conclusion of that meeting until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting

The first Auditors of the Company shall be appointed by the Directors at any tume before
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414

41.6

42

the first annual general meeting of the Company and the Auditors so appointed shall hold

office until the conclusion of that meeting

The Darectors may fill any casual vacancy in the office of Auditors but while any such

vacancy continues the surviving or continuing Auditors if any may act

The remuneration of any Auditors appointed by the Directors shall be fixed by the
Directors and of any Auditors appointed by the Company shall be fixed by the Company
at the annual general meeting at which such appointment shatl be made or in such manner

as such meeting may determine

The Auditors shall examine such books, accounts and vouchers as may be necessary for

the performance of their duties.

The Auditors shall make a report to the Members as to whether 1n their opinion the
financial statements give a true and fairr view and whether they have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 and other applicable
legislation and regulations In arnving at their opinion, the Auditors are required to
conswder the following matters, and to report on any n respect of which they are not

satisfied:

(a)  whether proper accounting records have been kept by the Company and proper
returns adequate for their andit have been received from branches not visited by
the Auditors (1f any);

(b}  whether the Company’s individual accounts are in agreement with the accounting

records and returns, and

() whether the Auditors have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of their knowledge and belef, they consider necessary for the purposes
of their audit

Destruction of Documents

The Company shall be entitled to destroy all instruments of transfer of Shares which have
been registered at any time after the expiration of ten years from the date of registration

thereof and all dividend mandates and notifications of change of address at any time after
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the expiration of six years from the date of recording thereof and it shali conclusively be
presumed 1n favour of the Company that every entry in the Register purporting to have
been made on the basis of an instrument of transfer or other document so destroyed was a
vahd and effective instrurnent duly and properly registered and that every other document
hereinbefore mentioned had been reflected 1n aceordance with the recorded particulars
thereof in the books or records of the Company PROVIDED ALWAYS that

()  the provisions aforesaid shall apply only to the destruction of a documnent 1 good
faith and wathout notice of any claim (regardless of the parties thereto) to which

the document might be relevant,

(b)  nothing herein contained shall be construed as imposing upon the Company any
liability 1n respect of the destruction of any such document earlier than as
aforesaid or in any other circumstances which would not attach to the Company

in the absence of this Article,

{c) references herein to the destruction of any document include references to the

disposal thereof 1n any manner.
Winding Up

If the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator shail, subject to the Law, apply the
assets of the Company in such manner and order as he thunks fit in satisfaction of

creditors’ claims.

The assets available for distribution among the Members shall then be applied in the

following priority

(a) firstly, in payment to the holders of the Shares of sums up to the amount paid up

thereon, and
(b)  secondly, in payment to the holders of Shares of any balance then remaining,
such payments being made 1n proportion to the number of Shares held

If the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator may with the authority of a Special

Resolution and any other sanction required by the Law, divide among the Members in

62



44

45

46

46,1

specie the whole or any part of the assets of the Company and whether or not the assets
shall consist of property of a single kind and may for such purposes set such value as he
deems fair upon any one or more class or classes of property and, subject to Article 43.2,
may deterrmne how such division shall be carned out as between the Members or
different classes of Members The liquidator may with the like authority vest any part of
the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of Members as the tiquidator shall
think fit and the liquidation of the Company may be closed and the Company dissolved
but so that no Member shall be compelled to accept any Shares in respect of which there

1s hability.
Indemnity

In so far as the Law allows, every present or former officer of the Company shall be
indemmfied out of the assets of the Company against any loss or liability mcurred by him
by reason of being or having been such an officer. The Directors may without sanction of
the Company 1n general meeting authorise the purchase or maintenance by the Company
for any officer or former officer of the Company of any such nsurance as is permitted by
the Law in respect of any liability which would otherwise attach to such officer or former

officer
Borrowing Powers

The Directors may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to
mortgage or charge 1ts undertaking, property and assets both present and future and
uncalled capital, or any part thereof, and to 1ssue debentures and other securities, whether
outright or as collateral security for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company or its

parent undertaking (1f any) or any subsidiary undertaking of the Company or of any third
party.

Takeover Provisions

The provisions of Articles 46 2 to 46.17 shall apply to the Company unless the Takeover
Panel has advised the Company (or a financial adviser to the Company) that the Company

15 subject to the Takeover Code.
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462 Subject to Articles 46 14 to 46 16, except with the consent of an Ordinary Resolution of

46

2

Independent Shareholders on a poll, when,

(a) any Mermber (or person acting in concert with such Member) acquires, whether in
a single transaction or by a series of transactions over a period of time, an interest
in Shares which (taken together with Shares 1n which such Member or persons
acting in concert with such Member are interested) carry 30% or more of the

voting rights of the Company; or

(b)  any Member, together with persons acting in concert with such Member, 15
interested in Shares which 1n the aggregate carty not less than 30% of the voting
rights of the Company but does not hold Shares carrying more than 50% of such
voting rights and such Member, or any person acting in concert wath such
Member, acquires an interest in any other Shares which increases the percentage

of Shares carrying voting nghts 1n which he 1s interested,

such Member (the “Offeror™) shall extend an offer, on the basis set out tn Articles 46 3
10 46 6, to the holders of all the 1ssued (and to be 1ssued) Shares 1o the Company An
offer will not be required under this Article 46.2 where control of the Company 1s
acquired as a result of a voluntary offer made materially in accordance with the
provisions of the Takeover Code (as 1f the Takeover Code applied to the Company) to all
holders of Shares. An offer will not be required under this Article 46 2 as a result of the
acquisition by a person of Shares upon the Company’s original admissionto AIM oras a
result of the exercise by a person (or, in respect of a corporate entity, a member of that
corporate entity’s Group) of warrants or options which were granted to such person upon
the Company’s onginal admission to AIM. For the purposes of this Article 46.2 “Group”
n relation to a corporate entity means that corporate entity’s subsidianes, its holding

company and any subsidianes of such holding company

An offer made pursuant to Article 46.2 must be conditional only upon the Offeror having
recerved acceptances in respect of Shares which, together with Shares acquired or agreed
to be acquired before or during the offer, will result in the Offeror and any person acting
in concert with 1t holding Shares carrying more than 50% of the voting nights of the
Company



46 4

46.5

46 6

46.7

46 8

An offer made pursuant to Article 46.2 must be 1n cash or be accompanied by a cash
alternative at not less than the highest price paid by the Offeror or any person acting 1n
concert with 1t for any interest in Shares during the 12 months prior to the date upon
which an announcement of that offer would have been requured had the Takeover Code
applied to the Company If, after the obligation to make an offer pursuant to Article 45.2
anses and before the offer closes for acceptance, the Offeror or any person acting n
toncert with it acquires any interest in Shares at above the offer price, 1t shall increase its
offer to not less than the highest price paid for the interest in Shares so acquired The cash
offer or the cash alternative must remain open after the offer has become or been declared
unconditional as to acceptances for not less than 14 days after the date on which 1t would

otherwise have expired

When an offer is made pursuant to Article 46 2 and the Company has convertible
securities outstanding, the Offeror must make an appropriate offer or proposal, on terms
equivalent to the offer made for Shares, to the holders of such convertible securities to

ensure that their interests are safeguarded.

Any offer required to be made pursuant to Article 46 2 shall be made on terms that would
be required by the then current Takeover Code, save to the extent that the Board
otherwise determines. In relation to any offer required to be made pursuant to Article
46.2, any matter which under the Takeover Code would fall to be determined by the
Takeover Panel shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion or by such

person appointed by the Board to make such determmation

No acquisition of any interest in Shares which would give rise to a requirement for an
offer pursuant to Article 46 2 may be made (and the Directors shall be entitled to refuse
to register any transfer of Shares effecting such acquisition) if the making or
implementation of such offer would or might be dependent on the passing of a resolution
at any meeting of shareholders of the Offeror or upon any other conditions, consents or

arrangaments

Nec nominee of an Offeror or persons acting 1n concert with 1t may be appomted as a
Duirector, nor may an Offeror or any persons acting in concert with it exercise the votes

attachung to any Shares until the relevant offer document has been posted
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46 11

46.12

Except with the consent of an Ordinary Resolution of Independent Shareholders on a
poll, Members shall comply with the requirements of the Takeover Code (as if the
Takeover Code applied to the Company) in relation to any dealings 1n any Shares and in
relation to their dealings wath the Company in relation to all matters Any matter which
under the Takeover Code would fall to be determined by the Takeover Panel shall be
determined by the Board in 1its absolute discretion or by such person appointed by the
Board to make such determination. Any notice which under the Takeover Code 1s
required to be given to the Takeover Panel shall be given to the Company at 1ts registered

office

Without limitation to the requirements of Article 46 9, at all tmes when the Company is
in an offer period each Member shali comply with the disclosure obligations set out 1

Rule 8 of the Takeover Code as if the Takeover Code applied to the Company

If at any time the Board is satisfied that any Member, having incurred an obligation under
Article 46 2 to extend an offer to the holders of all the 1ssued Shares (and any convertible
securities of the Company), shall have failed so to do, or that any Member is in defanit of
any other obligation imposed upon Members pursuant to this Article 46, then the Board
shall as soon as practicable by notice (2 "Direction Notice") to such Member and any
other Member acting in concert with such Member (together the “Defaulters”) direct

that:

fa)  in respect of the Shares held by the Defauliers (the "Default Shares") the
Defaulters shall not be entitled to vote at a general meeting etther personally or by
proxy or to exercise any other right conferred by membership n relation to

meetings of the Company,

(b)  exceptin a liquidation of the Company, no payment shall be made of any sums
due from the Company on the Default Shares, whether in respect of capital or
dividend or otherwise, and the Company shall not meet any hability te pay

interest on any such payment when 1t is finally paid to the Member; and
(¢}  no other distribution shall be made on the Default Shares.

The Board may at any time give notice cancelling a Direction Notice.
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46.14

46 15

The Company shall be entitled, without the requirement to obtain the consent of any
Member, to make all such announcements as would be required or permitted under the
Takeover Code (if the Takeover Code applied to the Company), notwithstanding that
such announcements may make reference to, or contain information about, Members or

persons acting in concert with Members

Where Shares or other secunties of the Company are charged as security for a loan and,
as a result of enforcement of such security, the lender incurs an obligation to make an
offer under Article 46,2, no such offer will be required if sufficient interests tn Shares are
disposed of within a period of 14 days to persons unconnected with the lender, so that the
percentage of Shares carrymng voting rights in which the lender, together with persons
acting i concert with it, is interested is reduced to below 30% 1n a manner satisfactory to
the Board (in its absolute discretion). In any case where arrangements are to be made
involving a transfer of voting rights to the lender, but which do not amount to
enforcement of secunty, no offer under Article 46 2 will be required if the lender satisfies
the Board (1n the Board’s absolute discretion) that such arrangements are necessary to
preserve the lender’s securtty and that the security was not gtven at a time when the
lender had reason to belicve that enforcement was likely. A recewver, hiquidatar or
administrator of a company, or any other insolvency or bankruptcy official. 1s not
required to make an offer under Article 46 2 when he acquires an interest in shares
carrying 30% or more of the voting nghts in the Company 1n his capacity as such, but

Article 46 2 shall for the avoidance of doubt apply to a purchaser from such a person

Where 1n the optnion of the Board the Company is 1n such a serious financial position
that the only way it can be saved is by an urgent rescue operation which involves the
13sue of new Shares to, or the acquisition of existing Shares by, the rescuer, without
approval by an Ordinary Resolution of Independent Shareholders, and which would
otherwise require the rescuer to make an offer pursuant to Article 46 2, the Board may

waive the requirements of Article 46 2 i such circumstances provided that exther:

(a) approval for the rescue operation by an Ordinary Resolution of Independent
Shareholders on a poll is obtained as soon as possible afier the rescue operation 1s

carried out; or
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(b)  someother protection for Independent Shareholders is provided which the Board

considers satisfactory in the circumstances

If, due to a bona fide inadvertent mistake, a person incurs an obligation to make an offer
under Article 46 2, the Board may waive the requirement to make such an offer 1f
sufficient interests in Shares are disposed of wathin a lirmited penod (being a maximum of
14 days) to persons unconnected with such person, so that the percentage of Shares
carrying voting nights in which the person, together with persons acting in concert with

him, is interested is reduced to below 30% in a manner satisfactory to the Board.
In construing this Article 46;

(a)  the words “acting in concert”, “control”, “interests” in secunties, “offer
period”, “voting rights” and any other words and expressions used in or defined

in the Takeover Code shall bear the same meanings given by the Takeover Code,

(b)  “Independent Shareholders” means the Members of the Company other than
any person who is (or may be) obliged to make an offer pursuant to Article 46 2

and persons acting in concert with him;

(c) for the avoidance of doubt, a reference to a “Member” shal] include a person who
becomes (or upon entry in the Register would become) a Member as a result of

any acquisition of an interest in Shares to which this Article 46 relates, and

(d)  anydecision to be made, or discretion to be exercised, by the Board shall be made
or exercised by the Board excluding any Director whe s (or may be) obliged to
make an offer pursuant to Article 46 2 or who 1s acting 1n concert with any

person who is (or may be) obliged to make such an offer
Naotices

Any notice to be given to or by any person pursuant to these Articles shall be 1n writing
or be given using Electranic Communications to an address for the tume being notified for
that purpose, to the person giving the notice, save that a notice calling a meeting of the

Directors need not be in writing or by Electromic Communication.

A notice may be given by the Company to any Member personally or by sending 1t exther
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47.3

by post to him at his registered address or to the address supplied by him to the Company
for the giving of notices to him or by sending 1t by facsimule to hum at any facsimile
number supplied by him to the Company specifically for the purpose of serving formal
notices on lum or by sending 1t by Electronic Communication to an address for the time

being notified to the Company by the Member for that purpose

Subject to the Law, the AIM Rules for Companies and to any other rules which the
Company 1s bound to follow, the Company may also send any notice or other document
pursuant to these Articles to a Member by publishing that notice or other document on a

website where:

(a)  the Company and the Member have agreed to his having access to the notice or

document on a website (instead of it betng sent to him);
(b)  the notice or docurnent 1s one to which that agreement applies,

(c)  the Member 15 notified (1n accordance with any requirements laid down by the
Law and, mn a manner for the tume being agreed between hum and the Company

for the purpose) of:
)] the publication of the notice or document on a website,
(i)  the address of that website; and

{i1)  the place on that website where the notice or document may be accessed,

and how 1t may be accessed, and

(tv)  the notice or document 15 published on that website throughout the
publication peniod, provided that, 1f the notice or document 15 published
on that website for a part, but not all of, the publication period, the notice
or document shall be treated as being published throughout that period if
the failure to pubhish that notice of document throughout that penod is
wholly attrsbutable to circumstances which 1t would not be reasonable to
have expected the Company to prevent or avoid For the purposes of this

Article ‘publication period” means a period of not less than 21 days,
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beginmng on the day on which the notification referred to in Article
47.3(c) 1s deemed sent.

474 A Member present, exther m person or by proxy, at any meeting of the Company or of the
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hoiders of any class of Shares in the Company shall be deemed to have recerved due

notice of the meeting and, where requisite, of the purposes for which it was called

Any notice shall be deemed to have been served on the second day following the date of
posting. In the case of service of any notice by facsimile such notice shall be deemed to
have been served immediately on transmission of such notice, A notice or other
document contained n an Electronic Communication shall be deemed to be served one
day after the ume it was sent or on the deemed notification to the Member of its
publication on a website Proof that a notice contained in an Electronic Communication
was sent in accordance with guidance 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Secretanes and

Administrators shall be conclusive evidence that the notice or document was served.,

A notice may be given by advertisement by being published 1n at least one United
Kingdom national newspaper and at least one daily newspaper circulated in Jersey and
shall be deemed to have been served before noon the day on which the advertisement

appears.

In proving service of any notice by post 1t shall be sufficient to prove that the notice was
properly addressed stamped and posted. In the case of service of any notice by facsimile it
shall be suffictent to prove receipt by the sender of a confirmed facsimule transmission

report.

A notice may be given by the Company to the joint holders of a Share by giving notice to

the joint holder named first in the Register in respect of the Share.

A nofice may be given to the guardian of a minor Member or to the curator appointed by
the Royal Court or other person appeinted by a court of competent junisdiction to
adnunister to the affairs of any Member of unsound mind or to the persons entitled to 2
Share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a Member by sending 1t through the
post 1n a prepaid letter addressed to such persons by name or by the title of guardian or

curator appointed by the Royal Court or other person appointed by a court of competent
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Jurisdichion to admimster to the affars of such Member of unsound mind or
representatives of the deceased or trustee of the bankrupt or by any like description at the
address supplied for the purpose by such persons Untd such an address has been
supplied, a notice may be given in any manner mn which it might have been given if the
Member in question had not been a munor or of unsound mind, or if the death or

bankruptcy of the Member in question had not occurred

Subject to the provisions of these Articles, notice of every general meeting shall be given
to every Member, to each Director and to such ather persons as the Directors shall at any

time and from time to time determine

For the purposes of serving notices of meetings or other documents, the Directors may
determine that the persons entitled to receive such notices or other documents are those
persons wha are entered on the Register at any time not more than 21 days before the date

of the dispatch of the notice or other document
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Circle Holdings plc

Business overview
For the year ended 31 December 2010

The core business of Circle Holdings plc (formerly Health Investment Holdings Limited) is providing heafithcare
services through its 50 1% ownership of Circle Health Limited ('Circle’) and through its 90% ownership of
Health Properties Limited (Health Properties’). Below is an overview of the history and strategy of these
businesses

Circle

Circle was founded out of a belief that the heaithcare sector needs mnovation to fransform the value equation
for patients, insurance providers and taxpayers In healthcare, lke any other professtonal service, value s
defined not just as pnce, but rather as quaty relative to price In heailthcare, quality 15 defined as clinical
outcome plus pahent experience This can be represented as a simple economic aquation

Value = Quality = Clinical Qutcomes + Patient Experience
Price Unit of Gost

Circle’s objective 1s 1o become the highest value provider in UK healthcare by offening the best possible clinical
outcomes and patient expenence at the Jowest possible prices To do so, we have focused relentlessly on
transforming ways of worling in haalthcare in two main areas -

t Changing incentives
Previously, the interests of clinicians, managers and patients have not been aligned because
accountability was geared towards remote layers of management in a top-down, hierarchical structure By
making everyone, from the consultants to the cleaners, owners in Circle, and allocating shares according
to an individual’s contribution, we have succeeded in aligning incentives to create value

n Designing and implementing a scientific operating model
The 'Circle Operating System' combines fronthne decisien making with an uncompromising focus on
quality

Heaith Properties

Health Properties is a property company which acquires sites, designs and constructs a new generation of
world-class healthcare facimes Health Properties and Circle are committed to transforming the patient
expanence thraugh a network of up to 30 compact, purpose-built, ligh-quality hospitals In addition, Heaith
Properttes is aiming to become an acknowledged globai leader in healthcare infrastructure development

Key strengths
= Circle Partnership Limited (the ‘Circle partnershup)

The Curcle partnership 1s 100 0% beneficially owned by consultants, employees and former employees The
Directors believe that the Cicle partnership encourages long term commitment by Circle Parners, promotes
greater efficiencies in operations by empowering front tine staff to effect changes in work practices and
incentvises Crrcle Consultants and employees to create long-term sharehoider value thal they can ulhimately
participate in



Circle Holdings plc

Business overview
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Key strengths (continued)
« A strong and diverse managemant team

Circle’s management team has worked for hospital operators and developers, medical msurance companies,
healthcare consultancies, the Department of Health and the NHS Clinical team members are senior and
respected members of therr professions Other members of the team have worked for major UK corporations and
mvestment banks

= Brand and market recognition

The Directors believe that Circle benefits from high pabent advocacy, key poltical posiboning and first-mover
advantage in the provision of NHS services

* Modarn new build independent hospitais designed to address current and fuure healthcare requirerments

» Operating model — The Circle Operating System

Circle aims to put healthcare professionals back m charge of healthcare through a system called the 'Circle
QOperating System’

Progress

Circle's unique clinrcian-led operating model has been successtully apphed and proven at Circle's day surgery
hosptal in Nothngham, which treats NHS patlents, and at its first independent hospital, CircleBath, whereby
chricians are empowered to achieve the greatest levels of patient care and best use of resources through co-
ownership and achive participabion in managing Circle’s operations

Circle’s day-surgery hospital in Nottingham 1s a Cabinet Office Pathfinder project Treatmng around 78,000
patients a year and employing over 700 NHS secanded staff, it 1s the largest outpattent and day surgery centre in
the UK and one of the largest in Europe In Nottingham, Circle has demonstrated the productivity gans that can
be achieved by NHS staff when they are given ownership and control to re-design services for the patients they
know best By applying its model of employee ownership and engagement, Circle introduced a new culture with
dramatic results an 18 0% compound productivity improvement since opening, at the same time as reducing the
number of patents requinng readmission to hve hmes better than the national NHS target, and patient
recommendation to 99 2% in 2010

Crrcle’s first new buitd hospital, CircleBath opened in March 2010 and was designed by the internationally
renowned architects Foster + Partners in conjunction with Circle to redefine patient expertence in UK healthcare
CircleBath has won a number of awards for best hospital bulding and best publc space natonally and
nternationally Locally sourced food 15 cooked daily by a chef who jomned CircleBath from a Michelin starred
restaurant and the front-of-house team were recruited and trained to offer a luxury hotel expenence 96 3% of
patlents treated in 2010 recommend the hospatal to famdy and friends, and therg has only been ons unplannad
pattient readmission to theatre out of nearly 13,000 treated since opening  CircleBath treats both private patients
and NHS patients, through NHS Choose and Book at NHS tanft prices

Circle 1s developing its second independent hosptal, CicleReading, which 1s expected to open in late 2042 and
also operates two independent climnics m Stratford and Windsor

Circle has also been awarded preferred bidder status to operate Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust
(Hinchingbrooke’) Hinchingbrooke 1s the first NHS hospital trust to be franchised i England and Circle was
granted preferred bidder status in November 2010 through a competitive tender
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We believe that this success 1s down ta Circle’s commitment to 1ts credo, the set of values and belefs that
underpins everytiing that staff do
Purpose

Our purpose is to build a great company dedicated to our patients

Parameters
We exclusively focus our efforts on

What we are passionate about
What we can become the best at
What principally drives our economic sustamnatnlity

Principles
Our actions are measured by success in meeting all our 3 core values

*  We are above all the agent of our patents We aim to exceed thelr expectations every time so that we earn
their trust and loyalty We sinve 10 continuously improve the quality and the value of the care we give our
patients

* We empower our peaple to do their best Our people are our greatest asset We should select them
attentively and invest in them passionately As everyone matters, then everyone who contributes should be
a Partner in all that we do  In return, we expect them to give our patients all that they can

¢ Woe are unrelenting in the pursuit of excellence We embrace mnovaton and learn from our mistakes We
measure everything we do and share the data with afl to judge Pursuing our ambition to be the best
healthcare pravider ts a never-ending process 'Gooed enough’ never is

Al Parsadoust Massoud Keyvan-Fouladi
Director Director
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The Directors present therr annual report and audited financial statements for Circle Holdings pic (formerly
Health Investment Holdings Limited) for the year ended 31 December 2010 On 13 May 2011, with effect from 16
May 2011, the Directors passed a resolution changing the Company's name fram Health Investment Holdings
Limited to Circle Holdings plc

The Group financial statements consclidate the financial statements of Circle Holdings plc (the ‘Cornpany") and
its subsidiary undertakings (‘'subsidianes’) and share of joint venture rasults, {together the 'Group”) drawn up to
31 December 2010

Internationat Financial Reporting Standards transition

These financial statements represent the first annual financial statements of the Group prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards {'[FRS'), as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (1ASB') and adopted for use in the European Union Until 31 December 2009, the Group prepared is
financtal statements under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP) The Group's transition
date to IFRS 15 1 January 2009 and the impact of transiion is a £6,570,000 decrease in shareholder's equity,
mainly due to the recogmition of the Group’s interest rate swaps at farr value Reconciliabons between previously
reported UK GAAP numbers and those under IFRS are set out in note 33 to the consolidated finangial
statemants

Principal activities and review of the business

The Group 1s an emerging previder of healthcare services in the UK, treating pnvately msured, self-pay and
National Health Service {NHS') patients The Group's business strategy 1s founded on the creation of the ‘Circle
partnership’, compnsing a group of consultants, General Practitioners {'GPs") and healthcare professionals The
"Circle partnership' 1s built on the belief that the best way to deliver great patient care is to empower the doctors,
nurses and everyone who works n the hospitals, treatment centres and clinics, to put patients’ needs first

The Group currently operates five faciliies, comprising a new private hospital In Bath which opened in March
2010, two Independent Sector Treatment Cenlres (ISTCs') in Mottinghamn and Burion, and specialty clnics in
Stratford and Windsor

The new hospital in Bath {*Cucle Bath Hospital’) 1s a ground breaking design by Foster + Partners and has won
several awards, including the Bntish Construction Industry 'Best Building Project’ in the £3 0 - £50 ¢ million
category n 2010 The hospital delivers a great improvement to the patient experience and the quality of care in
the Bath region  The Group s continummg fo build and commission a network of modem, high-quality hospitals
and cinics and in December 2010 secured funding for a new £50,000,000 hospital in Reading (‘Circle Reading
Hospital'}

The Group has a strong track record of operating NHS facilibies, which have been awarded ‘Pathfinder status by
the Cabinet Office, and been designated as ‘Trafblazers’ for the rest of the public sector, helping the
Govemnment to iearn fram the front-ine how innovation and entrepreneurship can be released through employee
ownership  Building on this, the Group has been chosen as the preferred bidder to run Hinchingbrooke
Healthcare NHS Trust ('Hinchingbrooke Hospdal) in Huntingdonshire  This 1s a ground breaking maove and the
Group 1s seeking lo explore further opportunities within the NHS
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Principal activities and review of the business (continued)
Key mghlights

The companies in the Group expenenced significant growth in 2010 with revenues growing by 18.1% to
£76,472,000 from £64,182,000 in 2008 Other key developments in 2010 inciude the following events

. Circle Bath Hospital opened in March 2010 and has treated 7,232 patients since opening, eaming
£4,918,000 of roevenue Customer feedback has shown 995% of patients rate the services as
good/excellent.

. Nations Healthcare {Mottingham) Limited is in its second full year of trading and has shown significant
growth, with the number of patients treated increasing by 25 9% to 77,666 and revenue increasing by
37 8% to £48,000,000 (2009 £34,896,000)

«  Nations Healthcare (Burton) Limited panent volumes continued to grow dunng the year by 20 4% to 37,484
(2009 31,132}, however due to the numimum take contract and reduction in traiming ncome, revenue
decfined by 7 0% to £16,781,000 (2008 £18,061,000)

. Funding was agreed to build Cicle Reading Hospital in December 2010 from the real estate investment
arm for BP's pension fund, Ropemaker Properties Limited ('Ropemaker’)

. In November 2010 the Group was chosen as the preferred bidder for the contract to run Hinchingbrooke
Hospital iIn Huntingdonshire for 7-10 years with the contract due to be signed in June 2011

. Additional equity investment by current shareholders of £12,500,000 during the year, to fund expansion

The Group's key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows

2010 200¢
£'000 £'000 Change
Group turnover 76,472 64,182 191%
Operating loss (33,971) (19,762) (77 0)%
Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation {EBITDA)
hefore exceptional items (note 4) {15,696} {(8,542) (83 8)%
Total aperating loss before exceptional items (note 4) (19,804) (13,180} (51 2)%
Loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent (34,290) (21,181) {61 9)%
Met (babilities) / assets {5,223) 20,293 (125 7Y%
2010 2008
Number Number Change
Day case and inpatient procedures 45,227 37,383 21 0%
Outpatient procedures 80,622 62,486 29 0%
Average number of employees 633 384 64 8%
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Principal activities and review of the business (continued)
Key highlights (continued)

Group turnover increased by 19 1% from £64,182,000 to £76,472,000, pnmanly as a resuit of the opening of
Circle Bath Hospital n March 2010 and growth in Nations Healthcare (Nottingham) Limited

Net assets decreased by 124 5% due to losses for the year, partially offset by the 1ssue of shares to exishng
investars which in tatal raised £12,500,000

The fotal average number of employees in the Group increased durnng the year to 633, prnmanly reflecting the
opening of the new Circle Bath Hospital This has been fully staffed for the whole year

Exceptional items in the year of £15,067,000 (2009 £6,602,000) consists of the following

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
o Impawment of property, plant and equipment 9,576 -
s  Imparrment of goodwill 2,845 334
. Share-based payments in respect of warrants 1ssued 3,354 4,169
o Net (reversat of) / increase m provision for onerous leases (367) 1,299
s (Gam}/ioss on disposal of assets (443) 1,993
s Warrants issued for nil consideration - 1,430
. Profit on disposal of investment in subsidiary undertaking - (2,901)
. Other exceptional costs 102 258

15,067 6,602

Please seg note 4 of the Group financial statements for further details of the exceptional tems isted above
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Principal activities and review of the business (centinued)
Graup Segmental reporting structure

All Other
Segments and
Unallocated Items

Circle

Independent Circle NHS

Key business Units:
» Circle Bath Hospital

= Circle Stratford Climc

« Clrcle Windsor Clinic

= Gircle Head Office

Key business Units:

+ Natlons Healthcare Naltingham
- Nations Healthcare Burton

* Natlans Healthcare Bradiord

« Nations Healthcare Head Oftfice

Key business Units

* Health Properties

« Health Properties Bath (JV}
~ Health Properiies Reading

« Health Praperties Edinburgh

= Healih Propertles Manchesler
« Circle Holdings ple

A review of the key segmental operating units i1s as follows
Circle Independent

The operating units within the Circle Independent segment are grouped together based on the fact they are
privately-owned chnics and hospitals

e« Cyrcte Hospital {Bath) Lirmied {'Circle Bath Hospital)

. Circle Clirnes Limited ('Circle Cliruc Stratford'}

«  Windsor Hand Surgery Limited ('Circle Climic Windsor’)

o  Circle Health Limited ('Circle Head Office)

Circle Bath Hospital was successfully opened in March 2010 Volumes grew rapidly month an month
throughout the year and in total 7,232 daycase, impatients and outpatients have been treated Growth 15
expected to continue, driven by the introduction of new partners and mereasing the number of specialties
offered to both private and NHS patients

Patient numbers have grown substantially at Circle Hospital Bath and by 67 4% at Circle Clirie Stratford, but
have dropped by 1 0% at Circle Clinic Windsor

Segment revenue grew by 389 8% to £6,000,000 (2009 £1,225,000) primarnly due to the opering of the
Clrcle Bath Hospital, which accounted for £4,918,000 of the revenue increase

Operating losses for the segment were impacted by the start up operating costs in Circle Bath Hospital, one-
off exceptional items and increased Head Office costs to support growth operations This resulted in a
249 5% increase in gperating loss to £34,576,000 (2009 £8,892,000)
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Principal activities and review of the business (continued)
Circle NHS

The operating units within the Circle NHS segment are NHS-sponsored ISTC contracts  Tha statutory entities
included within this segment are the following

= Nations Healthcare (Nothingham) Limited ('Nations Healthcare Nothngham')
» Nations Heaithcare (Burton) Limited ('Nations Healthcare Burton')
o Nations Healthcare {(North Bradford) Limited ('Natfons Healthcare Bradford')

o Nations Healthcare Limited ('Nations Healthcare Head Office’)

The Nottingham Treatment Centre ts one of the biggest independent treatment centres in Europe, providing
services including Orthopaedic Surgery, General Surgery, Endoscopy, Digestve Diseases, Gynaecology and
Dermatology A Deed of Yanation (‘DoV') was signed dunng the year to compensate for delays in the onginal
start date of the contract and changes to the charges received under the contract

Both daycase patent and outpatient numbers have increased durng the year at both the Notttngham and
Burton Treatment Centres

The five year contract lo run the Bradford Treatment Centre came to an end in January 2010 and was
extended by five months until the end of June 2010 when the existing contractual arrangements were wound
down Due to the cessation of the contract, the number of daycase and diagnostic patents reduced
significantly during the year

Segment revenue grew by 12 1% to £70,416,000 (2009 £62,790,000) primanly due to significant growth in
patient velumes at the Nottingham Treatment Centre, which has now been open for two full years

Operating profits for the segment increased by 204 1% to £4,316,000 (2009 operating loss £4,145,000)
Overhead costs in the Nottingham Treatment Centre are fixed and the significant increase (n pahent volumes
have consequently driven up the profit margins. in addiian, a reduction in the patient volumes and operating
costs in the Bradford Treatment Centre was combined with constant minimum monthly take revenue to
produce a further improvement on: the segment profit margins.
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Principal actiities and review of the business (continued)

All Other Segments and Unallocated items

The operating segmants within this segment are the property companles and the head office entihes not
involved 1n the operation of hospitals or treatment cenires

The Health Properties Limited group (‘Health Properties group’) consists of 18 companies and has been
developing a new programme for buiding hospitals wttun a shortened time frame by utibsing standard busld
components manufactured off site for a reduced cost The Circle Reading Hospital will be the first build to
benefit from this new methodology The major statutory entities included within this segment are the
following

s Health Properties Ltd (Health Properties’)

¢  Health Properties (Reading) Limited (‘Health Properties Reading')

. Health Properties (Edinburgh) Limited {Health Properties Edinburgh’

s Health Properties (South Manchester) Limited ("Health Properties Manchester’)
. Health Properties {Bath) Limited {Health Properties Bath') Joint Venture

»  Cuwcle Holdings plc {the ‘Company”)

Funding of £50,000,000 for the land, design and construction of the Circle Reading Hospital bullding was
agreed in December 2010 from the real estate mvestment arm for BP's penston fund, Ropemaker As a
resuit, assets under construction held i Circle Reading Hospital were sold to Repemaker Heaith Properties
Management Limited ('Health Properhes Management') will continue to provide the tenant liaison service for
the construction of the new hospitat Ropemaker has signed an agreement to lsase the hospital bullding to
Circle Reading Haspital for 25 years

Approval has been ganed to construct an 80 bed hospital in Edinburgh  The purchase of the land 1s financed
through a £7,380,000 term faciity prowided by Aliied Insh Bank ("AIB") which is due for repayment in June
2012 and a mezzanine debt of £2,500,000 provided by Jamas Caird Asset Management Limited ('JCAM')
which was repaid in May 2010

Funding for a hospital to be built on a five acre site in south Manchester 15 expected to be secured in 2011,
with the commencement of on-site construction to begm in early 2012

The construction of the Circle Bath Hospital building, a Foster + Paritners designed hospital, was completed
on 5 Octaber 2009 and the company entered into a 25 year iease with Circle Bath Hospital This construction
project was delivered on time and to budget with the hospital opeming during March 2010 following the
commissioring of the facility The Circle Bath Hospital bulding has won several awards, including the Bribsh
Construction Industry ‘Best Building Project’ in the £3 0 - £50 0 million category in 2010

In March 2008, Health Properties entered nto a jomnt venture agreement with LB UK RE Haldings Limited {in
admimistration) (‘Lehmans’} regarding Health Properties Bath, which 1s accounted for as a joint venture
During 2009 the Group sold 58 1% of its shareholdng in Health Properties Bath to Health Estates bimited
(‘Health Estates Fund") for a cash constderation of £2,000 plus a transfer of a shareholder loan of £1,798,000
at par for cash

10
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Principal activities and review of the business (continued)

The Health Properties group has achieved outline planning consent on sites 1n Manchester, Birmingham,
Tunbndge Wells, Ashford, Warwck, Weybridge, and Plymouth On these seven sies and a site i
Bournemouth, Health Properties group has land deposits totaling £1,585,000 on 30 § acres of land with
an acquisifion cost of £34,043,000 On two stes, Ashford and Warwick, the last coniract date for
commencement of works has passed leading to rnisks in the recoverability of the land deposits totalling
£264,000 and the nghts to purchase the land However, discussions with vendors are positive Land 1s
under negotiation for sites in Weybnidge, Southampton, and Bristol

In recogrition of the risks surrounding the financing of all costs expended to date, the Group 1s holding
assets under constructton with an historic cost of £1,712,000 at therr fair value of £635,000 The Directors
are confident that remaining asset values are held at an appropnate level

Future developments

Further funding 1s being sought for the next hospitals in the build programme from pension funds, equity
investors and a number of leading banks

Operationally, the intention dunng the coming year 1 to increase the patient valumsas treated at each of
the operating facihties, raising the quality of care provided and ensuring that all faciliies are of a world
class standard. The gngmal five year Burton ISTC contract, due for renewal in July 2011, 1s not being
renewed and the running of the treatment centre 18 returming fo the local Pnmary Care Trust (‘PCT') The
Group has been awarded Any Willing Provider ("AWP’) contracts in the Burton area and 1s pursuing other
locations from which to operate

Under the preferred bidder status awarded to run Hinchingbrooke Hospital in Huntingdonshire for 7-10
years, the current plans are to sign the contract in June 2011 and for the contract to commeance 60 - 90
days later

Principal risks and uncertainties

. Medical services

As with all medical providers, chnical rnisk 1s a major consideration The Circle group has an Integrated
Carporate Governance structure which is chaired by the Medical Director, Massoud Keyvan-Fouladr, who
also sits on the board of the Company This Integrated Corporate Governance structure includes senior
staff across the operational, climcal and central support teams Each hospital site has its own local
governance structure, whilst a team of chmical care quality spectahists 1s dedicated to developing up to
date and consistent policies across all sites Lecal govermnance commitiees work to a ngorous assurance
framework, manage day to day clinical nsks through a risk register, provide appropnate trainng fo staff
and consultants and report therr findings to the Circle group's Integrated Governance Commuttes This
committee in turn reports to the boards of the relevant Circle group companies, as appropnate

Addihonally, the Crrcle group’s hospitals, clinics and treatment centres are subject to Care Quaity
Commussion {'CQC’) reviews on a ragular basis, including a review of training and risk management
procedures

. Government policy and regulatory risk

There are risks that peliical or policy changes mean that the number and size of contracts awarded to the
Group are diminished and that fewer services provided by the Group are contracted. New regulations may
be introduced which could have an adverse effect on the Group's operatonal and compliance costs [n
additon, the Group relies on the abihity and willingness of government-funded bodies such as PCTs and
NHS Trusts to pay for the Group's services

11
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)
«  Risk to reputation

The Group provides high quality medical care that 1s backed up by clinical governance Reputational risk
15 the risk that the Group provides medical care that 15 not of a sufficiently high quality, resulting in patient
or customer dissatsfaction and negative publtcity

Financial risk management

The Group's operations expose & to a varety of financial risks that include price nsk, credit risk, liquidity
risk, contract nsk, cash flow nsk and interest rate nsk The Group seeks to imit the adverse effects of the
above nisks on the financial perfarmance of the Group by memitoring ievels of debt finance and the related
finance costs, and by matching the risks of the financing with the risks and return profiles of the assets
The nisks are monitored by senior management throughout the year via monthly reviews of operational
performance, cash flows, levels of indwidual debt instruments and overall debt ievels.

Due to the natura of the two current manthly mirumum take Independent Sector Treatment Centrs {'ISTGY)
contracts with the Department of Health {'DoH") in Nations Healthcare Nottngham and Nations Healthcare
Burton, there s no matenal pnce or credit nsk exposure for the compames operatng in the Mations
Healthcare Group

. Price nsk

While the Group has a number of long-term contracts contarning fixed indexation provisions, the
Group generally sesks to price contracts at levels that take account of increasing prices and, where
appropriate, establish contract terms that enable revenues to be adjusted as a result of any future
increasing price levels As the volume of private patents 1s aniicipated to ncraase, the Group will be
ncreasingly subject to pricing changes from private insurance companies

+ Credit nsk

Most revenues anse from msured patients' business and the NHS Insured patients give nse to trade
recewvables which are mawmnly due from large nsurance institutions that have high credd worthiness
Credit control procedures are designed to ensure that contracted revenue is collected according to
agreed terms

s  Liquidity risk

Liguidity nisk 15 the nsk that a Group entty wifl encounter difficulty in meeting obligattans assoctated
with financial iabilines The Group aims to mitigate hguidity nsk by robustly managing cash
generation across 1ts operations and by applying cash collectlon targets throughout the Group
Current cash projections show the need for fundraising to provide ongoing working capital and to
meet future growth plans

=  Cash flow risk and interest rate risk

Gash flow risk 15 the exposure 1o vanability of cash flows assooiated with a recogmised asset or
habilty, such as future mterest payments on a varable rate debt. The Group manages this nisk,
where significant, by mierest rate swaps and long-term debis, where appropnate Updated
projections and forward plans on raising funds are prepared Operatonal cash flow nsks are
managed through detaled budgeling and thght cost control and should the need anse significant
costs savings can be made n the short term by reducing Head Office costs

12



Circle Holdings plc

Directors' report
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Financial risk management

. Contract nsk

Contract risk 1s the risk that the Group is unable to renew the NHS contracts at the end of therr fixed
tenure The Group aims to mitigate this risk by maintaining good relationships with contracting parties
and actwely pursuing contract renewals / extensions ahead of ime

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

It 1s the Group and Company’s policy to abide by the payment terms agreed with suppliers wherever it 15
sansfied that the supplier has provided goads and sennces in acgordance with agreaed terms and conditions
A number of significant purchases and commitments under cperating leases are paid by direct debit At 31
December 2010, the Group and Company had the following equivalent days of purchases outstanding

2010 2009

(days) (days)

Group days §1.5 535
Company days 80 24

At 31 December 2010 trade creditors in the Group and Company are £9,992,000 and £16,000 respectively
(2008 £10,773,000 and £3,000)

Results and dividends

The loss for the year after taxanon aitributable io equity holders of the parent amounted to £34,290,000
(2009 £21,181,000) The Diractors do not recommend the payment of any dwvidends (2009 £nil).

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis which assumes that the Group will
continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future Sees note 2 to the inancial statements

Directors

The Directors who served durmg the year and up to the date of sigming the financial statements were as
follows

Massoud Keyvan-Fouladi

Bobert Aylffe ** (resigned 23 May 2011)
Simon Kelly “* {resigned 23 May 2011}
Al Parsadoust {appointed 23 May 2011)
Paglo Pien (appointed 23 May 2011)

**Directors employed by Capita Fiduciary Group Limited, a management and fiducrary services company
based in Jersay

in s artcles, the Company has granted an indemnity to every present and former officer in respect of
proceedings brought by third parties and there 15 an express indemnity of Directars from the Company in the
shareholders agreement The Company has procured habilty insurance tor ail directors and officers of the
Company and all Group companigs There are no outstanding claims or provisions as at the balance shaet
date

13
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Events after the reporting penod
' Costam Limited construction contract

Due to construction delays and building design changes on the Nottingham Treatment Centre dunng
2007, addibonal costs were incurred n the completion of the building The prmary bulding contractor,
Costain Limted ('Costain’), brought a legal cfaim i 2010 for £1,200,000 of additional costs An
adjudicatron was held in January 2011 and an amount of £543,000 was awarded and paid to Costain as
settlement of the claim Subsequent to this, Costain brought a second clam aganst the Group for
£1,200,000 for which costs of 2700,000 are included in the financial statements During March 2011, the
Group agreed to pay Costain £700,000 on 1 June 2011 m full and final settlemsant of thes clauim

n Extensian of Allied Irish Bank ('AlB"} loan

At 31 December 2010, Heaith Properties Edinburgh had a loan fagility for £7,380,000 from AIB with g
matunty date of 31 March 2011 During March 2011, an extension untl 30 June 2012 was agreed on
the faciity Interest s LIBOR + 4 0% and the entire amount of wnterest payable untl due date will be
paid in advarice

(1] Waiver of GE equipment lease covenant breach

The Group was in breach of certain financial covenants i the GE equipment lease at 31 December
2010 During March 2011, the Graup recetved a waiver of all evants of default and breaches from GE
by means of a Deed of Amendment and Waiver

iv Waiver of JCAM (i) foan faeility covenant breach

The JCAM (i) {(note 17} faciity was i default at year end due to (1) a cross-default tnggered by an
undertying default under tha GE equipment leasa above and (u) the delivery of secunty by certa Graup
companigs in breach of the negative pledge in the JCAM facility agreement Dunng May 2011, the
Group recewed a wawver of all events of default and breaches from JCAM The waiver is conditional on
the Group completing a raise of a specified amount of funds from external wwestors, which was
completed as detailed below In addition, the repayment date of tha faciity was extended from 29
August 2012 to 28 February 2013

In May 2011 it was agreed with JGAM that If a listing of the Company on AlM does not occur by the end
of 2011 and the Vinci loan agreement of £5,000,000 (see (x} below) 1s repaid i full out of Group funds
that JCAM will be entitled to recewe a mortgage over the Manchester land fram Health Propertiss
(South Manchester) Limited to the extent of such Group funds

In June 2011 it was further agreed with JCAM that they will receve a potenhal prepayment of
£4.100,000 on the later of two business days after () a listing on AlM and (1) the repayment i full of the
Vinci loan agreement The £4,100,000 prepayment will ba reduced by the amount that the Vinci loan
agreement is repaid using funds from within the Group rather than from a third party financing

v March 2011 equity ravse, warrant repricing and shareholder restructure

Dunng March 2011, existing shareholders committed to provide additional equity of £20,000,000 fo fund
the Group Of this amount, £7,500,000 has already been recewed with a further £12,500,000 to be
received in the evant that there is no Initial Public Offering (IPO’) by 3t May 2011 Furthermore, the
axisting nvastors weara 1ssuad a set of warrants to subscrbe for an additonal pumber of ardinary shares
at nominal value so that the subscription price under the equity commitment is adjusted to be,
effectively

1) if there is an {PO before 31 May 2011, 90 0% of the PO prece, and
2 if no IPO by 31 May 2011, £20 00

14
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Events afler the reporting penied (continuad)
v March 2011 equily raise, warrant repricing and shareholder restructure (continued)

The subscription agreement and the warrant iInstrument were subseguenlly amended (see {x1) below)
Health Trust (Jersey} undertook, as parl of the same fransaction, to transier 3 0% of the fully diluted
number of shares in the Company to certain austing shareholders in return for a 8 0% holdig in Circle
Partnership A further consequence of the addihonal equity funding by the existing invastors 15 that ail
autstanding share warrants, priced at either £51 55 or £29 84, are repriced to £20 80 or the price of the
IPO, if it occurs pror to 31 May 2011

Wi Nations Healthcare Burton contract

in Warch 2011, the Group was notified that the originai Burton ISTC coatract, due for renewal n July
2011, would not be renewed and that the treatment facility wou'd be returned to Burton Hospltals NHS
Foundation Trust {the ‘Trust}

As part of the hand over of the Burtan operatians to the Trust, the Group has entered o 3 'Sale of
busmess and mobihsation mitigation and business know-how services' agreement {the ‘Agreement’) in
order to ensure the orderly ransfer of operations upon the expration of the ISTC contract on 11 July
2011 Under the agreement, Nations Healthcare Burton will transfer all operating assets and prowde
traning and mobilisation services to ensura the Burion Treatment Gentre is able to continue operating
over the transition penod The Agreement stipulates that Mattons Healthcare Burton wili be pad
£2,500,000 fess any residual liabilily payable to the Trust under the Agreement The Group has also
served notlce under the ongmal master agreement with GE to purchase the leased assels, which will be
transferred o the Trust on 11 July 2011

vii Change of name and tax status

On 13 May 2011, the Directors passed a resolution changing the Company's name from Health
tnvesiment Holdings Limited to Circle Hoidings pic This came into aifect as of 16 May 2011 1n agdition,
on 17 May 2011, a reselution was passed to bring the Directors onshore, thus changing the tax resdency
of the Company from Jersey to the UK

vin  Aithorised prelerenge share capital

On 1 June 2011, the sharsholders passed a resolution adopting new Arlicles of Asseoiation ahead of
Admission These articles, among ather lems, raclassified the share capital of the Company nto a single
class of ordinary shares, thereby eimunatng the previously authorlsed praference sharas Howaver,
Admisslon does not poour by 30 September 2011, the ordinary shares issued 1t November 2010 (and the
wamrant shares 1ssuable pursuant o the warrant instrument from the same transaction) will conver! Into
preference shares

ix Winding up of Heaith Properties share scheme

On 3 May 2011, a decision was taken by the Direclors to take steps o wind up the Health Properties
share scheme with the Intention that any shares being held on s behalf ba ransierred 1o EES Trusiees
internatronal Limited 1t 15 the itenton that the participants congermned will be offered shares n Circle
Partnership, pursuant to the terms aof Circle Partnership share scheme
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Directors’ report
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Events after the reporting period {continued)

x Purchase of South Manchester land

The Group, through a property SPVY, Health Properties {South Manchester) Limited (‘Health Properties
Manchester) dentified a site in Manchester and mncurred costs of £1,700,000 comprising deposits of
£900,000 and development costs of £300,000 In May 2011, Health Properties Manchester entered inta an
agreement to buy the land from Silversword Properties Limited far approximately £7,200,000 Of this amaount,
£900,000 has already been paud n the form of a fand deposit, £5,000,000 has been lant by Vingi to Heaith
Properties Manchester secured against the land, and £200,000 has been pawd n cash The remaimng
£1,100.000 will be pard during July 2011 The £5,000,000 loan from Vinci 1s & short term facility which will be
repaid on 23 December 2011 and will incur interest at a rate of 9 0% + LIROR

xi May 2011 equity raise, warrant repricing and shareholder restructure

In May 2011, agreement was rgached with Cdey Eurapean Ing and BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund
Limited to provide equity of £15,000,000 and £5,000,000 respectively gnor to the [PO in order to provde
further funding for the business over the next 18 months The subscrption price was £11 15 per share,
however warrants were also ssued which are exercisable at nomlnal value into the number of warrant shares
equal 1o 30 0% and 10 0%, respectivaly, of the warrants issued pursuant to the November 2610 and March
2011 warrant instrument In addibon, Health Trust (Jersey) will receve an additional 4.0% of the equity In
Circle Partnerstup It was funther agreed that the IPC completion date of 31 May 2011, as contemplated in (v}
above, would be extended to 30 June 2011, and that the effactive subscription price of the March 2011 equity
commitment in scenario 2 of {v) above would be reduced to £8 72

XN Intention to tioat on Alternative Investment Market

On 25 May 2011, the Group announced its itention to ist on the Alternative lnvestmeant Market, a market
operated by the London Stock Exchange pic This intention forms part of the Group's overall fundraising
strategy

xH Contingent funding arrangement

On 13 June 2011, some of the existing shareholders (BlackRock Investment Management (UK} Limlted, the
Lansdowns funds (note 20} and BlueCrast Venture Finance Master Fund Limited) agreed ta subscrbe for
addiional ordinary shares in the Company at a total subscniphion price of up to £2,460,000 on 27 June 2012
(or such other date as they agree with the Company) at a price per ordinary share that 's 90 0% of the
closing price of the ordinary shares an 13 Jung 2012, subject to a mimmum price per ordinary share of
£0 90, provided that certain capital raisings or refinancings have nol occurred by 20 June 2012
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Donations

The Group made chantable donations totaling £14,600 (2009 £3,100) during the year to a number of
chantable organisations within the UK A donation of £11,000 was made to the Teenage Cancer Trust, to
match a similar donatien by a group of Nattingham orthapasdic surgeons.

No donafton was made to any political party registered in the UK under the Political Partres, Elections and
Referandums Act 2000 by erther the Company or its substdiaries

Empiloyze involvement

The Group operates a group-wide framework for employee information and consultation and actvely
encourages employees to come forward with ther views and suggestons on how performance can be
improved An internal bulletin 1s regularly produced and distnbuted among all employees, updating them an
developments within the group, in addibon to an annual conference which all staff are encouraged to attend
In addiion management actively communicates to all group employees via electronic mall Communications
from the Human Resources depariment notify all staff of any changes to personnel dunng the year

The Group encourages the involvement of employees i the perfarmance of the Group through participation
in the share scheme operated by Circle Partnership, a related company incorparated in the British Virgin
Islands, which holds 49 9% of the share capital of Circle Health The remaining 50 1% of the share capital of
Circle Health 15 owned by Circle International pic {‘Cwcle International’), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group For further details see note 21 1o the financial statements

A separate share scheme 1s operated by Health Properties Employee Benefit Trust (Health Properties share
scheme') which holds 10 0% of Health Properties The remaining 90 0% of Health Properties 1s owned by the
Company For further details see notes 21 and 32 to the financial statemants

Disabled employees

The Group gives full consideration fo applications for employment from disabled persons where the
candidate’s particular aphitudes and abilites are consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the
Jjob Opportunities are available to disabled employees for training, career developrment and promotion

Where existing empioyees become disabled, it 1s the Group policy to provide continuing employment
wherever practicable in the same or an allernative position and to provide appropriate traming to achieve this
aim

Envirenmental policies

The services provided by the Group have mnimal environmental impact However, the Board believes that
good environmental practices support the Group's strategy by enhancing the reputation of the Group and
mproving the efficiency of running hospitals Conseguently the Group continues to put environmental
responsitmliies hugh on the agenda The next hosprtal in the newbuild programme 1s scheduted in Reading
and 1s planned to be the most energy effictent hospital in the UK
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Statemnent of directors' respongbilities

The Directors are responsibie for preparng the financial statements in accordance wath apphicable law and
regulations

Directors are required by Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 o prepare financial statements for each financial year
The Directors have slected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with international
Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS") and the Company financial statements 0 accordance with United
Kingdormn Generally Accepted Accounting Prnciples (UK GAAPY), as well as apphcable law Under company
law the dirgctors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and the profit or loss of the Group for that perod
In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are requered to

- select suitable accouniing policies and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether applicable IFRS and UK accounting standards as appropnats, have been followed,
subtect to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless It is mappropriate to presume the
Company and the Group will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate aceounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group's and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy, at any time, the financial
posrtton of the Group and the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with
Companies (Jarsey) Law 1891 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the preventian and detection of fraud and other irregulariies

Disclosure of information to auditors
Sa far as the Directors are aware at the time the report 1s approved

- there i1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

- each Director has taken ali the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
hmmself or harself aware of any relevant audit mformation and to establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of the mfarmation

Independent auditors

PneewaterhouseCaoapers LLP have wndicated ther willingness to cantinue w office A resclutian concecrung
their reappomtment will be praposed at the Annual General Meeting

On behalf of the board N ' /)_
Al Parsadoust /- Massoud Keyvan-Fouladi
DOirector l Director

June 2011 CUW;
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Circle Holdings pic

We have audited the Group financial statements of Circle Holdings plc (formerly Health Investment
Holdings Limited) for the year ended 31 December 2010 which compnse the consolidated income
staternent, the conselidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of changes n equity, the
consobdated statement of cash flows and the related notes The financial reporiing framework that has
been apphed m ther preparation 1s apphcable faw and International Financal Reporting Standards as
adopted by the Eurgpean Union

Respective responsibiiities of directers and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilties Statement set out on page 17 the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being sansfied that they give a true
and far view Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law ard International Standards on Auditng (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opimon, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a
body in accordance with Article 113A of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 and for no other purpose
We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibifity for any other purpose or to any other
persan to whom this report 15 shown or info whose hands It may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or emor This inciudes an assessment of whether the
accounting policres are appropriate to the Group's circumstances and have been consistently apphed
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting eshmates made by the
directors, and the overall presentation of the iinancial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

-~ give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affars as at 31 December 2010 and of the
group’s ioss and cash flows for the year then ended,

— have been properly prepared in accordanca lntgrnational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union, and
— have been prepared m accordance with the requirements of the Companigs {Jersey) Law 1991

Opinion on other matter
In our opimon the information given in the Directars' Report for the financial year for which financial
statements are prepared 1s cansistent with the financral statements
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Circle Holdings ple (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies {Jersey) Law 1997 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion

- proper accounting records have not been kept, or

- the fimanrcial statements are not In agreement with the accounting records, aor
- we have not received all the niormation and explanations we reguire for our audit

Other matters
We have reported separately an the parent company financial statements of Cirele Holdings plic for the year
ended 31 December 2010

&

Nigel Reynolds

Far and on hehaif of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants

London

lLl—June 2011
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Aevenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses before exceptional items
Proviston for joint venture deficit
Exceptional items

-~ Impairment of property, plant and equipment

= Impairment of goodwill

— Share-based payments in respect of warrants issued

—  Warrants issuad for il consideration

-~ Net reversal of / {increase in} provision for onerous leases
- Gan/ (loss) on disposal of assels

— Profit on disposal of subsidiary undertaking

—  Other exceptional costs

Total administrative expenses

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax (charge) / credit

Loss for the financial year
Other comprehensive ncome

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss for the year aitnbutable fo:
— Equrty holders of the parent

- Mon-controliing interests

Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to*
~ Equuty holders of the parent

= Non-controling interests

There Is np other comprehensive income ansing in the joint venture (2009 £nil)
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2010 2009
£'000 £:000
76,472 64,182
{49,775) (41,856)
26,697 22,326
(46,346) (35,329)
(255) (157)
(9,576) -
(2,845) {334)
(3,354) (4,168)
. (1,450)

367 (1,299)

443 (1,993)

- 2,901

(102) (258)
(61,668) (42,088)
{34,971} {19,762)
3,051 4,016
(7,240) (7,839)
(38,760) (23,585)
(645) 17
(39,405) (23,568)
(38,405) (23,568)
(34,290) (21,181)
{5,115) (2,387)
(39,405) (23,568)
(34,290) (21,181)
(5,115) (2,387)
(39,405) (23,568)




Circle Holdings plc

Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2010 2010 2009 2008
Nate £'000 £00Q £'900

Non-current assets

intangible assets 10 5,384 8,255 8,431

Property, plant and equipment 11 7,939 18,127 33,167

Trade and aother recevables 14 47,281 48,898 52,663

60,604 73,080 94 261
Current assets

Inventories 13 1,309 780 712
Trade and other recevaples 14 14,715 14,643 8,569
Cash and cash equivalents 15 12,322 25,824 17,006

28,346 41,247 26,287

Total assets 88,950 114,327 120,548
Current liabilities

Trade and cther payables 16 {20,399) (20,173) {20,070)
Loans and other barrowings 17 {21,966} {53,597} {51,380}
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 18 (602) (711} {852)
Warrant liabihty 22 (1,971) . -

(44,938) {74,481) (72,702)

Non-current Habiities

Trade and ather payables 18 - {118} (683}
Loans and other barrowings 17 (42,726) {13,217) (33,150)
Defeired tax habilities 9 {645) - (1%
Provision for joint venture deficit 12 (1,762} (1.507) -
Provisions for ather liabilittes and charges 18 (608) (1,664) (1,133)
Denvatve fimantial mstrurmnents 19 (3,494) {3.043) {6,570)

{49,235) {19,547) {41,553)

Total liabilities {94,173) (94,028}  {114,255)
Net (liabuiies) / assets (5,223) 20,299 6,293
Sharehalders’ equity

Called up shara capital 20 425 386 239
Share premium account 20 111,680 101,190 69,492
Warrant reserve 22 19,678 16,524 10,905
Retained deficit (128,049) (93,759) {72,578)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 3,934 24,341 8,058
Non-controlling interests 21 (9,157) (4.042) {1,765)
Total shareholders' equity (5,223} 20,299 6,293

The financial statements on pages 21 to 92 were approved by the board of Directors on Wv June 2071 and

were signed on its behalf by
// ///\/ Paclo Pren

Director
Registered number: 100016 (Jersey)

Al Parsadoust
Director
Circle Holdings plc
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Total equity
attnbutable Total
Share ta equity Mon- share-
Share premium Warrant Retained holders of controlling holders
capital account reserve deficit the parent interests equity
£'000 £'000 £3000 £'¢00 £000 £3000 £'700
At 1 January 2009 239 69492 10,905 (72,578) 8,058 {1,765) 6,293
Total comprahenswve loss for
the year - - - (21,181) {21,181) (2,387) (23,568)
Transactions with owners:
Issue of shares (note 20} 147 31,668 - - 31,845 - 31,845
Share-based payments (note
23) - - 4,169 - 4,169 - 4169
Addition to warrant reserve
{note 22) - - 1450 - 1,450 - 1,450
Change mn ownership that
does not result n & loss of
control (note 21) - - - - - 110 110
At 1 January 2010 386 101,190 16,524 (93,759) 24,341 {4,042) 20,299
Total comprehensive loss for
the year - - - (34,290) (34,290) (5,119) (39,405)
Transactions with owners:
Issue of shares (nots 20) 39 10,490 - - 10,529 - 10,529
Share-based payments (note
23) - 3,354 - 3,354 - 3354
At 31 December 2010 425 111,680 19,878 (128,049) 3,934 {9,157} (5,223)
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operating activities
Interest pad

Interest receved

Net cash used in operating activiies

Cash flows from investing achvities

Addittonal consideration for Circle Chinic Windsor

Net cash disposed wrth subsidiary undertaking

Disposal of equity in Heaith Properties Bath

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Met cash used in investing actinhes

Cash flows from tfinancing activities

Progeads from rssuance of ordinary shares

Proceeds from issuance of warants

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from borrowings

Sale and leaseback proceeds

Repayment of finance lease

Restricted cash

-~  Pelease of DoH performance bond

- Release of Nations Healthcare Bradford rmmimum balance
- Release of Nations Healthcare Bradford rental bond

—  GE letter of credit

~  Trangfer of Health Properties Bath rental deposit to joint venture
- Release af Circle Bath Hospital campussioning depasit

Met cash inflow from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increasa in untestricted cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the begtnning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash aquivalents consist of.

Cash at bank and in hang

Restnicted cash

~  PoH performance Bond

- Mimmum balance — GE & Depariment of Health
Leiter of Credit — GE

Rental bond — Nations Heaithcare Bradford

Unresiricted cash at bank and an hand
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27

16

29
10
27
1t

20
22

17
17

15
15
15
15
15
15

15
15
15
15

2010 2009
£'000 £:000
(18,184) (14,242)
{6,387) {6.080)
3,451 3,493
(21,1209 {16,829)
(13) {46)

- (15)

- 1,800

{94) {148)
5,580 1,480
{7,795) {20,202)
(2,322) (17,129
10,529 31,845
1,971 -
{3,502} {920)
696 11,851
252 -
(6) -
3,200 2,800
500 -
213 -

. {1.800)

- 1,750

- 500
14,553 46,026
(8,889) 12,068
17,011 4,943
8,122 17,011
12,322 25,824
{500) (4,400)
(1,900) {2,400
(1,800) (1,800
} (213)

8,122 17,011




Circle Hoidings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

1 General information

Circle Holdings pic (the 'Company} and its subsidlanes and joint venture {together the ‘Group”) provide
medical and property services in the UK

The company 1s a pnvate company and s incorporated and domuciled n Jersey The registered atfice 1s 12
Castle Strest, St Halier, Jersey

2 Accounting policies
Accounting convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Companies (Jersey) Law
1991 on a going concern basis and under the histoncal cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
denvative financial instruments and the farr valuing of share-based payments and certain lgans

ltems included I the results of each of the Group's subsidharies and joint venture are measured using the
funckonal currency, which 1n all instances 1s sterling The Group's consolidated financial statements are
presented in sterling  All financral imformation presented has been rounded to the nearest thousand

Bas!s of preparation

These consolidated financial statements represent the first annual financial statements of the Company, its
subsidiarles and joint venture prepared in accordance with Intematonal Financal Reporting Standards
('IFRS'), as issued by the Internationat Accounting Standards Board (IASE) and as adopted by the
European Union as at 31 December 2010 The Group adopted IFRS in accordance with IFRS 1 ‘First-time
Adoption of Internatienal Financial Reperting Standards' The first date at which IFRS was applied was 1
January 2009 In accordance with IFRS 1, the Group has-

- provided comparative financiai information,
— applied the same accounting poficies throughout all periods presented,
— retrospectively apphed all effective IFRS standards as of 31 December 2019, as required. and

— applied certain optianal exemptions and certain mandatory exceptions as applicable for first aime IFRS
adopters, namely not 10 restate 1ts business combmnations made prior to 1 January 2009 to comply with
IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’

An explanation of how the transiton to IFRS has affected the reported financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Group 1s provided in note 33
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Circle Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

2 Accounting polictes {continued)

Basis of preparation {continued)

IFRS standards in 1ssue, not yet effective as at 31 December 2010, but which will apply in the future are as
follows

— IFRS 7 ‘Financial iInstruments Disclosures’ - Amendments resulting from May 2010 Annual
improvements to IFRSs (applies to annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2011)

— IFRS 7 ‘Finangial instruments Disclosures’ - Amendments enhancing disclosures about transfers of
financial assets {applies to annual pernods beginning on or after 1 July 2011)

~  IFRS 8 Financral Instruments Classficaton and Measurement' {applies to annual penods beginming
on ar after 1 January 2013)

— IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Amendments resulting from May 2010 Annual
Improvements to IFRSs {applies to annual perods begmning on or after 1 January 2011)

—  IAS 12 income Taxes' - Limited scope amendment re recovery of underlying assets (applies to annuaf
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012)

—~ |AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures' - Revised defition of related parties {apphes to annual periods
beginming on or after 1 January 2011)

The above amendments are not expected io matenally /mpact the Group's fimancial statements nr future
periods

Gaing concern

The consolidated hnancial statements have been prepared on the gomng concern basis which assumes that
the Group will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future The Directors have prepared
cash flow forecasts for a penod of not less than 12 months from sigming the knancial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2010 Committed funds and underwritten IPO proceeds (associated with the Group's
ntention o list on the Alternative Investment Market), together with existing cash balances and cash flows
from the operating businesses, are sufficient to fund head office costs necessary to sustain the current
operations, interest payments over the next 12 months and future growth plans, including taking on the
management of NHS Hospitals and funding the commissioning and start up losses of the projected private
hospital roll out pragramme

On this basis, the directors concfude that it is appropnate for these accounts to be prepared on a going
concern basis

Basis of consolidation

1 Subsidiares

The results of subsidanes (defined as where the Group has control) are conschidated using the purchase
methad of accounting from the date on which control of net assets and operations of the acquired company
are effechvely transferred to the Group Similarly the results of subsuhanes disposed of cease to be
consolidated from the date on which control of the net assets and operations are transferred out of the
Group
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Circle Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

2  Accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consclidation (continued)

n  Circle Partnership and Health Properties Empioyee Benefit Trust

The results of Circle Partnership and Health Properties Employee Benefit Trust ('Health Properties share
scheme') have been consolidated in these financial statements under SIC 12 ‘Consolidation special purpose
entives’ Circle Partnership and Health Properties share scheme are considered part of the Group owing to the
nature of the share schemes (as disclosed in note 21), whereby employees, consultants and GPs who
coninbute to the growth m value of the Circle group and Health Properties group respectively, subscribe for
shares i Circle Partnership and Health Properties

i Jomwt ventures

The Group has an mierest in a joint venture A joint venture 1s a contractual arrangement whereby two or more
parties undertake an economic activity that 1s subject to joint contrel and involves the establishment of a
separate entity :n which each venturer has an interest The CGroup recogruses its interest in joint ventures using
equity accounting which requires the nterest in the joint venture to be carrled m the consoiidated balance
sheet at cost plus post acquisiion changes in the Group's share of its net assets and labilities, less
distnbubions received and impamments it the value of indwidual investments |f the [oint venture 5 i a net
hablity positon, the Group recognises a provision for its constructive and legal abligations in relation to the
joint venture

iv  Non-controlling interests

Non-conirolling mterests in the results and equity of the Group's subsidiary undertakings are recorded in the
consohdated income statement and balance sheet based upon the proportion of the non-controlling interest
This includes the non-controlling interest ansing in Gircle Health and Health Properties because of the portion
of shares 1ssued to employees, consuitants and GPs via Circle Partnership and Health Properties share
scheme respectively which have vested unconditionally

The results of the subsidianes and joint venture are measured as of the same reporting date as the paren
company using consistent accounting pofices Intra-group transactions and balances have been shimmnated on
consolidation

Revenue

Revenue, which 1s measured as the far value of consideration recewved for the activity performed, represents
the total amounts primarily denved fram the provision of healthcare services in the UK, after deducbing trade
discounts and value added tax (where services provided are not exempt)

Revenue 15 recogmsed on the date the patient 1s discharged, subject to certain claw-back clauses included
within the PCT contracts which require an elemant of the revenue to be deferred untl certain contractual
obligations have been met Revenue can be broken down into three key streams

—  Privately insured patients

Payment 1s recewved from the msurance company after treatment and excludes fees for the consultants
and anaesthetists who are pad directly by the insurance company Additional top up payments are
received from the patent where required by their specific policy

—  Private self-pay patients
Payment s recewed directly from the patient, from which an element is then passed to the surgeon and
anaesthetist
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue (continued)

— NHS patients
Payment 15 received under two types of contract, either ISTC contracts where the minimum payment 1s
subject to a quarterly reconciliaton for under-utiisation of contracts, or extended choice network / block
contract where the NHS pays the Group directly In both types of contract, the hospital remunerates the
surgeons and anassthetists

In the context of concession projects, construction services provided are recognised as revenue In
accordance with 1AS 11 ‘Construction contracts', using the percentage of completion method In the
operating phase of concession projects, a financial asset 1s recognised to the extent that the operator
receives a hixed payment from the client irrespactive of the extent of use Revenue from the provision of
operatar services is recogmsed according to 1AS 18 ‘Revenue’

Ravenue Is also denved from the use of faciites by Allance Medical Limitad, a diagnostic services provider
whuch operated out of the Nations Healthcare Bradford treatment centre

Excaptlorfal items

Exceptonal items are disclosed and descrnbed separately in the finangial statements where it 1s necessary to
do so0 to provide further understanding of the financial parformance of the Group They are matenal tems of
income or expense, either one-off in nature, non-cash or of such magnitude that the Directors believe
separate disclosure I1s required to allow readers to gain an understanding of the underlying results of the
business

Finance costs

Finance costs are recognised on an effective interest rate basis 1 the period in which they are icurred,
except where they are directly altnbutable to the acquisition or production of a qualifying asset which takes a
substantial period of ime to get ready for intended use, such as the construction of a hospital In such cases,
borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset from the first date on which expenditure 1s
incurred for the asset Capitalisation ceases when all the activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
use are camplete

On certain loans, mterest 1s rolled up nto the principal This 1s taken into account when calculating the
effective interest rate

Finance income

Finance income is accrued by reference to the princrpal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable
Fmance income anses on the operating financial asset, recogrised an the effective interest rate of the
project

Intanaible assets
i Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition of a business combination over the Group's share of
the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilittes and contingent labdiies of the business acquired at the date of
acquisition

Goodwill 1s mihally recogrised at cost After initial recognition, goodwill 15 measured at cost less any
accumulated wnparment iosses Gains and losses on disposal of a business include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the business sold

At the date of acquisiion, goodwil s ailocated to Cash Generating Units {'CGUS') for the purpose of
impatrment testing and is tested annually for imparrment, or more frequently if there 1s an indication that the
value of the goodwill may be rmpared The value in use is calculated vsing an appropriate discount rate

28



Circle Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

2  Accounting policies (continued)
ii  Development of intangible assets

Other intangible assets compnise computer software and third party 'know-how' costs which meet the cntena of
IAS 38 'Intangible assets' 'Know-how' costs are incurred in creating a 'new build programme' to standardise the
design of future world class hospitals by bulding them within a shortened time frame uhhising standard build
components which bave been manufactured off site

Other intangible assets are carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and imparrment losses. Gost
compnses purchase price from third parties as well as internally generated development costs where relevant
Amortisation is provided on a straight ine basis once the asset is complete, to allocaie the cost of the asset over
its estimated useful fe and the charge 1s taken to admimstrative expenses Other intangible assets are
assessed for impairment whenever there 15 an indication that the intangible asset may be impared The useful
economic Iife of the Group's mtangible assets is as follows

Computer software — 3years
New build programme 'know-how' — 10 years

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are capitalised separately from gogdwill  the fair
value can be measured reliably on initial recogrition

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and imparrment losses
Histoncal cost comprises all amounts drrectly attnbutable to making assets capable of operating as intended,
including development costs and borrowing costs where relevant

Depreciation 15 provided on all categories of property, plant and equipment with the exception of freehold land
and assets under construction Depreciation 18 based on cost less eshmated residual value and Is provided on a
straight hne basis over the estmated useful life of the asset as follows

Leasehold improvements — shorter of lease life or expected useful e (5-1Q years)
Chimical equipment — 3Jvyears

Furniture, fittngs and office equipment,

{including commssiomng costs) — 310 10 years

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting penod The expected useful lives of
the assets to the business are reassessed periodically in the ight of expenence The carrying values of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for imparment when events or changes of circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable

Assets under construction
+ Commussioning costs tn course of construction

Commussioning costs compnse staff, property, consultancy and operational costs dwrectly related to the
commissioning projects Such costs are capitahsed up to the pomt that the commissioning 1s complete and the
hospital 1s fully open for business, subsequent to which such expenddure 1s charged to the income statement
Once commissioned, the asset Is reclassified from 'Assets under construchion' to "Furniture, fitings and office
equipment’ and depreciated on a straight kne basis in accordance with the estmated useful hives as outlined
above

1t Development casts in course of construction

Development costs which are directly atinbutabte to the development of properly are capitalised as parnt of the
cost of the property The commencement of capttalisation beging when development costs for the property are
being incurred and actvities that are necessary to prepare the asset ready for use are in progress Capitalisation
ceases when all the activities that are necessary o prepare the asset for use are complete
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2  Accounting policies (continued)
teases

1 As lessee

Where substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the leased item are transferred to the Group,
the lease 15 classified as a finance lease and captalised at the fair value of the leased asset or, f lower, at
the present vatue of the minimum future lease payments Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reducton of the lease hability so as to achieve a constant rate of intarest on the remaining
balance of the Labtity Fmance charges are recognised in the income statement Leased assels are
depreciated over the useful Iife of the agset However, If there 15 no reasonable certamnty that the Group will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset 15 depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful hfe of the asset and the lease term

Where the Group does not retain substantiaily all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the asset, leases
are classiied as operating leases Cperating lease rental payments are recognised as an expense n the
\ncome statement on a straight line basis over the lease term Lease incentives are recognised over the
sharter of the lease term and the date of the next rent review

] As lessor
The Group s not a lessor of any finance or operating leases
Inventories

Inventones, primarnly medical consumables, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost
comprises purchase price less trade discounts, and 1s determined on a first-in, first-out basis Net realisable
value means estimated selling price, less all costs incurred In marketing, selling and distnbution Obsolete
stock 1s provided for through the income statement

Long-term contracis

The Group enters mto long term contracts with the Dol to provide medical procedures Profd 1s taken on
such contracts as the procedures are performed (in line with the terms of the contract) and 15 calculated on
a percentage complehon basis to reflect the proportion of the work carned out at the year end, by recording
revenue and related costs as contract actwvity progresses Revenues derived from vanations on contracts
are recognised only when they have been accepted by the customer Profit relating to under-utitsation by
the NHS 1s deferred until the end of the quarter, when this 15 agreed with the local Pnmary Carg Trust
('PCT} Revenue 15 also accrued or deferred where treatment 1s ahead or behind agreed standard waiting
terms

Amounts recoverable on contracts are accounted for under IAS 11 and {AS 18 All costs Incurred In
advance of a contract being awarded are wniten off to the income statement, until the date that, in the
opinion of the Directors, it 15 virtually certamn that the contract has been secured Whare the Directors
constder virtual certainty has been achieved and the contract is expected to result In future net cash inflows,
costs incurred up to the time the contract becomes operational arg carned as amounts recoverable on
contracts, within ‘trade and other receivables' Once the contract is operational, the balance 1s accounted for
as part of the accounting for the contract as a whole n accardance with 1AS 11 and 1AS 18, and recognised
in the income statement over the contract term
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2 Accounting policies {continued)
Operating financial assets

Within the Group, Nabons Healthcare Nottingham 15 party to a service concession arrangement The
underlying asset is not deemed to be an asset of the Group under IFRIC 12 "Service concession
arrangements’ because the residual ownership of the Treatment Centre s deemed to lie principally with
the DoH To the extent that there 1s an unconditional right to receive cash, the construction costs are
recorded as a financial asset under the heading 'operating financial asset’ and recognised at amortised
cost

Durlng the operatonal phase, ncome 15 aliocated between interest recevable and the operating flnancial
asset using the contracted rate of return Pursuant to [AS 39, an impawment loss I1s recognised if the
carrying amount of these assets exceeds the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the
contracted rate of return The remander of the ncome 15 included within revenue in accordance with
IFRIC 12 The Group only recognises income in respect of the services provided, as It fulfils its contractual
abhgations and i line with the far value of the consideration receivable

Operating financial assets are presented as current where collection 1s expected within one year or less,
otherwise they are presented as non-current

TFrade receivables

Trade recewables represent amounts due from customers arising from the performance of services or sale
of goods Trade recevables are initially recogrused at farr value and subsequently measured at amorhised
cost, which includes an allowance for mpairment where there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect a! amounts due according to the original terms of the contract The allowance for
impairment 1s the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash
flows, discounted at the onginal effective interest rate The movement in the allowance for impairment 1s
taken to admimstrative expenses

Trade receivablas are presented as current where collection 15 expected within one year or less, otherwise
they are presented as non-current

Cash and cash equivalents

Gash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and overright deposits

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents includes cash at hand and
overmight deposits, less cash which is not freely available

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppllers Trade payables are wihally recogrised at faw value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost If payment 1s expected within one year or less, they are classthed as current
Nabllities, otherwise they are classified as non-current labilities

Pension costs

The Nations Healthcare group and Circle Clinic Windsor operate a personal defmed contnbution pension
scheme Contnbutions are charged to the income statement as they become payable, m accordance with
the rules of the scheme The Group has no lurther payment gbligation once the contributlons have been
pad
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2 Accounting policies (continued}
Current and deferred income taxation

The charge for current Income tax 1s based on the results for the period, as adjusted for items which
are not taxed or disallowed The charge 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period

Deferred income tax 15 accounted for using the habiity method in respect of temporary differences
ansing from differences between the tax basses of assets and habilities, and therr cafrying amounts in
the consclidated financial statements In principle, deferred tax abilites are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that
taxable profits will be avalable against which deductibie temporary differences ¢an be utilised Such
assets and habiities are not recognised if the temporary difference 15 due o goodwill ansing on a
business combination, or to an asset or fiability, the initial recogmition of which does not affect either
taxable or accounting income

Deferred tax habtities are recagnised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in
subsidianes and joint ventures, except where the Group 15 able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temparary diference will not reverse in the
fareseeable future.

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the penod when the asset 15
realised or the fiability 1s settled using rates enacted, or substantally enacted, at the end of the
reporiing pencd Deferred tax 1s charged or credited w the consolidated income siatement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity In
this case, the taxs also recegmsed in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable proft will be
avallable against which the temporary differences can be utilised

Dervative financial mstruments

The Group has entered into dernvative financial instrument arrangements to manage 1ts sxposura to
interest rate nsk The Group's critenia for entenng into such arrangements, namely interest rate
swaps, are that the instrument must be related to an asset or 2 habiity and it must change the
character of the interest rate by converting a variable rate to a fixed rate or vice versa

Derivatives are mitially recogmsed at fair value at the date a denvative contract 1s entered into and are
classified as cumrent or non-cumrent based on the timing of cash flows Dernvatives are subsequently
remeasured to fair value at each balance sheet date and the movement i1s recagnised immediately in
the income statement, in finance income or finance costs accordingly

Provisions for other liabiities and charges

Provisions are recogrused when the Group has a present obligation in respect of a past event, when it
15 probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seftle the obligation and it can be reliably
estmated Prowisions are discounted where the hme value of money 1s considered to be matenal,
using an appropriate pre-tax rate that reflacts current market assessments of the tme value of money
and the nsks specific to the obligaton The unwinding of the discount is recagnised as a finance cost
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2  Accounting policies (continued)
Loans and borrowings

All non-convertible loans and borrowings are recognised iially at fair value, net of directly attributable
fransaction costs Subsequent to imtial recognition, loans and borrowings are camed at amortised cost,
with any dilference between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and redemption value being recognised
In the income statement over the penod of the borrowing, using the effeciive Interest rate method

Baorrowings are classified as current habilites unless the Group has an unconditienal nght to defer
settlement of the liabihity for at least 12 months after the reporting date

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments 1ssued by the Group comprise convertible loans that can be converted
to share capital at the option of the holder The number of shares to be 1ssued is calculated based on
the outstanding loan commitment at the date of conversion

The habilty component of a compound nstrument is recogrised initially at the fair value of a similar
habdily that does not have an equity conversion oplion The equity component is recogrised initially as
the difference between the fair value of the compound financial nstrument as a whole and the far value
of tha hability component.

Subsequent to inal recognition, the labiity component of a compound financial nstrument 1s
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method The equity component of a compound
financial instrument is not remeasured subsequent to mitial recogniion except on conversion or expiry

Warrants

A warrant 15 an instrument 1ssued by a company which gives the holder the nght to purchase shares in
that company at a specific pnce at a future date An equily instrument 1s any contract that evidences a
residual interest i the assels of an entity after deducting all of its liabilitles A warrant s treated as a
financial lhability if

— It s a non-denvative and the entity 1s obliged to delwer a vanable number of the company's own
shares, or

- 1tis & derlvative that will be settled other than by a fixed amount of cash or other assets for a fixed
number of the company’s own shares

Transaction costs are apportioned betwaen the habilily and equity components of the shares based on
the allecabon of proceeds to the lability and equity components when the mstruments are first
recognised

1 Equity warrants

The proceeds on 1ssue of equity warrants are included within shareholders' equity, net of transaction
costs The fair value of the equity component 18 not re-measured in subsequent years  The far value of
warrants 15 credited to equity with the debit bemg charged to the income statement or taken to non-
current habilities where the warrants are hinked to a loan

Equity warrants are valued using an appropnate valuation methadology on a diluted pricing basis, based
on the relevant share price at the time of 1ssue or based on an assessment of the market price at the
time of issue

33



Circle Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 {continued)

2  Accounting policies {continued)
Warranis (continued)
it Financial hability warrants

Warrants issued that create a financial lability to the Group are presented as a hability in the balance
sheet, measured inihally at farr value, net of transaction costs and subsequently at amortised cost until
extinguished on conversion or redemption The initial fair value of the warrant hability 15 determined
using an appropniate valuation methodology

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of employee share ownersiup plans for employees and consuitants The
farr value of the employee services receved in exchange for the grant of the warrants 1s recognised as
an expense, with a corresponding credit to equity The total amount expensed 1s determined by
reference to the far value of the warrants granted, recogmised over the vesting pencd, which 1s the
period over which all of the specified vesting condiions are expacted to be satished

Dividends

Divtdend distribution to the Company's shareholders I1s recognised as a hablity in theiGroup's financiat
staternents n the penod in which the dvidends are approved by the Company’s sharehglders

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Proceeds recewed, net of any directly attributable transaction
costs, are credited to share capital {(nominal value) and share premium Within the Group, any shares of
a company which are held by thal company’s subsidiary are {reated as treasury sharas, and effectively
ehminated from share capital

Significant accounting judgements and estmates

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, the Diractors have made the following
Judgements and estimates which have the most significant effect on the amounts recogmised in the
consolidated financial statemenis

Judgements

The key judgements that have a significant nsk of causing a maternal adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and hiabiities within the next inancial year are discussed below

i Revenue recognition
Revenue 15 recagnised on discharge of patients however contracts with the PCT have certain claw-
back clauses based on total contracted volumes over the quarter which means that judgements
must be made to defer a certain amount of mncome tn the balance sheet This inciudes the
racoverabiiity of revenue recognised in excess of the minimum payments receved

it Lease classification
The Group has entersd into various lease arrangements, the majonty of which have been
classified as operating rather than finance leases under the interpretation of IAS 17 ('Leases’)

il Consolidation of Circle Partnership and Health Properties share scheme
Circle Partnership and Health Properties share scheme are special purpose entities which have
been created to operate as employee share ownership plans The results of both these enbties
have bean consohdated into the Group financial statements under SIC 12 *Consolidation special
purpose entiies’ on the basis that these entities are controlled by the Group
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2

Accounting policies {continued)

Sigrificant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

Estimates

The key assumptions and astmates at the end of the reporting penod, that have a significant nsk
of causing a matenal adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and habilittes within the next
financial year are discussed below

in

vi

vii

Tax

The recogmiton of deferred tax assets 1s dependent upon an estimation of future taxable
profiis that will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utihised In
the event that actual taxable profits are different, such differences may impact the carrying
value of such deferred tax assets in future years

Provisions

Provisions are assessed annually i accordance with the Group's accounting policy
Provisions are recogrised where 1t 15 probable that an outflow of econemic benefits wili occur
as a result of a past event or transaction and a reliable estimate of the outflow can be made
In the event that eshmates are wrong, this may impact the income statement in future years

Amounts recoverable on contracts

Amounts recoverable on contracts which have been capitalised in accordance with IAS 11
and IAS 18, are baing amorised over the life of the contract Estimates of future income may
be maccurate, such that profits may not anse to support their carrying value

Share-hased payments and warrants

Share-based payment charges are based on the warrant valuations calcutated using severa!
assumptions (eg share price volatility and bme constraints) mcluded within an ophion pricing
madel In the event that eshmates are wrong, this may impact tha charge in future years

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed on a regular basis to check they are still in use
and to ensure their useful economic ife 15 In fine with the expected Ife of the asset

Fair value of financial instruments

The Group's interest rate swaps are far valued with their corresponding movement being
recogmised dirgctly in the inceme statement These far values are not based on quoted
prices n active markets but on estimates of observable market data. In the event that these
estimates are wrong, this may impact the charge in future years

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

An allowance for impasrment of trade receivables 1s made, based on the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows, discounted at the
onginal effective interest rale in the event that estimates are wrong, this may impact the
Income statement in future years
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2  Accounting palicies (continued)
Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimates (continued)

viii Goodwiil
Goodwill is recognised at cost lass inpasrment losses The camying amount of goodwill 1s assessed
annually based on value in use calcufatons, using cash flow projections based on three year
financial foracasts prepared by Management Key assumptions relating to forecasts in revenue
growth and dechne are used and in the event that these estimates are wrong, thts may impact the
mcome statement in fuluire years

3 Revenue

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Provision of healthcare services 76,108 63,309
Income from third party use of treatment centre faciities 219 798
Other miscellanecus income 145 75
76,472 64,182

Other miscellaneous income primanly relates to management fee income The Group s exempt from
disclosing segmental infarmation under IFRS 8 'Operating segments’

4 Operating loss

Operating loss 15 stated after charging / {crediting) 2010 2009

£'009) £'000
Recogrised in respect of amounts recoverable on contracts {note 14} 2,853 3.278
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 10) 85 81
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment (note 11) 1,270 1,259
Auditors’ remuneration (see next page) 399 283
Plant and machinery operatng lease rental 5,236 3,505
Land and bulldings operating lease rental 6,511 5,405
Reversal of amounts previously written off (note 14) {783) -
Exceptional tems (see next page) 15,067 6,602
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4 Operating loss {continued)

Auditors remuneration payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

For the provision of audit services

— Fees payable for the audit of the Company and the consohdated
financial statements

- Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the
Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation

Services relating to taxation

All other services

Exceptionai tems

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note 11)

Impairment of goodwill {note 10}

Share-based payments n respect of warrants issued (note 23)
Warrants 1ssued for nil consideration (note 22}

Net {reversal of) / increase n provision for onerous leases (note 18)
(Gamn} / loss on sale of assets

— Gan on sale of assets In Health Properties Reading (note 11)
— Loss on sale of assets in Nations Healthcars Bradford (note 11}
Assets disposed of for nil consideration

—~ External site costs wrtten off

— Research and development costs written oif

Profit on disposal of subsidiary undertaking (note 29)

Lease surrender cosls

Other exceptional costs

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

77 61

178 144

84 20

60 58

399 283
e —

2010 20039

£'000 £'000

9,576 -

2,845 334

3,354 4,169

. 1,450

(367) 1,299

{636} -

103 -

- 1,492

- 501

- {2,901)

- 258

102 -

15,067 6,602

Research and development costs wntten off in 2009 related fo the design and development of
future hospials ansing in Health Properties which did not meet the recognion critenia of IAS 38

‘Intangible assets'

External site costs wnitten off in 2009 related to early stage site costs where there was no capacity

of recavery in the near future

Lease surrender costs arose in 2009 as a result of the cancellation of a iease on & property that

was no longer in use
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4  Operating loss (continued)

Total operating loss and EBITDA before exceptional items

Operating loss
Exceptional items

Total operating loss before exceptional tems

Depreciation
Amarhisation of intangioles
Recogmised in respect of amounts racoverable on contracts {note 14}

EBITDA before exceptional items

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
(33,971)  (19,762)
15,067 6,602
(19,908)  (13,150)
1,270 1,259
85 81
2,853 3.278
{15,696) (8,542)

This information 1s included here as it prowides useful information to the reader of the accounts for

understanding operational performance

Deferred costs

Dunng 2010, the followang costs were capiahsed under 1AS 16 'Property, plant and equipment’ 1n relation o
the commissioning of Circle Bath Hospital These costs have been included as additions to ‘assets under

construction” and transferred to 'furmiture, fittngs and office equipment’ (note 11)

Staff costs (note 5)
Praoperty costs
Consultancy costs
Operating costs
Tenants improvements

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
460 1,612

250 456

278 2,433

168 1,378

45 1,763

1,201 7,642

p—

Staff costs relate to salares and expenses for people worung full ime on the Bath hospital commissioning
profect, complebng a vanety of roles, pnmanly prior to the hospital’s opening in March 2010 The appropnate
installation of equipment, staff traning and systems configuration 1s needed to operate the hospital effectively

at s potential capacity These costs have now been impaired
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5 Employee information

Staff costs 2010 2009
£'060 £'000
Wages and salanes 16,747 11,462
Share-based payments in respect of warrants issued (notes 23) 3,354 4,169
Social secunty costs 1,737 1,193
Other pension costs (note 25) 189 166
22,027 16,990
Less amounts capitahsed in balance sheet (note 4) (360) (1,612}
21,567 15,378
Share-based payments in respect of warrants issued were charged to exceptional tems in 2009 and 2010
(note 4)
Average number of employees 2010 2008
Number Number
Administrabve 292 188
Chnical 341 196
633 384
The average number of employees includes directors on a service contract
6  Directors’ emoluments
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Aggregats emoluments 150 151

Directors’ emoluments relate to Mr M Keyvan-Foulad), who 15 solely remunerated by Natons Healthcare

As disclosed in the Directors’ report, some of the Diractors are employed by Capita Fiductary Group Limited,
a management and fiduciary services company based in Jersey In total, Capita Fiduciary Group Limited
charged the Group £400,000 (2009 £102,000) for management and fidugiary services provided to

companmes within the Group duning the year

In addition, dunng 2009 a number of current and previous directors were employed by Stonehage Corporate
Services, a management and fiduciary services company based in Jersey In tolal, Stonehage Corporate
Services was paid £30,0600 (2009 £400,000) for management and liduciary services provided to companies

within the Group during the year

There was no compensaton paid for loss of office during the year
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6  Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Compensatian of key management personnel

The Group made payments to key management personnel, defined as the key executive parners of the
business, for services provided to the Group as follows

2010 2009

£'000 £:000

Short-term employment benefits 593 571
593 571

——————— ——— ——

Included within the above key management 1s Mr A Parsadoust who s a beneficiary of Health Trust {(Jersey)
in which a share-based payment arises Note 23 provides more details

7 Finance income

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Bank interest recesvable 74 37
Interest recewable on operating financial asset 3377 3,456
Change n farr value of interast rate denvatives {notes 8 and 19) - 523

3,451 4,018

8 Finance costs

2010 2009
Ansing on Health Properties group bank loans £'000 £'000
- Santander - 784
- Lehmans - 1,090
- Allied irish Bank ("AIB") 279 303
- JCAM () 259 825
538 2,802
Less capitalised interest i year - {1.874)
Add capttalised interest for 2008 AlB and JCAM {i1) (note 17) expensed in 2009 - 824
Interest an Health Praperties group bank loans taken to income statement 538 1,752
Interest unwind of discount on deferred consideration of Circle Clinic
Windsor {notes 16 and 17} 33 66
Interest on Barclays Bank plc {'Barclays') lpans 2,317 2377
Interest on JCAM (1) (note 17) bank loan 3,901 3,644
Change in fair value of interest rate denvatives {note 19) 451 -
7,240 7,839

The capitalised interest in 2009 of £1,874,000 relates to interest incurred on financing the construction of
Bath hespital. The capitalised interest wnitten off in 2002 of £824,000 relates to interest that was capitalised
in 2008 on the Edinburgh construchion that was subsequently written off in 2009
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9 Income tax expense / (credit)

1 Analysis of income tax expense / (credit) in year

2010 2009
Current tax £'000 £'000
UK corporation tax - -
Deferred tax
Ornginating and raversal of temporary differences 645 (17
Income tax expense / (credit) 645 (17

o Factors affecting the current tax (credit) / charge for the year

Although the parent company is registered in Jersey, the hospital operating businesses reside in the UK and
are subject to UK corporation tax The tax assessed on the Group's loss for the year differs from the standard
rate of UK corporation tax of 28 0% (2008 28 0%) The differences are explamed below

2010 2009

£'000 2'000
Loss before taxation {38,760) (23,585)
Loss before taxation multiplied by standard rate of carporation tax in the UK of
28 0% (2009 2B 0%) {10,853) {6,604)
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 3,009 515
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation (303) (377)
Other temporary differences 8,254 4,484
Group relef (§)] -
Jersey fax (106) 1,882
Deferred tax previausly not recognised 645 (17)
Total income tax expense / (credit) for the year 645 (17

i Factors that may affect future tax charges

Legistation in the UK has been enacted to cut the main rate of corporation tax to 27 0% tor the financial year
starting 1 Apnl 2011 There will be further cuts in the main rate in future years {26 0% in 2012 to 2013, 25 0%
in 2013 to 2014 and 24 0% n 2014 to 2015) which may affect fulure tax charges and reduce the deferred tax
habilihes

In addition to the changes in rates of Corporaron tax disclosed above, a number of further changes to the
UK Corporation tax system were announced m the March 2011 UK Budget Statement A resolution passed
by Parhlament on 29 March 2071 reduced the man rate of corporation tax to 26 0% from 1 Apnl 2011
Legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 26 0% to 25 0% from 1 April 2012 15 expected to
be included in the Finance Act 201t Further reductions to the main rate are proposed to reduce the rate by
1 0% per annum 1o 23 0% by 1 Apnl 2014 None of these expected rate reductions had been substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, are not included in these financial statements

The effect of the changes enacled by Pariament on 28 March 2011 1s to reduce the deferred tax habily
provided at the balance sheat date and ncrease profit by £24,000 This decrease in the deferred tax lLability
Is due to the additional reduction in the corporation tax rate to 26 0% with effect from 1 Apri 2011

The proposed reductions of the main rate of corporatlon tax by 1 0% per year to 23 0% by 1 Apnl 2014 are
expected to be enacted separately each year

In addition, the utilsation of any tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised may affect
future tax charges
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9 Income tax expense / (credit) (continued)
v Deferred tax

The net deferred tax recognised in the balance sheet is as follows

2010 2009 2008
£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January - (7 (12)
(Recognised) / reversed dunng the year {645) 17 (8)
At 31 December (645) - {17}
S e
The net deferred tax hability comprises
2010 2009 2008
E'000 £'000 £'000
Losses .77 8,044 -
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 1,431 1,640 -
Short-term temporary differences - Nations Healthcare
Nettingham lease premium 2,031 2,924 -
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation - - (17)
Short-tarm temporary differences - Nations Healthcare
Nottingham assets under construction (11,884) (12,608} -
(645) - {17)

The deferred tax 15 presented net since the entibes concerned have a right to set off current tax assets
against currant fax irabilities and the deferred tax assets and defemed tax labiities relate to income

taxes levied by the same taxation authonty on the same taxable antity

The deferred tax asset not recogrised i the financial statements 1s as follows

2010 2009 2008

£000 £'000 £'000

Unreleved tax losses 22,517 16,443 -
Depreciation in advance of capital allowances 2,585 2,768 -
Short-term temporary differences 2,753 1434 1,774
Pension provision 6 6 5
27,861 20,651 1,779

———

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised n full in the financial statements due to the uncertainty
aver the avatlability of suitable future taxable profits agaunst which the asset will revarse

v Jersey tax

As from 1 January 20089, the general rate of tax for companies restdent in Jersey 15 0 0%
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10 [Intangible assets
Development
Computer  of intangible

Goodwll software assels Total
Cost £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
At 1 January 2009 B,213 259 - 8,472
Additrons - - 146 146
Post acquisition goodwill adjustment 93 - - 93
At 1 January 2010 8,306 259 146 8,711
Additions - 74 20 94
Post acquisition goodwill adjustment (35) - - (35)
At 31 December 2010 8,271 333 166 8,770
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2009 - 1 - 41
Amortisatton charge for the year - a1 - 81
Imparrment charge for the year 334 - - 334
At 1 January 2010 334 122 - 456
Amortisation charge for the year - 85 - 85
Impairment charge for the year 2,845 - - 2,845
At 31 December 2010 3,179 207 - 3,386
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 5,092 126 166 5,284
At 31 December 2009 7,972 137 146 8,255

At 31 December 2008 8.213 218 - 8,431

) Goodwlill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination s allocated to the CGlUs that are expected to benefit from that
business combination CGUs are independent sourcas of ncome streams and represent the lowest level within
the Group at which the associated goodwill 18 momitored for management purposes The carrying amount of
goodwill has been allogated to the following CGUs
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10 Intangible assets (continued)

2010 2002 2008
£'000 £000 £'000
Nations Healthcare Bradiord - 464 464
Nations Heailthcare Burton - 2,381 2,384
Nations Healthcare Nottingham 4,971 4,971 4971
Circle Clinre Windsor i21 156 397
5,092 7.972 8,213

Goodwill 15 subject to tmpairment testing annually, or more frequently where there are indicahons that the goodwill
may be impawed The recoverable amounts of all GGUs are determined based on value n use calculations, using
cash flow projections based on three year financial forecasts prepared by Management The key assumptions for
these forecasts are those relating to revenue growth and dechne, based on past expenance and expectations of
future changes in relevant CGUs

Cash flows for the three year perod are discounted back to present valug using a nisk adjusted discount Tate of
10 0%, which represents the CGU's weighted average cost of capital Based on this, the Group has impaired s
goodwill by £2,845,000 in the year to 31 December 2010 (2009 £334,000) The circumstances leading to the
impairment are the non renewal of the Natons Healthcare Bradiord contract and uncertainty over the fuiure format
af the Nations Healthcare Burton contract In addition, cash flows in Gircle Clinic Windsor have been lower than
the oniginal business plan

The Group's value m use calculahons are sensitve to changes n the key assumptions used, most notably the
discount rates and the long-term growth rates, however It 15 estimated that a small change in key assumptions will
not cause an impairment i any of the other CGUs

Buring 2010, the Group reassessed the acquistion cost and corresponding goodwill of Crcle Chinie Windsor This
resulted 1n a reductlon to goodwill of £35,000 (2009 increase of £93.000) as a result of decreased deferred
consideration and loan notes of £8,000 (note 18) and £27,000 (note 17) respectively (2008 ncrease in deferred
consideration and loan notes of £12,000 and £51,000 respectively, together with an additional completion payment
of £30,000 due 1o more assets being acguired than onginally provided for in the sale and purchase agraement)

i Computer sofiware

Computer software represents thurd parly costs largely mcurred in website development and the creation of a
project management system

i Oevelopment of intangible assets

Development of intangible assets include the development of know-how' for a new programme to build hospitals
within a shortened tme frame This is achieved by utiising standard buld components which have been
manufactured off-site at a reduced cost and reducing the amaunt of bulld time on-site Dunng the year, Health
Properties invested £20,000 (2003 £146,000, 2008 £nil) n ‘know-how' As the programme s stll in the
development phase, amorisatwn has not yet been charged on these other mtangibles Once the programme has
been fully developed, the 'know-how' will be amortised over ten years
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11 Property, plant & equipment

Cost

At 1 January 2009

Addit:ons

Reclassifications

Disposals

Disposal of Health Properties

Bath™

At 1 January 2010

Additions

Reclassificatons

Disposals

At 3t December 2010

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 1 January 2009
Reclassifications
Disposal of Health Properties

Bath*

Depreciaton charge for the

year

At 1 January 2010
Depreciation charge for the

year

Impaiment charge for the year
Reciassificatons

Dhsposals

At 31 December 2010

Net beok value

At 31 December 2010

At 31 December 2009

At 31 December 2008

Furniture,

Leasehold httings and

Freehold Assets under improve- Clinical office
land construction ments equipment equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
14,128 20,661 805 1,049 2,851 39,494
- 20,793 37 291 131 21,252
(1,598} 5,294 (4] 223 159 4,071
{390) (3,083) - (25) (26}  (3,524)
{2,536) (31,846} - - - (34,382)
9,604 11,819 835 1,538 3,115 26,911
995 4,587 206 545 1,462 7,795
- (10,123} - - 10,123 -
{1,575) (4,571) - (319) {480)  (6,945)
9,024 1,712 1,041 1,764 14,220  27,76%
—————— | ——————

Furniture,

Leasehold fittings and

Freehold Assets under improve- Clinica! affice
land construction ments  equipment equipment Total
4189 547 257 290 1,044 6,327
- 3,695 (6) 222 160 4,071
- (873) - - - (873)
- - 139 297 823 1,259
4,189 3,369 a0 809 2,027 10,784
- - 149 334 787 1,270
304 (304) - - 9,576 9,576
- (547) - - 547 -
- (1,441) - (208) (159} {1.808)
4,493 1,077 539 935 12,778 19,822

———

4,531 635 502 829 1,442 7,939
5415 8.450 445 729 1,088 15,127
20114 548 759 1,807 33,167

9,939
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11 Praperty, plant & equipment (continued)

During 2009, development costs of £31,846,000 and land of £2,536,000 werg disposed of to the
joint venture undertafong, Health Properties Bath, including £873,000 of far value adjustments
recogrused on acquisition of the Health Properbes group dunng 2008 that were held n
depreciation and impairment

Dunng 2009, a comprehensive review of the fixed asset registers was made to bnng them in ine with
Group pohcy There was no overall adjustment to the net book valua of praperty, plant and equipment
as a result of these reclassifications, however some reclassificalions were made betwsen asset
categories and also between the ‘cost’ and "accumulated depreciation and wnparment’ categones

Commussioring and development costs include interest incurred of Srul (2009 £nil, 2008 £1,697,000)
during the year on borrowings specically related to development The cumulative amaunt of interest
included within assets under construction amounts to £l (2009 £ni, 2008 £1,697,000) The
caprtalisation rate is nif (2002 nil, 2008 10 5%)

At 31 Dacember 2010, £8,576,000 of costs capitalised in relation to the commissioning of the Circle
Bath Hospital were impaired, based on a value n use calculation using cash flow projechons based on
five year financial forecasts The key assumptions for these forecasts were the revenus growths based
on past experence and expectatons of future demand Cash flows were discounted back to present
value using a nisk adjusted discount rate of 15 0%, which representis the weighted average cost of
capital for the hosprtal, adjusted to reflect the fact that the hospital is 1n the early stage of operations

Dunng the year freehold land deposits and development costs with a carrying value of £4,565,000 in
Heaith Properties Reading were sold to a third pary for total proceeds of £5,201,000 This resulted in
a profit on disposal of £636,000, including any impairment recogrused on the Health Properties
Reading assets pnor to disposal Heaith Properties has a contractual agreement with the purchaser of
the development costs to benefit from sale of the Reading hospital under certam cwcumstances

In addihon, assets refating to Natons Healthcare Bradford were also disposed of in the year to the
Bradford PCT at the termination of the contract for €1, resulting in a less on disposal of £193,000

Assets held under finance lease have the following net book values

2010 2009 2008
£'000 £'000 £'000
Fumiture, fithngs and office equipment {(note 17) 246 - -
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12 Proviston for joint venture deficit

2010 2009 2008

£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January (1,507) - -
Inial recognition - (1,350} -
Ircrease in the year (255) {157} -
At 31 December {1,762) (1,507) -

2010 2009 2008
Group's share of net fiabilities of joint venture (38.7%) £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-current assets 13,571 13,571 -
Cuirent assets 971 1,411 -

14,542 14,982 -

Gurrent habilties (14,972) (986) -
Non-current iabihties (1,332) {15,503) -

{16,304) {16,489) -

Group's share of net liabilities (1,762) {1,507) -

Group's share of results of joint venture (38 7%)

Revenue 1,239 310 -
Operabng expeases (51) {38) -
Finance costs (1,443) (429) -
Group's share of loss after tax of joint venture (255) (157) -

The Group has one jont venture, Health Properhies Bath which 1s incorporated in Jersey and owns the Bath
hospital which has a 25 year lease with Circle Bath Hospital Of the total allotted share capital of 3,000 'B'
shares and 100 "A’ shares n Heaith Propertes Bath, the Group holds 1,200 'B' ordinary shares, Health
Estates Fund halds 1,800 'B' shares and Lehmans holds 100 'A’ shares

The ‘A’ shares and 'B’ shares constifute different classes of shares for the purposes of law but, except as in
the Artcles expressly prowded for, confer upon the holders the same nghts and rank pan passu n all
respects The maxrmum number of Directors shall, unless otherwise determined by a special resoiution, be
six, of whom three shall be ‘A’ Directors {representing the ‘A’ shareholders) and three shall be 'B' Directors
(representing the ‘B’ shareholders) Health Estates Fund has formally agreed to vote in accordance wth
the Group and that the 'B' Directors of Health Properties Bath onginally appointed by the Group will not
change as a result of Health Estates Fund's shareholding No party to the joint venture has control as a
resolution can only be made by the Board of Directors, vath a majonity of Directors

For 2009, the Group's share of loss after tax of the joint venture 15 for the period from 25 August 2009 {the
date when the directors of Lehmans were reinstated to the Board) to the end of the financial year (note 29)

As at 31 Decamber 2010, the joint venture does not have any cantingent hiabilities or capital commitments
As at 31 December 2010, Group guarantees of up to £4,000,000 {2009 £4,000,000, 2008 £4,000,000
were provided 1o Lehmans in respect of certain contractual obligations of the Health Properties Bath
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13  Inventories
2010 2009 2008
£'000 2'000 2000

Consumables 1,309 780 712

— ———|

At 31 Dacember 2010, an amount of £90,000 has been provided against the gross cost of inventory (2009
£nil, 2008 £nil) The cost of ventones recognised as an expense in the year 15 £4,642,000 (2009
£3,297,000) and nciuded within the above balance 1s a consignment stock balance of £318,000 (2009
£19,000, 2008 £19,000) which has a corresponding balance n trade payables

14  Trade and other receivables

Current Non-current
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Trade recewvablas 1,971 2,796 1,204 - - -
Less allowance for impairment of trade
recewvables (163) (96) (94) - - -
Net frade recewvables 1,808 2700 1,110 - - -
Operating nancial asset 1,012 1,012 1,012 43,003 43,232 44,244
Amounts recoverable on contracts 1,985 2,988 3,210 3.476 5,326 8.279
Amounts owed by related parties {note
31} 3072 321 5 “ - -
Other receivables 1,022 1,394 407 - - -
Prepayments and accrued incame 5816 3,338 2,825 802 140 140

14,715 14643 8,569 47,281 48,698 52,663

The Directors consider the canying amount of trade and other recewvables to approximate to therr far
value Long-term recewvables have been discounted where the time value of money 15 considered ko be
matenal

Opsrabng financial assets are recognised to the extent that there 1s an unconditional nght to recewve cash
from the construction of the Nottingham Treatment Centre through which the Group provides healthcare
sarvices Due to the length of the payment plans, receivables are entered at tha present value of amortised
costs The annual accumulation of interest on these discounted values Is recorded as fmance income A
portion of chent payments are deducied from receivables and a porhion from regular concession services
In accordance with the principles of IFRIC 12, beneficial ownership of the associated property asset lies
with the purchaser of services and not with the Group as provider of those services

Amounts awed from related parly undertakings are unsecured, carry no interast, and are repayable on
demand The Directors have constdered current cash flow forecasis and consider alf related party balances
to be fully recoverable
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14 Trade and other recervables (contmnued)

The movement in the allowance for impairment n respect of trade receivables dunng the year was as
follows

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

At 1 January 26 84

imparrment charge for the year 67 2

At 31 December 163 96
At 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade recervables was as follows

2010 2009 2008

£000 £'000 £'000

Not past due 1,220 2,221 50

Past due 0-30 days, but not mpatred 14 52 752

Past due 31-60 days but not impared 196 373 303

Past due by more than two months but not imparred 251 54 5

1,808 2,700 1,110

Trade recewvables are non-interest bearing and credit terms are generally 30-60 days The above
recewvables are overdue but not impaired because Management believe they are fully recoverable

The movement in the operating financial asset 1s as folows

2010 2009

£'000 £'600

At 1 January 44,244 45256

Reversal of amounts previgusly written off 783 -

Amounts received {1,012) {1,012

At 31 December 44,015 44 244
At 31 December, the ageing analysis of the operating financial asset was as follows

2010 2009 2008

£000 £'000 £'000

Due within 1 year 1,012 1,012 1,012

Due between 1 and 2 years 1,012 1,012 1,012

Due between 2 and 3 years 41,991 1,012 1,012

Due between 3 and 4 years - 41,208 1,012

Due between 4 and 5 years - - 41,208

44,015 44,244 45,256
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14 Trade and other receivables (continued)

The movernent in amounts recoverable on contract is as follows 2010 2609

£'000 £000
At 1 January 8,314 11,489
Additions - 103
Recognised in incorne statement (note 4) (2,853) (3.278)
At 31 December 5,461 8,314

15 Cash and cash equivalents

2010 2009 2008
Note E.Qo& £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 12,322 25,824 17,006

Less restnicted balances
- DoH Performance Bond a {500) (4,400) (7,200)
- Minimum balance — GE Capital Equipment Finance

Limited {'GE") & DoH b {1,900) {2,400) (2,400)
~  Lstter of Credit —GE c {1,800) {1,800) -
- Reantal bond — Nations Healthcare Bradford d - (213) {213}
~  Rentai bond -~ Health Propertigs Bath e - - {1,750)
~  Commssioming deposit - Circle Bath Hospital f - - (500)

{4,200) (8,813}  (12,063)
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 8,122 17,011 4,943

Included in the Group cash balance are the followmng amounts which are not freely available to the Group

a £500,000 (2009 £4,400,000, 2008 £7,200,000) provided as Performance Guarantee Bonds to the
DoH Of thes amount

Circle Health provided a counter indemmity io Barclays, up unhl 28 July 2010, by way of a fixed
charge over a deposit credited to a deposit account with the bank for Nations Healthcare
Burton (2009 £400,000, 2008 £1,800,000) The depostit and counter indemnity fell away as a
rasult of the contract arrangements with the DoH

Circle Hgalth provided a counter indemnity to Barclays, up unitl 21 Apnl 2010, by way of a
fixed charge over a deposit credied to a deposit account with the hank for Natons Healthcare
Nottingham (2009 £2,500,000, 2008 £3,300,000) The Performance Guarantee Bond was
released as part of the DoV and replaced with a guarantee by the Company for £1,200,000
which expires on 28 July 2011

Mattons Healthcars has provided a counter indemnity to Barclays by way of a fixed charge
over a deposit of £500,000 (2009 £1,500,000, 2008 £1,500,000) credited to a dsposit
account with the bank for Natons Healthcare Bradford

50



Circle Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

15 Cash and cash equivalents {continued}

b A condition of the ISTC contracts with the DeH and GE, who lease the madical equipment, 1s that
the following mimimum cash balances are maintained at each month end

- A mwimum balance of £1,300000 {2009 21,300,000, 2008 £1,300,000) at Mations
Healthcare Nottingham

- A minmum balance of £600,000 (2009 £600,000, 2008 £600,000) at Matons Healthcare
Burton

— A muemum balance of il (2008 £500,000, 2008 £500,000) at Natons Healthcare Bradford

c As part of the contractual agreement with GE to provide operating leases for Circle Bath Hospital,
Circle International has provided a counter indemnity to Barclays by way of a fixed charge over a
deposit of £1,800,000 (2009 £1,800,000, 2008 £nif) credited to a deposit account with the bank

d Up until February 2010, the Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS’) provided a guarantee to the Bradford
Treatment Centre building lessor, Orderbide Limited, for payment of rent by a Group company,
Nations Heailhcare Bradford Nations Healthcare provided a counter indemnity to RBS by way of a
fixed charge over a deposit credited to a deposit account with the bank {2009 £213,000, 2008
£213,000)

e A rental deposit of £1,586,000 (2009 £nil, 2008 £1,750,000) for Circle Bath Hospial 1s held by
Heaith Properties Bath under the terms of the lease Dunng 2008 this was included n the Group's
cash balance as Health Properiies Bath was accounted for as a subsidiary

f Health Properties Bath required a commissioning deposit of £500,000 from the Group during 2008
This was returned dunng 2008 and is no longer a restricted balance

The Group cash balance 1s subject to a fixed charge whereby Nations Healthcare Burton has pledged any
credit balance in its Prnmary Collecttons account and any credit balances in its Secondary Collections
account to the Treatment Centre building lessor, Orderbide Limited as secunty for the payment of rent At
the balance sheet date the credit balances of the Primary Coflections account were £nil (2009 £€nil, 2008
£nil) and the credit balances of the Secondary Collections account were £nil (2008 £nil, 2008 £nil)

16 Trade and other payables

Current Mon-current
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
£'000 £'060 £'000 £900 £'000 £'000
Trade payables 9,996 10,773 8,476 - - -
Amounts owed to joint venture (note
) 34 1,501 - - - -
Amounts owed fo other related
parttes (note 31) 152 50 158 - - 62
Payments en account 4,325 3,543 4,597 - 76 591
Social security and other taxes 636 258 335 - - -
Accruals 5,221 3,945 6,488 - - -
Contingent consideration 35 13 16 - 40 30

20,392 20173 20,070 - 118 £83
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16 Trade and other payables {continued)

Trade payables, accruals and amounts owed to joint ventures are unsecured and interest-free

The Directars consider the carrying amount of trade and other payables to approximate to their fair value
Long-term payables have been discounted where the tme value of maney is considered to be material

On acquisttion of Circle Clinic Windsor, contingent consideration arose, based on annual revenue over the
next five years and payable in annual instalments to Mr D Evans These balances were discounted (o
present value using a rate of 10 0%, with the discount unwinding over the five years post-acquisition
During the year, the cash flow liabillhes were reassessed based an actuai and budgeted tumover over the
life of the agreement, less payments already made durng the year

The Loan Note Instrument, which determines the unsecured loan notes and cantingent consideration
payable upon the acquisibion of Circle Climc Windsor, sets out cavenants and guarantees related to the
acquisihon These covenants are currantly in breach, and have been classified as a current hability

Movements in the balance of contingent consideration during the year have been as follows

2010 2009
£'000 2000
At 1 January 53 46
Reassessment of future cash fiows {notes 10 and 17) 3] 12
Unwind of discount on acquisihion {note 8 and 17) 3 11
Payments made (13) {16}
At 31 December k. 53
17 Loans and other borrowings
Currant Man-current
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
£000 £'000 £'000 £0c0 £'a00 £000
Barclays 922 43,717 44,600 42,556 - -
AlB 7,380 7,380 7,380 - - -
JCAM (1) 13,224 - - - 12,856 12,745
JCAM (n) - 2,500 - - - 2,500
Santander - - - - - B,870
Lehmans - - - - - 8,780
Secured bank loans (1) 21,526 53,597 51,880 42,556 12,856 32,895
Unsecured loan notes () 364 - - - 351 255
Secured finance leases () 76 - - 170 - -
21,966 53,597 51,980 42,726 13,217 33,150
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17 Loans and other borrowings {continued)
1 Secured bank loans
Loan
Loan Effective mterest facility 2010 2008 2008
Note commenced  rate £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Barclays a July 2005 5 0% (swapped) 44,474 43,478 43,717 44,600
AlB b March 2008 LIBOR+4 0% 7,380 7,380 7.380 7.380
JCAM (i) ¢ August 2008 30 0% 13,300 13,224 12,856 12,745
JCAM (1) d May 2008 25 0% 2,500 - 2,500 2,500
Santander e March 2008 7 5% (swapped) 21,750 - - 8,870
Lehmans f  WMarch 2008 20 0% 11,400 - - 3,780

64,082 66,453 84,875

The farr values of the Group's borrowings are not considered to be matenially different from ther book
values At inception, the JCAM (1] loan was farr valued and spht between loans and warrants The
amount refating to wamants was valued at £1,616,000 and has been taken to the warrant reserve in
equity As a result, the loan amount needs to be bult up to the principal amount owing at the end of the
term of the loan This has been calculated based on the effechive interest rate

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had breached certain banking covenants Under the terms of the
loan agreements, £13,224,000 was repayable after 12 months from the balance sheet date, but has
been presented as a current liabiity due to the breaches The breach and / or default status of the
Group's loans 1s included In the notes below

a

The Barclays PFIl loan 1s secured by way of a fixed and floating charge over the assets of Nations
Healthcare Nothngham Barclays also have a charge over the shares of Mations Healthcare
Nottingham that can be exercised in the event of Nations Healthcare Nottingham not meeting its
financial obligation to Barclays The lgan s baing repaid in quarterly instaiments of £227,000 to
£232,000, subject to the repayment re-scheduling as agreed under the DoV Payment holdays
werg gramted for the scheduled payments on 1 Juie 2010 and 1 September 2010 and a partal
repayment was granted for the payment due on 1 December 2010 The loan has been hedged by
means of an interest rate swap (note 19), fixing interest at a total rate of 5 0% per annum

The Barclays PFi loan of £43,478,000 18 not under any defaults or cross-defaults as at 31
December 2010 However, for the 2009 and 2008 financial year ends the loan was n technical
defauit due to various contractual changes and a revised opening date of the hospital not having
been agreed as a DoV between Nattons Group and the DoH  As a result, the Barclays loan was
classified as repayable within one year in the 2009 and 2008 comparatves The DoV was
subsequentiy agreed and signed i Apnl 2010

The AIB loan facility 15 a term lean facility secured for the purchase of land in Edinburgh The !oan
was oniginally for a one year term from 26 March 2008 The faciity was extended twice during 2009,
imbally for 12 months to 26 March 2010, foflowed by a further six months $o 26 September 2010
Dunng 2010 the facility was again extended until 31 March 2011, increasing the interest rate of the
faciity from LIBOR + 3 0% fo LIBOR + 4 0%, at which date the entire outstanding amount was
repayable During March 2011, an extension of the loan maturity date untl 30 June 2012 was
agreed with AIB  The nterest rate remains LIBOR + 4 0% for the extension period A regquirement
of the extension agreement s to prepay the entire interest amount payable in advance

The loan 1s secured on the assets of Health Properties Edinburgh Interest charged duning the year
has been taken to the income statement
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17 Loans and other borrowings (continued)

¢ The JCAM () loan represenis a bndging facility of £13,300,000 together with rolled up interest of
£831,000 giving a total amount due at redemption of £14,131,000 (2009 £14,131,000, 2008
£14,131,000) The loan s repayable within four years and carries a quarterly interest charga of
25 0% Warrants werg 1ssued to the lender at inception and were presented separately in equity at
an amaunt of £1,616,000, gwing nse to a loan balance at meeptian of £11,684,000 At 31 December
2010 the loan was camed at £13,224,000 (2009 £12,856,000, 2008 £12,745,000) and had an
affective interest rate of 30 0%, taking into account both interest and accretion towards the
redemption amount The loan I1s secured over the shares of Nations Healthcare Nottingham, Nations
Heaithcare Burtan and Natiwons Healtheare Bradford

At the year end, the JCAM (1) faciity was under a cross-default due to a default under a GE
equipment lease In May 2011 an agreement was signed with JCAM whereby a waiver of the cross-
default was received and the loan repayment date was extended from 28 August 2012 untl 28
February 2013

d The JCAM (n) loan facility was used to finance the purchase of the Edinburgh land and praperty and
Is for a two year term from 22 May 2008 The loan was repad in full on 22 May 2010 and was
secured on the shares of Health Properties Edinburgh and the bank accounts of Health Properties
and Health Preperties Edinburgh

e The Santander loan faciity 15 for £21,750,000, of which £21,750,000 (2009 £21,750,000, 2008
£8,870,000) was fully drawn down as at 31 December 2010 The loan converied fromn a
development to a term faciity in October 2009, when Circle Bath Hospital reached practcal
completion, and as at 31 Becember 2010 £nil interest had been rolled up nto the loan faciity {2003
£1,172,000, 2008 £193,000) The loan 15 secured on the assets and shares of Health Properties
Bath, which in wm has secunty over the assets and shares of Circle Hospital Bath

Health Properties Bath has been accounted for as a jont verture from August 2009 (note 12 and
29), therefore the loan is no longer included n the Group position

I The Lehmans loan i1s an unsecured loan facility for £8,000,000 of which £8,000,000 (2009
£8,000,000, 2008 £8,000,000) was drawn down as at 31 December 2010 There 15 an additional
loan facilty for rolled-up interest of £3,400,000 of which £2,676,000 (2009 £2,021,000, 2008
£780,000) was drawn down as at 31 December 2010

Lehmans has the abilty to convert the term loan to equity and shareholder loan at any paint The
coupon interest on the loan 1s 18 0% and the composite effective interest rate has been caloulated at
20 0%

Health Properties Bath has been accounted for as a joint venture from August 2009 (note 12 and
29), therefore the loan I1s no longer inciuded in the Group position
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i Unsecured loan notes
Effective Loan

Loan interest  facility 2010 2009 2008
commenced rate g'aoo £'000 £'000 £'000
Loan notes July 2008 n/a n/a 364 361 255

On acquisttion of Crele Chme Windsor, the Group issued loan notes that mature over five years to
the former owners Mr D Evans and Mrs P Momish The undiscounted values of these loan notes are
£91,000 (2005 £91,000, 2008 £102,000) and £359,000 (2009 £403,000, 2008 £320,000)
respectively after current year reassessment These are payable on 4 July 2013 and do not attract
interast

The Loan Note Instrument, which determines the unsecured loan notes and contingent consideration
payable upon the acquisiton of Crcle Clinic Windsor, sets out covenants and guarantees related ta
the acquisihon These covenants are currently in breach, and have been classified as a current
hability

Movements in the balance of loan notes during the year have been as follows

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
At 1 January 361 255
Reassesament of future cash flows {notes 10 and 18} (27) 51
Unwind of discount on acquisition {notes 8 and 16) 30 55
At 31 December 364 361

m Finance leases

Finance leases compnse Information Technology assets which were bought for £252,000 and then
sold to Singers Healthcare Finance Limited {"Singers”) in a sale and leaseback transaction The
finance lease 1s for a three year term and the first monthly payment was made in December 2010

210 2009 2008
£'000 £'000 £'000
Gross finance lease habilikes - mmimum lease payments
No iater than 1 year 99 - -
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 190 - -
289 - -
Future finance charges on finance izases (43) - -
Present value of finance lease habilties 246 - -
The breakdown of the present vaiue of finance leases 15 as follows
2010 2009 2008
£000 £'000 £000
Mo jater than 1 year 76 - -
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 170 - -

246 - -
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The finance lease liabilities are effectively secured as the nghts to the leased asset revert to the lessor
(Singers) In the event of & default At the end of the mitial hire period, the Group 15 entitled to extend the
duration of the lease and pay an agreed secondary rental, or act as agent for the lessor in the sale of the
equipment There are no covenants or restnctions on the Group imposed by this lease, and there are no
contingent rents

w  Maturity profile

2010 Less Belween Between Between Between Over5
thant 1-2years 2-3years 3I-dyears 4-5years years
year Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £°000
Barclays 922 922 41,634 - - - 43,478
AlB 7,380 - - - - - 7,380
JCAM (1} 13,224 - - - - - 13,224
Loan notes 364 - - - - - 364
Finance leases 76 B4 B6 - - - 246
21,966 1,006 41,720 - - - 64,692
2009 Less Greater
than1 Between Between Between Between than &
year 1-2years 2-3years 3J-4years 4-5years years Total
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Barclays 43,717 - - - - - 43,717
AlB 7,380 - - - - - 7,380
JCAM (1) - - 12,856 - - - 12,856
JCAM (n) 2,500 - - - - - 2,500
Loan notes - - - 361 - - 361
53,597 - 12,956 361 - - 66,814
2008 Less Greater
than 1 Between Between Between Between than &
vear 1-2years 2-3years 3-dyears 4-5vears years Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Barclays 44,600 - - - - - 44,800
AlB 7.380 - - - - - 7,380
JCAM (1) - - - 12,745 - - 12,745
JCAM (u) - 2,500 - - - - 2,500
Loan notes - - - - 255 - 255
Santander - - 250 500 750 7.370 8,870
Lehrnans - - 8,780 - - - 8.780
51,980 2,500 9,030 13,245 1,005 7,370 85,130
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18 Prowvisions for other liabilities and charges

2010 2009 2008
£°000 £'000 £'000
Current 602 711 652
Non-current 608 1,664 1,133
1,210 2,375 1,785

Cnerous Onerous

leases leasos

(equipment) (property) Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

At 1 January 2003 18 1,767 1,785
Additional provision charged to income statement 61 1,238 1,299
Utihsed duning the year (31) {678) {703}
At 1 Janvary 2010 4B 2,327 2,375
Net unused amounts reversed to income statement - (367) {367)
Utihsed during the year (32} (766} (798)
At 31 December 2010 16 1,194 1,210

Provisions for anerous leases - equipment

This prowision relates to the lease of an item of clinical equipment which 15 no longer in use and therefore
has been fully provided for until the end of the lease term The total expected costs to be incumed are
£16,000 {2009 £48,000, 2008 £18,000)

Pravisions for onerous leases - property

Leases for new chnics were taken on in 2006 and 2008 for West London and Ashford respectively The
premises are no longer required by the Group and management intends io sub-let the vacant premises
Management are currently negotiating with potential tenants in both sites and secuning additional advertising
ravenue from the pnme advertising space on top of the busicing in West London The provisions have been
calculated based on the total net costs expected o be incurred by the Group until the first apparunity to sub
let the property or exit the lsase arangement The prowvision relabing to the West London site 1s £939,000
{2009 £2,157,000, 2008 £1,767,000) while that for the Ashford site 15 £255,000 (2008 £170,000, 2008
£nil} The net credit to the income statement of £367,000 has been classified as an exceptional item (note
4

Mo discount has been appled to these provisions on the basis that the leases expire in the short-term and
any discount would be immatearial
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19 Derivative financial mstruments

At 1 January 2008
Changes to far value charged to income statement
Disposal of Health Properties Bath

At 1 January 2010
Changes to fair value charged to income statement

At 31 December 2010

Effective interest rate

50%

7 5%

Barclays Santander
Interest interest
rate swap rate swap Total
£°000 £'000 £000
3,170 3,400 6,570
(127) (398) (523)
- (3.004) (3.004}
3,043 - 3,043
451 - 451
3,494 - 3,494
— ————§——————— ;&

At 31 December 2010, the notonal prneipal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts,
which take the mnterest rates from floating to fixed, were £43,649,000 (2009 £43,955,000, 2008

£66,500.000) Note 30 provides mara details

20 Share capital and share premium
Authonsed

Ordinary and preference shares of £0 10 sach

Number of authorised shares

Allotted and fully paid up

Ordinary shares of £0 1G each

At 1 January 2009
Proceeds from shares 1ssued

At 1 January 2010

Proceeds from shares 1ssued - August 2010
Proceeds from shares issued - November 2010

At 31 December 2010

2010 2009 2008
£'000 £'000 £'000
700 500 400
7,000,000 5,000,000 4,000,000

Share Share
Shares capitai  premium Total
(rumber) £'tan £'q00 £'4300
2,389,290 239 69,492 69,731
1,468,385 147 31,698 31,845
3,857,675 386 101,190 101,578
156,250 16 4,984 5,000
234,375 23 5,506 5,529
4,248,300 425 111,680 112,105

Transaction costs mncurred during the 2010 equity raises totalled £27,000 (2002 £68,000), all of which
have Deen expensed due to thewr immaterial amount Proceeds are net of warant habiity ot £1,971,000

(2009 £nil, 2008 £mil)
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On 4 August 2010 the follavang ordinary sharas of £0 10 each were ssued for £32 00 each

Aggregate
Shares nominal
Investor issued value Total
{number) £'000 £000
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limted 78,125 8 8
l.ansdowne UK Equity Fund LP 11,347 1 1
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited 66,778 7 7
156,250 16 18

On 4 Movember 2010 the {aliowing ordinary shares of £0 10 each were 1ssued for £32 00 each

Aggregate
Shares nominal
Investor issued value Total
(number) £'000 £'000
BlackRack Investment Management (UK) Limited 46,875 5 5
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP 4,297 - -
tansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited 62,578 6 6
Lansdowne UK Strategrc investment Master Fund Limited 11,250 1 1
Balderton Capital Ill LP 78,125 8 8
BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund Limited 31,250 3 3
234,375 23 23
390,625 39 39
— ———————— I —— —  § —

On 4 November 2010, the Group received £7,500,000 of equity mvestment from BlackRock Investment
Management {UK) Limited, Lansdowns UK Equity Fund Limited, Lansdowns UK Equity Fund LP,
Lansdowne UK Strategic Investment Master Fund Limited, Balderton Capital Ill LF and BlueCrast Venture
Finance Master Fund Limited, split as shown above Of the total consideration recewved, £23,000 has been
allocated to share capital {234,375 ordinary shares at £0 10 each), £5,506,000 to share premium and
£1,971,000 to financial iabiies, the latter being the warrants atiached io the shares issued [nole 22)
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On 13 February 2009 the following preference shares of £0 10 each were 1ssued for £20 84 sach

Aggregate

Shares nominal
investor 1ssued value Tatal
(number) £'000 £'000
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP 141,300 14 14
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited 9,514 1 1
Balderton Capital ill LP 150,814 15 15
BlueCrast Venture Finance Master Fund Limited 71,906 7 7
373,534 37 37

On 13 February 2009, 373,534 preferance shares of £0 10 were 1ssued These ware sxchanged for fully paid
ordinary shares In a 1 1 exchange on 26 November 2009 The preference shares wera cancelled as a class of
shares on this date and all assoctated warrants were converted to ordinary shares on a 11 basis As at 31
Dacember 2010 there are authorised but no allotted preference shares (2009 nil and nil respectvely, 2008 il
and mi respectively) The authonsed preference shares form part of the £7,000,000 authonsed share capital

On 26 November 2009 the following ordinary shares of £0 10 each were 1ssued for £0 10 each.

Aggregate
Shares nominal
Investar 1ssued value Total
{number) £°000 £'000
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP 9,581 1 1
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited 163,645 16 16
Lansdowne UK Strategic Investment Master Fund Limited 32,857 3 3
Baiderton Capnal Il} LP 234,959 24 24
BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund Limited 95,819 10 10
BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund Limited” 1,333 - -
538,234 54 54
* BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund Limited exercised warrants for ordinary shares (note 22)
On 26 November 2009 the following ardinary shares of £0 10 each were issued for £37 02 each
Aggregate
Shareg naminal
Investor issued value Total
{number) £'000 £'000
BlackRock investment Management {UK) Limited 540,234 54 54
ING Capital LLC 16,383 2 2
556,617 56 56
Total 1,468,385 147 147
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21 Non-controiling interest

Health
Praperties Health

Circle Health Baih Properties Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

At 1 January 2009 (1,649) {116) - {1,765)

Non-controliing Interest's share of losses (2,393) 6 - {2,387)

Disposals - 110 - 110

At 31 December 2009 {4.042) - - (4,042)

Non-controlling interest's share of losses (4,747} - (368) (5,115)

At 31 December 2010 (8,789) - (368) (9,157}
Circle Health

Circle Health (which has an authonsed share capital of 100,000 ordinary shares of £0 10 nominal value
that give equal nghts to the voling, dvidend and capital of the company), 15 50 1% owned by Circle
Internabional and 49 3% owned by Circle Parntnership, an employee share ownership plan (note 23} of the
Group Circle Partnership has an authorised share capial of 1,000,000 ordinary shares of £0 01 nominaj
value that give equal nghts to the voting, dividend and capital of the company

As required under SIC 12 'Consolidation special purpose enthies', the results of Circle Partnership have
been conseolidated nto the Group financial statements as Circle Health 1s deemed to effectively control the
Clrcle Partnership

Whilst Circle International s fully owned by the Group, Circle Partnership represents an interest outside the
Group Up to 31 December 2010, Circle Partnership had 1ssued subscription letters for a total 36,364,443
shares (2009 31,398,206 shares) to employees, consultants and GPs Of these, the number of shares In
Circle Partnership that had vested uncenditionally as at 31 December 2010 amounted to 16,668,000
shares (2009 12,762,000 shares) This portion of uncondittonally vested shares gives rnise to the non-
controling interest in the results of the Circle group, which also includes Circle Partnership's indirect
holding in the Natlons group

tiealth Propertios Bath

In September 2008, following Lehmans' administration, a clause in the |joint venture agreement transferred
control of the jomnt vanture to the Group From this date, Heaith Properhes Bath was accounted for as a
subsidiary with a 3 2% non-controlling mterest From 25 August 2009, when the Lehmans' directors were
remstated to the Board, it was accounted for as a joint venture

61



Circle Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

21  Noan-controlfing interest {(continued)

Heaith Properties

Health Properties 1s 90 0% owned by the Group and 10 0% owned by Health Properties share scheme, an
employee share ownership plan (note 23) of the Group Health Properties has authonsed capsal of
1,000,000 "A’ shares of £0 001 nominal value, ali of which are ssued to Health Propertes share scheme
and 9,000 'B' shares of £1 nominal valug, all of which are issued to the Group Each share has
proporticnate nghis to the dividends and caprtal of the company, but only the 'B' shares have voting nghts

Similar to Circle Heaith, as required under SIC 12, the results of Health Propertes share scheme have
been consolidated into the Group financral statements as Health Properties 1s deemed to effectively control
the share scheme

Being an employee share ownership plan, Health Properties share scheme represents an interest outside
the Group At 31 Decernber 2010 Health Proparties share scheme had 1asued suliscnption letters for a total
of 350,507 'A' shares in Health Properies (2009 mi) to scheme paricipants Of these, the number of
uncondihionally vested "A’ shares in Health Properties as at 31 December 2010 was 217,000 (2009 mi)
This portion af unconditanally vested shares wm Health Properties share scheme gives risa to the non-
cantrolling interest in the resuits of the Health Propedies group

Mations Healthcare

Nations Healthcare 15 61 8% owned by Circle Health and 38 2% owned by Circle Internatanal Nations
Healthcare has authonsed share capital of 92,703,395 ‘A’ ordinary shares of £0 01 nomnal value,
7,303,605 B’ ordinary shares of 2001 nomwal value and 7,000 non-voting ordinary shares of 8001
nominal value The ‘A’ and 'B' shares rank equally on the winding up of the company but ‘B’ shares carry no
voting nghts 95,202,645 ‘A’ shares, 7,303,605 ‘B’ shares and 6,250 non-voling shares have been issued

In addition Nations Healthcare has authonsed preference share capital of 40,000,000 ‘G’ shares of which
22 000,000 have been ssued The preference shares do not carry any voling rights but are entiled to a
fixed cumulative dividend of 20 0% per annum and a nght to a return on capital on the winding up of
Nations Healthcare Circle International holds 17,500,000 preference shares and the Company holds
5,500,000 preference shares
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22 Warrants

The Company 1ssues warrants which give the holders the right to purchase shares in the Company for a
specific price at a future date The warrants are treated erther as equity mstruments and recorded in the
warrant reserve, or as financial habilihes and recorded 1n abihites, depending on the cntena outhned i the
Group's accounting policies

a Warrants treated as equity instruments
t  Movements in the warrant reserve during the year are as follows

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
At 1 January 16,524 10,905
Share-based payment expense (note 23) 3,354 4,169
Warrants 1ssued for nil consideration expense - 1,450
At 31 December 19,878 16,524
n  The warrant reserve comprises the following warrants
2010 2009 2008
Warrants ssued in 2008 £000 £'000 £'000
= Health Trust {(Jersey) 9,721 7,954 4,395
-~ Balderton Capttal lil LP 4111 4,111 4,111
- Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limnted 371 a7t 371
- Lansdowne UK Equty Fund LP 21 21 21
— Lansdowne UK Strategic Investment Master Fund Limited as1 391 3%
-~ JCAM Giobal Fund (Master) LP 1,616 1,616 1,618
Warrants rssued in 2009
—~  Health Trust {Jersey) 2,197 810 -
— Balderion Capital Ill LP 675 875 -
— Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited 436 436 -
~ Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP a3 43 -
— BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund Limited 296 296 -
Total 19,878 16,524 10,905

No warrants treated as eguity instruments were ssued dunng the year The warrants ssued to
shareholders in 2009 were valued at £19 57 per warrant (2008 £39 28) Warrants are valued according to
the Black-Scheles option pricing methodolagy on a diluted pncing basis using the parameters in the table
below The warrants 1ssued to JCAM Global Fund (Master} LP 1n 2008 were valued at £33 B4 based on an
assessment of the market price for the associated JGAM () loan

2009 warrant 1ssue parameters 13 February 2009
Stock price £29 84
Exercise price £29.84
Expected voiatiity 50 0%
Risk free interest rate 50%
Warrant life 10 years
Fair value of warrant 21857
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The hfe of the warrant s based on the expected term and s not necessanly indicative of exercise pattems that
may occur The historical volatility 1s assumed to be indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the
actual outcome

m  The following table details all share warrants 1ssued by the Company which are recogrised in equity

Benaficiary
Warrants 1ssued in 2008

Health Trust {Jersey)

Balderton Capital Il LP

Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP
Lansdowne UK Strategic Investment
Master Fund Limited

Balderton Caprtat Il LP

JCAM Glabal Fund (Master) LP

Warrants issued in 2009

Lansdowne UK Equity Fund limited
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP
BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund
Limited

BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund
Limited

Balderton Capital Il LP

Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP
Lansdowne UK Strategic investment
Master Fund Limited

BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund
Limated

Balderton Capital lll LP

Health Trust {Jersey) - Option Poal

Total

nNote

a,d
a

a

Warrants
number
{actual)

267,680
5,600
8,446

517

9,963
104,692
47,786

32,297
2,174

13,102

1,333
34,471
163,645
9,581

32,897

95,818
234,959
200,473

1,268,435
——————

Exercise
price
£

£51 545

£010
£51 545
€51 545

£51 545
£51 545
£51 545

£29 838
£29 838

£29 838

£29 838
£29 838
£0 10
2010

£0 10
£010

£010
£51 545

Fair value
e

£39 28
Exercised
£39 28
239 28

£39.28
£39 28
£33 84

£1957
£1957

£18.57

Exercised

£1957
Exercised
Exercised

Exercised

Exercised
Exercised
£1372

2011
Warrant
reserve
£'000

8,721

371
21

3N

4,111
1,616

436
43

296

675

2,197

19,878

a On 26 November 2008, the 440,084 warrants 1ssued in 2008 with an exercise price of £59 67 per share
{which mcludes the 267,680 warrants 1ssued to Health Trust (Jersey) in 2008) were adjusted to an exercise
pnce of £51 65 per share. There was no adusiment to the far values of the warants as the updated
exercise price toak into account the dilution factor of the November 2008 share issue, and therefore there 15

no effect on the Group financial statements

Qn 13th February 2008, 85,377 warrants were issued t0 shareholders that entitie the holder to acquire an
equivalent number of preference shares in the Company with an exercise price of £29 84 per share The
warrants have no expiry date but lapse if the Company 1s sold Of these warrants, 1,333 were exercised
immediately On 26 November 2009, the remaining 84,044 wamants were replaced by wamants with the

same terms for ordinary shares (note 20 and 31)



Circle Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

22 Warrants (continued)

G On 26th November 2009, 536,801 anti-diluton warrants were 1ssued to shareholders that entitle the
holder to acquire an equivalent number of Company ordinary shares with an exercise price of £0 10 per
share These warrants have no expiry date but lapse if the Company 1s histed or sold These warrants
were exercised immediately for a total consideration of £54,000 (note 20 and 31)

d This 15 a share-based payment transaction (note 23)

b Warrants recognised as financial liabidities

The following table detalls all share warrants 1ssued by the Company which are recognised as a financial
habihty in the consciidated balance sheet

2010

Exercise Warrant

price hability

Beneficiary e £'000

Warrants igsued i 2010
-~ BlackRock Investment Management (UK)

Limited 20 10 394
—  Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited 2010 526
- Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP €010 36
- Lansdowne UK Strategic Investment

Master Fund Limited £010 95
- Balderton Capital Hi LP £0 10 6857
- BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund

Limited £0 10 263
Total 1,971

In November 2010, the Company raised £7,500,000 from a number of existing shareholders {note 20) A
condition of the raise was that i the case of a further equity rarse prior to 30 September 2011, these ongenal
investors would be allocated £0 10 anti-dilutive ordinary share warrants The number of warrants to be 1ss5ued
will be based on the share price of the equity raised in the subsaquant offermg

These warrants were valued by an independent external valuation firm using a Monte-Carlo simulation, which
Is a complex mathematical algonthm valuation too! They calculated the total fair value of these ant-dilutive
share warrants to be £1,971,000

The number of warrants to be issued is vanable as it 18 dependent on the share prnce of the subsequent
financing Consequently, the warrant portton of equity raised 1s treated as a financial labiity under IAS 32
'Financial instruments, presentation’ The balance is classified as current since the habtity will be settled at
the earler of a further equity raise or 30 September 2011

In the event that no subsaequent financing takes place, the warrants shall bacome exercisable for the same
number of shares as they purchased during the November 2010 equiy raise (note 20) Per the Articles of the
Company, these warrants and the onginally 1ssued ordinary shares will convert into preference shares which
rank ahead of ordinary shares for the enbire subscription price paid in the case of iquidation or sale of the
Company
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23 Share-based payments

Shares and share warrants are 1ssued to employees, consultants, GPs and external investors who
contnbute to the success and growth in value of the Group The issuance of these warrants and shares,
including the 1ssue of shares to scheme partcipants and employses, qualifies as equity-settied share-
based payment transactions and falls within the scope of IFRS 2 'Share-based payment The charge to
the ncome statement in respect of share-based payments 1s as {ollows, however note there 18 no charge
associated with the fransaction where the employees subscribe for the shares at full market value

2010 2009

Nate Type £'000 £'000

Health Trust {Jersey) a Warrants 1,767 3,558
Heatth Trust (Jersey) - option pool B Warrants 1,587 810
Circle Partnership ¢ Shares - -
Health Praperties share schame d Sharas - -
Total 3,354 4,168

a  Heaith Trust (Jersey)

Health Trust (Jersey), of which Mr A Parsadoust 15 a beneficiary, received 220,190 warrants on
acquisition of Health Propertes group at an exercise pnce of £59 67 on 29 May 2008 and 47,490
warrants at an exercise pnce of £59 67 on 4 June 2008 The farr value of the warrants at the date of
1ssue was deterrined to be £39 28 per warrant and £10,514,000 in total, according to the Black-Scholes
methodology

The warrants entitle the holder to acquire an equivalent number of ordinary shares in the Company with
an exercise price of £5967 per share, with no expiry date These were ssued as addittonal
consideration for the salg of 100 0% of the shares in Health Properties to the Company

The warrants are conditional an Mr A Parsadoust remaining with the Group for a specified penod up to 48
months and vest evenly over this period The warrants lapse if the Company 15 sold and if there I1s a
change of control, the outstanding warrants will immediately vest However vesting i1s unaffected if the
Company s histed

The exercise price of these warrants was repriced to £51 55 during 2002 (note 22)

b Health Trust (Jersey) - option pool

An additional share-based payment was made to Health Trust (Jersey) on 27 November 2009 The trust
received 200,473 warrants to subscribe far an equivalent number of ordinary shares in the Company at
an exercise pnce of £51 55 The far value of the warrants at the date of 1ssue was determinad to be
£13 72 per warrant ang £2,750,000 in total, according to the Black-Scholes methodelogy

The warrants vest in 20 0% increments based upan the next five hosprtals opening durning the haspltat
plan perod The warrants are also conditonal on Mr A Parsadoust, a beneficiary of Health Trust
{Jersey), remaming with the Group at the time of each hospital opening  Again, the warrants lapse f the
Company 15 sold and if there 15 a change of control, the outstanding warrants will immediateiy vest
However vesting 1s unaffected if the Company 15 listed
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23 Share-based payments (continued)

¢ Circle Partnership

Circle Parlnership was established tn 2008 as an employee share ownership plan and owns 49 9% of the
shares in Circle Health in order to allow the parkeipants (Group employees, consuftants and GPs) who
contribute to the success and growth 1n value of Circle Health to be owners of the business The
participants are Issued shares in Circle Partnership rather than shares directly in Circle Health

The scheme envisages thai shares are awarded on deferred payment terms The purchase price for the
shares becomes payable upon the occurrence of certain events, including the completion of a sale of the
shares by a participant

The subscniption price for the shares 15 the Fair Market Value (FMV') as determined by an independent
valuation As the subscription price 1s equal to the FMV, there 15 no share-based payment charge

d Health Properties share scheme

Health Praperties share scheme was estabhished in 2010 as an employee share ownership plan and
owns 10 0% of the shares in Health Properies as nominee for the participants (Group employees and
consultants) This allows those who contribute to Health Properities’ growth and success 1o be owners of
the business and share in the increase in value

The scheme envisages that shares are awarded on deferred payment terms  The purchase price for the
shares becomnes payable upon the ocourrence of certam events, wncluding the completion of a sale of the
shares by a participant.

The subscnption prce for the shares 1s the Fair Market Value {'FMV") as determined by an independent
valuation As the subscription price 15 equal to the FMV, there 15 no share-based payment charge
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23 Share-based payments {continued)

Movements in the number of warrants outstanding and therr related weighted average exercise
prices are as follows

2010 2010 2009 2009

Average Average

Warrants  exercise price Warrants  exercise price

(actual) (£ per share) (actual) (£ per share}

At 1 January 468,153 £5155 267,680 £59 67
Granted - - 200,473 £51 55
Modification - - - £51 55
At 31 December 468,153 £51 55 468,153 £51 55

There were no new wamant issues qualifying as share-based payments dunng 2010 (2009 200,473
issued warrants) The expense recognised in the income statement for the year to 31 December
2010 in respect of previously i1ssued share-based payments was £3,354,000 (2009 £4,169,000)
No warrants were exerciged n 2010 {2009 niy Of the 468,153 ocutstanding warrants (2009
468,153), only 212,971 were exercisable (2009 105,957 warrants) All the outstanding warrants
have an exersise pnee of £51 55. The warrants issued to Health Trust {(Jersey) do not have an
expiry date

The warrants issued have been valued according to the Black-Schofes option pricing methodology
on a difluted pocing basis, based on the mputs below and the relevant share price at the tme of
1ssue These were vaiued at the tme of the warrant issue, or modification where appropriate, and
are charged to the income statement as share-based paymants vath the credit being recagmised in
the warrant reserve over the warrant vesting perod The weighted average far value of warrants
granted was £33 18 (2009 £33 18)

The fallowing table hsts the significant inputs to the Black-Scholes valuation model for the year
ended 31 December 2010. Note that thare were no new share-based payment warrants 1ssued in
2010

2009 warrant issue parameters 2009
Stock prce £59 67
Exercise price £51 55
Expected volatiity 30 0%
Risk free interest rate 50%
Warrant life 5 years
Farr value of warrant £1372

The Iife of the warrant 1s based on the expected term and i1s not necessanly indicative of exercise
patterns that may occur  The tustoncal volaiility 1s assumed 1o be indicatve of future trends, which
may not necessanly be the actual outcome

The 267,680 warrants 1ssued during 2008 were modified on 27 November 2009 due to the onginal
exercise price bemng 'under water' following a fall in the Company's share price The gxercise price
for the warrants was changed from £5967 to £51 55, which had no effect on the ongmnally
determined fair value of the warrants The far value of the modified warrants was also determuned
using the Black-Scholes valuation model, agan using the same inputs as listed above
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24 Capital commitments
At 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitments as follows

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements - 739

Of the total caprtal commtment disclesed in 2009, £500,000 arose in Health Properties Edinburgh and was to
provide funds to Boskabelle Edinburgh Lim#ed, the land vendor, for a coninbution o the development and
construction of the estate roads and utilities of the site

The remaining capitai commitment disclosed i 2009 was for the unfulfilled outstanding purchase orders for
Health Properties Reading, which 1s now disposed of

25 Pension commitments

The Nations Healthcare Group and Circle Chnic Windsor parhcipate in a personal defined contnbution
penston scheme for its employees The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently admimistered fund The contnbutions by the Group for the year were £189,000 (2009
£166,000) As at 31 December 2010 outstanding contributions totalled £23,000 (2009 £nil, 2008 £nil)

26 Cperating lease commiments

The Group has entered into varnous non-cancellable operating leases of equipment, land and buildings with
varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Plant and machinery Land and buildings

2010 2009 2010 2009

£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000

No later than 1 year 4,632 2,959 5,433 6,671
Later than 1 year and no laler then 5 years 7,113 5756 15,261 17,159
Later than 5 years - - 63,134 66,669
11,745 8,715 83,828 90,499

Plant and machinery

On 28 August 2009 the Group entered into a lease agreement with GE for the lease of clinical equipment to
be used in the Bath hospital, commencing 1 January 2010

The Group had breached certain financial covenants in the GE equipment lease for eguipment in the Circle
Bath Hospital at the year end In March 2011 a waiver of all events of default and breaches was obtained
from GE and the terms of the agreement which were breached were reset
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26 Operating lease commitments (continued)
Land and buildings

The Group has an operating lease with Orderbide Limited to lease buildings for the purpose of providing
healthcare serwices contracted with the NHS i Burton The lease 1s for five years and commenced n
July 2008

On 5 October 2008 Circle Bath Hospital entered a lease agreement to lease Bath hospiial from Health
Properties Bath, & joint venture of the Group The lease has been spit mto land and bulding lgase
components

On 3 December 2010 Circle Hospital (Reading) Limited {'Circle Reading Hospital’) entered into an
Agreement for Leasa to leass a hospital in Reading for 25 years at £4,750,000 per year from the date of
completion of the hospital Circle Reading Hospital's obligations under the Agresment for Lease are
guaranteed by the Company and its obligation to lease the hospital 1s contingent upon the hospital being
developed by the Developer in accordance with the terms of the Agraement for iLease As such, the
lease commitment is not included in the disclosures on the previous page as these condiions have not
yet been meat

27 Net cash outtlow from operating activities

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Operating Loss (34,971) (19,762)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 11) 1,270 1,259
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note 11) 9,576 .
Impairmant of goodwill {note 10) 2,845 334
{Gain} / loss on sale of assets
—  Gain on sale of assets in Health Properties Reading {note 11) (636) -
- Loss on sale of assets in Nations Healthcare Bradford {note 11) 193 -
Assels disposed of for nil consideration
-~ External site costs written off (note 4) - 1,492
—  Research and devslopment costs wntten off (nots 4) - 501
—  Other - 51
Share-based payments in respect of warrants issued (note 23) 3,354 4,169
Warrants 1ssued for mi consideration (note 22) - 1,450
Recogrused in respect of amounts recoverable under contract {note 14} 2,853 3,278
Amortisation of intangible assets {note 10} 85 a1
Profit on disposal of mvestment in subswdiary undertaking (note 29) - (2,9a1)
Provision for joint venture deficit {note 12) 255 157
Movements i working capital
—  Increase m inventories (529) (68)
—~  increase in trade and other recewables {1,508) {3,974)
—  Increase / (decrease} In trade and other payables 194 {899)
—  {Decrease) / increase in provisions (1,165) 580

(18,184) {14,242)
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27 Net cash outflow from operating activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment compnse 2010 2009
£'000 £000
Net book value (note 11} 5,137 3,524
Profit on disposal of property, plant and aquipment 443 -
Assets disposed of for nil consideration - {2.044)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 5,580 1,480
28 Reconciliation of net debt
2010 2008
£000 £'000
(Decrease} / ingrease in unrestricted cash m the year (8,889) 12,068
Decrease i restncted cash n the year {4,613} (3,250
Net new loan repayment / (fmancing) 2,806 (10,931)
Sale and leaseback proceads (246) -
Mlovement in net debt from cash flow (10,942) {2.113)
Disposals, net of cash acquired - 33,978
Precemeal disposal of subsidiary undartalung - (1,798)
Transfer to receivables - {1,427)
Other non-cash movements (438) {1,508)
Movement in net debt (11,380) 27,134
Net debt at 1 January (40,980} (68,124)
Nest debt at 31 December (52,370) (40,990)
Other non- At 31
2010 At 1 January Cash Reclassifi- cash December
2010 flow cations changes 2010
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Liquid resources
Unrestnigted cash 17,011 {8,889) - - 8,122
Restncted cash 8,813 {4.613) - - 4,200
Debt due within one year
AlB {7,380) - - - (7,380}
Barclays (43,717) 306 42 556 (67} (922)
JCAM (n) {2,500) 2,500 {12,856) {368) {13,224)
Loan notes - - (361) (3} (364)
Finance leases - (76} - - {76)
Debt due after one year
JCAM (1) {12,856) - 12,856 -
Barclays - - {42,556) - {42,556}
Loan notes {361) 361 - -
Finance leases - (170) - - {170)
Net debt {40,990) {10,942) - (438) {52,370)

71



Circle Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

28 Reconciliation of net debt (continued)

2009 At 1 Other At 31
January Cash Disposal of Equity non-cash December
2009 flow Subsidiary Sale Transfers changes 2009
£°000 £'000 £000 e'00C £000 £'000 £000
Liguid resources
Unrestricted cash 4943 12,068 - - - - 17,011
Restncted cash 12,063 (3,250) - - - - 8,813
Debt due within one
year
AlB {7,380} - - - - - (7,380)
Barclays (44,600) 920 - - - (37) (43,717)
JCAM (1) - - - - (2,500) {2,500)

Debt due after one

year
JCAM (1}, {11) (15,245) - - - 2,500 (111) (12,856)
Sharshelder Loan (100 - 3,097 (1,798 (1.427) 228 -
Santander (8,870) {11,851) 21,111 - - (390) -
Lehmans (8,680) - 9,770 - - {1,090) -
Loan notes {(255) - - - - {106) {361)
Net debt (68,124 (2,113) 33,978 (1,798) {1,427) (1,5086) (40,990}

—— i — emme——

MNon-cash movements during the year relate o the following

Reclassification of Barclays loan, spht between cument and non-current as a result of the covenant
breach baing remedied

Amorsation of £67,000 (2003 £37,000) of Barclays loan issue costs that are set off agamnst the loan
and spread over the life of the loan

Unwinding of discount of £368,000 (2009 £111,000} far the equity portton of the JCAM (i) loan
Reclassification of £13,224,000 of the JCAM (1) loan (2008 £2,500,000 JCAM () loan) as due within one
year

2008 rolled up interest, increasing the debt by £1,252,000 across the shareholder foan {recewvable of
£228,000), Lehmans {payable of £1,090,000) and Alliance and Leicester loans (payable of £390,000)
The shareholder loan in the jomt venture of £1,427,000 tn 2009 1s no longer consolidated and is shown
in recewvables at 31 December 2009 and 2010

Reassessment of future cash flows resulting in £27,000 decrease i loan notes owing (2009 £51,000
tncrease), offset by unwinding of discount on acquisition of £30,000 (2009 £55,000)

As disclosed i note 29, the Group sold a 80 0% holding of its interest in Health Properties Bath in 2009,
representing 58 1% of the entire share capita!
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29 Acquisitions and disposals
i Acquisitions

On 1 April 2009, the Group purchased the remaiming 11 7% share capital in its subsidiary undertaking,
Natons Healthcare, for £5 plus £35,000 costs. No goodwill arose on this acquisihion and the costs were
expensed in 2009 Thers have been no further acquisstons in 2010

i Disposals

COn 27 August 2009 the Group sold 58 1% of the entire share capital of Health Properties Bath for cash
consideration of £2,000 plus a transfer of a sharsholder fvan of £1,798,000 at par for cash From a
Group perspective this represented a 60 0% interest, since there was a non-controlling interest of 3 2%.
The Group retains an interest of 38 7% in the share captal of Health Properhes Bath which 15 now
accounted for as a joint venture since the Aricles of Assocration provide for equal voting between the
Lehmans' and the Group's directors

From 15 September 2008, Health Properties Bath had been accounted for as a subsidiary following
Lehmans going into administration Cn 25 August 2009, the defauit by Lehmans was waived and the
Lehmans’ directars wera rawnstated to the Board of Directors with the same powers and voting rights as
inshally granted, triggering the disposal outined above

The profit on disposal, as shown in the consolidated income statement account, was determined as
follows

2009

€000
Praceeds from safe of equity 2
Transfer of shareholder loan 1,798
Total Proceeds 1,800
Net labibties as at 27 August 2009 (2,026)
Whrite back of previcusly impaired farr valug adjustments {note 11) {873)
Transfer of shargholder loan 1,798
Total net liatuhittes on disposal (1,101}
Profit on disposal of subsidiary undertaking ' 2,901

There were no disposals dunng 2010
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30 Financial risk management
i Financial risk factors

The Group's operations expose t to a vanety of financial nsks that wmelude price nsk, credit nsk, lgudity nsk,
contract risk, cash flow risk and interest rate nsk The Group seeks to limit the adverse effects of these risks by
monitaring levels of debt finance and the related finance costs, and by matching the asks af the financing vath the
nsks and return profiles of the assets The nsks are monitored by Management throughout the year via monthly
reviews of operational performance, cash flows, levels of individual debt instruments and overall debt levels

Due to the natura of the two current monthly minmum take ISTC contracts with the DoH and the interest rate swap
n Nottingham on the Barclays PFl loan, thers 1s no matenal price or credit nsk expesure for the compames
operating in the Nations Healthcars group

Classes of financial instruments

The Group's financlal mstruments compnse financial assets such as cash, short-term deposits, trade and other
recesvables, and financial labiities such as bank loans, loan notes, trade and other payables In addition, the
Graup 18 party to mterest rate swaps, (o manage the Group's interest rate nsks arfaing from the Group's sources of
finance

The following tables classify the Group's financial instruments according to IAS 39 'Financial Instruments,
recognition and measurement’

Loans and Heldatfar  Amortised

As at 31 December 2010 receivables value cost Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial assets

Trade and other recevables 48,917 - - 49,917

Cash and cash equivalents {note 15} 12,322 - - 12,322

Total firancial assets 62,239 - - 62,239

Financial habilies

Trade and other payables - - (10,853) {10,853)
Dervative financial Instruments (note 19} - {3,494) - {3,484)
Bank loans {note 17) - - {64,082) (64,082)
Loan notes {note 17) . - - (364) {364)
Finance lease liabilities (note 17) - - (246) (248)
Warrant hability {note 22) - - {1,971) {1,971}

Tatal financial llabilities

(3,494) (77,518) {81,010}
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30 Financial nsk management (continued)
Classes of financral instruments (continued)

As at 31 December 2009

Financial assets

Trade and other recejvables
Cash and cash squivalents (note 15)

Total financial assets

Financial habitities

Trade and other payables

Dervative financial instruments (note 19)
Bank Ioans (note 17)

Loan notes (note 17}

Total financial liabilities

As at 31 December 2008

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents (note 15}

Total financial assets

Financial {iabthties

Trade and other payables

Denvative financial instruments {note 19)
Bank loans {note 17)

Loan notes {note 17)

Total financial liabilitres

a Market risk

Loans and Held at fair Amortised
receivables value cost Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
51,549 - - 51,549
25,824 - - 25,824
717,373 - - 77,373
e
- - (12,725) {12,725)
- (3,043} - (3,043)
- - (66,453) {66,453)
- - {361) (361)
- (3,043) (79,539) (82,582)

Loans and Heid at fair Amortised
receivables value cost Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'900
46,778 - - 46,778
17.006 - - 17,006
63,784 - - 63,784
- - {9,077) 18,077
. {6,570) - (6.570)
- - (84,875) (84,879)
- - {255) {255)
- (6,570) {94,207) (100,777)

Market nsk is the nsk that changes in market prces, such as interest rates or other pnce risks, will affect the
income or the value of flnancial instruments The abjective of market rsk management 1s to manage and
control market nsk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optirmising the return on nsk

The Group s pnmanly impacted by interest rate risk and other price nisks, which are outlined on the next page
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30 Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk {continued)
1) Interest rate nisk

Financial instruments affected by market nsk include bank ioans, short-term depasits and denvative
financial instruments The Group 18 primanly sensitive to changes it UK interest rates This affects future
cash flows from short-term cash deposits and the cost of varizble rate debt The Group manages this nsk,
where significant, by holding long-term loans and entenng into interest rate swaps in order to fix the
interest payable on these Updated projections and forward plans on raising funds are prepared As at 31
December 2010, 87 5% (2008 &5 B%, 2008 78 4% of the Group's inan and borrowings were tixed by
interest rate swaps (note 18) Shori-term deposits held at floating rates of interest represented 13 3%
(2009 22 6%, 2008 14 1%) of total assets of the Group

The following table summarises the fixed and vanable rate loans, and therr effective interest rate

Variable Fixed Interestfree Total
£'000 £'000 2’000 £000
At 31 Decembar 2010
Loans and other borrowings 7.380 56,948 364 64,692
At 31 December 2009
Loans and other borrowings 7.380 59,073 361 66,814
At 31 December 2008
Loans and other borrowings 7.380 77,495 255 85130

The following denvative contracts were in place af the reporting date

Effective Notional Carrying
Counter Interestrate Matunty date amount value
party % £°000 £:000 £'000
At 31 December 2010
Interest rate swaps Barclays 50% 27 Jul 13 43,649 3,494
At 31 December 2009
Interest rate swaps Barclays 53% 1 Dec 12 43,855 3,043
At 31 December 2008
Interest rate swaps Barciays 53% 1Dec12 44 B75 3,170
Interesk rate swaps Santander 7 5% 15 Jul 24 21,625 3,400
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a Market risk (continued)
1) interest rate risk {continued)

A change of 100 basis points in mterest rates at the reporting date would have ncreased / (decreased)
equity and reported results by the amounts shown below The analysis assumes that all other vanables
remain constant

Profit or loss Equity
100 bp 100bp 100 bp 100bp
merease decrease increase  decrease
£'000 £'000 £'000 000
At 3t Decernber 2010
Varable rate bank lpans (74) 74 (74} 74
Net sensitivity (74) 74 (74) 74
At 31 Decamber 2009
Variable rate bank loans (74) 74 {74} 74
Net sensitivity (74) 74 (74) 74
At 31 December 2008
Vanable rate bank loans (74) 74 {74) 74
Net sensitivily (74) 74 (75) 74

The rest of the debt in the Group 1s either fixed rate debt or has been fixed by means of a floating to fixed
interest rate swap There 1s a zero effect of a change in interest rate on this debt A vanation in interest
rates on the cash balances would not give nse to a significant change i value and therefore have not been
ncluded m the table above

2) Other price risks

The Group has a number of long-term contracts containing fixed indexation provisions The Group generally
seeks to price contracts at levels that take account of mcreasing prices As the volume of private patients I1s
anticipated to increase, the Group will be increasingly subject to pncing changes from private mnsurance
companies

In respect of the warrant latility of £1,971,000 as at 31 December 2010 (2009 £ml, 2008 £ml), any expected
changes in the key assumptions would not have a matenial impact on iis value

b Credit nisk

Credit nsk 15 the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter party to a financial mstrument fails to
meet its contractual abligations, and anses principally from the Group's receivables from customers and cash
deposits, with their maximum exposure being represented by their carrying amount

The Group has policies with customers that require upfront payment, where appropriate Credit control
procedures are designed to ensure that project revenue 1s collected according to agreed terms, that policies exist
to limit exposure to any one party and ensure approved credit hmits are reviewed regularly These all help to
ebminate significant concentrations of credit nsk

Most revenues anse from insured patients’ business and the NHS Insured patients give rise to trade recewvables
which are mamly due from large insurance insbitubons, who have high credit worthiness The remainder of
revenues anse from individual self-pay patents

Group policy Is to deposit cash with counterparties that have a long-term credit rating of at least AA by key rating
agencres
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30 Financial risk management (continued)
[ Liquidity nsk

Liquicity nisk 1s the nsk that the Group witt entounter difficulty m meeting s financial obhgations as they fail due The
Group's appreach to iqudity 1S to ensure that it will always have sufficient hquidity to meet its habiitiss when due,
without incurnng unaccepltable lesses or nsk damaging the Group's reputation

This is actweved by robustiy managing cash generation across its operahons, by applying cash collechon targets
throughout the Group and by managing liquidity nisk via long-term debt and equity funding from shareholders

The Group has received strong support from its shareholders who have prowided equity cash funding when necessary
1o fund the Group’s activibes These funds have been utlised to support the business plans of the Group In accordance
with the Group's financial projections which arg updated on a regular basis

The table below analyses the Group's non-derwvative financial iabilites and dernvative financial liabilthes mito relevant
maturily groupings based on the remaining perod at the balance sheet date to the contract maturity date The amounts
included in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than Between Between Between Between Over 5 years
1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-dyears 4-5 years
At 31 December 2010

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'a00 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables (10,853) - - - - -
Bank loans (12,423) {18,197) (42,164) - - -
Dernvative finaneial instruments (1,691) (1,855) {1.212) - - -
Net outflows (24,967) (19,852) {43,376) - - -

Less than Between Between Between Between OQver 5 years
1year 1-2years 2-3years 34 years 4-5 years
At 31 December 2009

£'000 £'000 £'0go £000 £'000 £'000
Trade andg other payables (12,725) - - - - -
Bank loans (15,348} {4,888) {52,330} - - -
Denvative flnancial instruments {1,844} (1,801} (1,767) - - -
Net outflows (29,915)  {6,689) (61,097) - - .

Lessthan Between Between Between Between Over 5 years
1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-8 years 4-5 years
At 31 December 2008

£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables (9,077} - - - - -
Bank ioans (15,384) (11,430} (17,424) {62,049} {1,571} (24,512)
Denvative financial nstruments {653) (1.249) (953) (723) {316) (985)
Nst outflows (25,114}  (12,679) (18,377) (62,772) (1,887) (25,497)
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30 Financial risk management (continued)
¢ Liqudity risk (continued)

The risk that the outflow of cash occurs significantty eariier than the maturty analysis discloses or for a
significantly different amount than those indicated 1s mibgated by the fact that the trade payables are due
imminently, and the principal and interest on the bank loans {and corresponding derivative financial mstrument)
are contractual obligations whose timings are clearly defined and fixed unless a breach of covenant takes
place

i Capital risk management

The pnmary objective of the Group’s management of debt and equity Is to ensure the continued growth of the
businass, including the financing of new hosprals, equipment and start-up costs, including Head Office
overheads, in arder to provide retumns for the Group shareholders, Circle partners and other stakeholders The
Group revises financing when needed through a combination of equity and warrants See note 22 for further
mnformation

Objectives are set out at the beginning of each year in line with the imposed requirements aof the shareholder
agreements Covenants are tested monthly

i Fair value estimation

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial nstruments by
valuatgn techruque

Level 1  quoted prices in active markets,

tevel 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or labiity,
either directly {as prices) or indirectly (denved from prices) This level includes the majonty of Over
The Counter derivative contracts, traded lpans and structured debt. The sources of input parameters
hke LIBCR yield curve or counterparty credit sk are Bloomberg and Reuters

Level 3 inputs of the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data

The following tabie presents the Group's assets and liabihties that are measured at far value

At 31 December 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Liabihties £'000 €000 2'000
Interest rate swap {note 19) - 3,494 -

- 3,494 -
At 31 December 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Liabifities £'000 £'000 £000
lnterest rate swap (note 19) - 3,043 -

- 3,093 -
At 31 December 2008 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Liabilities £'000 £'000 £'000
Interest rate swap {note 19} - 6,570 -

- 6,570 -
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31 Related party transactions

Pnncipal subsidiaries and joint ventures

Detauis of the investments m which the Group holds 20 0% or mare of the nominal value of any class of share

capital are as follows

Name of company
Circle International pic

Health Properties Limited

Health Estates Managers
Limited

Health Capital Limited

Circle Health Limited*

Windsar Hand Surgery Limited”
Nations Healthcare Limited®
Mations Healthcare Lumited”

Nations Healthcare (North
Bradford) Limited*

Nations Healthcare {Burton)
Limited=

Natons Heahlthcare
(Nothngham) Limited”

Nations Healthcare (West
London) 2006 Linmted”

Nations Healthcare (West
London) LLP*

Crrcle Chries Limited*
Circle Hospital (Bath) Limited™

Circle Hospral {Reading)
Limited*

Circle Hospital {Nottingham)
Limited*

Heaith Properties (Ashford)
Limited®

Holding
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordnary shares

‘A’ Ordinary shares

'C’ Preferred shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Crdinary shares
COrdinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

‘A&'8’ Ordinary shares

Mature of
busmess

Holding and
management

Holding and
management

Fund services
(JFSC registered)
Holding and
management

Holding and
management

Medlcal practice
Services
Holding and
management
Holding and
management

Medical practice
services

Medhica! practce
services

Medical practice
services

Dormant
Dormant

Medical practice
services

Medical practice
services

Dormant

Dormant

Property
development

Propartion
of voting
rights held

100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
50 1%
S0 1%
69 2%
100 0%
69 2%
62 2%
69 2%
69 2%
68 2%
50 1%
50 1%
50.1%
501%

90 0%

Country of
incorpaoration

Urutad Kingdom

Jersey

Jersey
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Umited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Linited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Untted Kingdom
Urited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Jerssy
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31 Related party transactions (continued)
Principal subsidiaries and joint ventures (continued)

Name of company
Health Properties {Bath) Limited”

Health Properhes {Bnstol) Limited”

Health Properttes (Edinburgh)
Limited*

Health Properties (Harpenden)
Limited”

Health Properties (Bournemaouth)
Limited*

Health Properties (Nottingham)
Limited*

Health Properties (Plymouth)
Limited"

Health Properttes {Reading)
Limited®

Health Properties {Southampton)
Limited*

Health Properties (South
Manchester) Limited”

Health Properties (Tunbndge
Wells) Limited*

Health Properties (Warwick)
Limited*

Health Properties (Weybrndge)
Limnted*

Health Propertias (Birmingham)
Limited*

Health Properties (Windsar)
Limited*

Health Properties Management
Limited*

* subsidiary held indirectly

Holding
‘A'&'B' Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

'‘A'&'B’ Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

'A'&'B' Ordinary shares
'A'&'B’ Ordinary shares
'A'&'B' Ordinary shares
'‘A'&'B' Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

'A'&'B’ Ordinary shares
'A'&'B' Ordinary sharaes
'A'&'B' Ordinary shares
"A'&'B' Ordinary shares
'A'%'B’ Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
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Nature of
business

Property
managernent
Property
development
Property
development
Property
development
Property
development
Property
development
Property
development
Property
development
Property
development
Property
development
Property
development
Property
development
Property
development
Property
development
Praperty
development
Property
development

Proportion
of voting
rights held

38.7%
90 0%
90 0%
90 0%
90 0%
90 0%
90 0%
90 0%
90 0%
80 0%
90 0%
90 0%
90 0%
90 0%
90 0%

90 0%

Country of
incorporation

Jersey
Jersey
Jersey
Jersey
Jersay
Jersey
Jersey
Jersey
Jersey
Jersey
Jarsey
Jersey
Jersey
Jersey

Jersay

United Kingdom
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31 Related party transactions {continued)

Trading transactions

Dunng the year, the Group entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with other related
parties Transachons entered into and trading balances outstanding are as follows

2010 2009 2008

Amounis Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

owedby owedto owedby owedto owed by owed fo

related related related ralated related reiated

Nate party party party party party party

£'000 000 £'000 2000 £'000 £'D00

Crrcle Parinership a - - 5 - 5 -
Health Properties Bath b 3,072 (34) 3,206 (1,591) - -
JCAM c - (13,224) - {15,356} - (15,245)
Health Trust {Jersey) d - - - - - (62)
Stenehage e - (8) - - - {158)
Capna f - (144) - {50} - -
3,072 (13,410) 3,211 (18,897 5 [15,465)

a Circle Partnership

Circle Partnership holds 49 9% of Clrcle Health and was loaned £5,000 by Circle International o acquire
sharas in Circle Health

b  Health Properties Bath
Health Properties Bath ts a joint venture of the Group (note 12) which owns Bath Hospital

The Group has advanced £1,200,000 (2009 £1,200,000) to Health Properties Bath by way of a sharsholder
loan {note 28) which s unsecured and payable on demand in addition the Group has recharged expenses
and accrued interest to Health Properties Bath to give a total receivable of £1,486,000 at 31 December 2010
{2009 £1,456,000)

On 5 October 2009, Circle Bath Hospital, a subsidiary of the Group, entered into an agreement to lzase
Bath hosprtal from Health Properties Bath Under the lease agreement, Circle Bath Hospital has an annual
rental commitment of £3,232,000 for a 25 year term and a rental deposit of £1,586,000 (2003 £1,750,000)
15 held accordingly by Heath Properties Bath

During the year, the Group pand rent of £3,212,000 under thus lease agreement {2000 £800,000) At 31
December 2010, the Group had prepaid rental of £765,000 (2009 £793,000) to Health Properties Bath The
balance 15 included in prepayments (rote 14)

The Group was recharged £34,000 (2009 £1,591,000) for leaschold improvements, rent and other
expenses that ware incurred by Health Properies Bath, of which £34,000 remains payabla at 31 December
2010 (2008 £1,591,000)

There are no 2008 comparatives In the table above as Health Properhes Bath was presented then as a
subsidiary (notes 12 and 29)

¢ JCAM

JCAM owns 95,960 shares {2 19} in the Company In May 2010, the Group repaid a £2,500,000 term loan
facility to JCAM, which carried interast of 25 0%
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31 Related party transactions (continued)
Trading transactions (continued)
¢ JCAM (continued)

JCAM has loaned the Group £14,131,000 (2009 £14,131,000), which includes £831,000 of rolled up
interest The loan is repayable within four years and carmes a quarterly mterest charge of 25 0% At
Incephon, 47.786,wamrants were 1ssued to JCAM at an exercise pnce of €59 67 and were presented
separately in equity at an amount of £1,616,000, giving rise to a loan balance at nception of £11,684,000
At 31 December 2010 the loan was camed at £13,224,000 (2009 £12,856,000) and had an effective
nterest rate of 30 0%, taking nto account bolh interest and accretion towards the redemption amount
{notes 17 and 22)

d Health Trust (Jersey)

Health Trust (Jersey) owns 985,610 shares (21 5%} n the Company through a wholly owned substdiary,
Health Pariners Limrted During 2008 Health Trust {Jersey) loaned Heailth Properties an unsecured short-
term loan of £62,000 This loan was subsequently repaid in 2008 Health Trust {Jersey) also holds 267,680
warrants in the Company (note 23)

e Stonehage Corporate Services

A number of previous Directors who served during 2009 were employed by Stonehage (as disclosed in the
Directors’ report), 2 management and fiductary serices company based in Jersey In total, Stonehage was
pad £30,000 (2008 £400,000, 2008 £550,000) for management and fiduciary services provided to
companies within the Group At 31 December 2010, £8,000 remained payable {2009 £nil, 2008
£158,000) Mr | Crosby and Mr M Elhs were also directors of the corporate trustee of Health Trust (Jersey)
and of Health Estates Fund and its management company Health Estates Managers

Other Stonehage employees are also directors of the corporate trusiee of Health Trust {Jersey) All
Directors that were smployed by Stonehage resigned on 22 December 2009 when the management and
adnemistration of the Company was transferred to Capita Fiduciary Group Limited Stonehage cantinue to
be Directors of Health Estates Managers, s subsidiary underaking

f Capita Fiduciary Group Limited

A number of the current Direclors who served dunng the year are employed by Capita (as disclosed in the
Directors' report), a management and fiduciary services company based in Jersey In total, the Group was
charged £400,000 (2008 £102,000, 2008 £ni) by Capita for management and fiduciary services provided
to companies within the Group dunng the year The amount outstanding at 31 December 2010 was
£144,000 (2009 £50,000, 2008 i)
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31 Related party transactions (continued)
Trading transactions {continued)
q Health Estates Fund

Health Estates Fund acquired a 58.1% share in Health Proparties Bath, a jont venture undertaking af
the Group, from Health Properties for £1,800,000 duning 2008 Some of the Directors of Health Estates
Fund dunng the year were also Directors of the joint venture

The following are related parbies by wvirtue of thewr signiicant shareholding Notes 20 and 22 orovide
further details

Number of % Number of

shares held shareholding  warrants held

Baldsrton Capital LLP 921,938 18 5% 139,163
ING Capital LLC 100,188 20% -
Lansdowne Funds* 964,192 19 4% 54,397
BlugCrest Strategic Limited 417,018 84% 15,102
BlackRack Investment Management (UK) Limrted 665,234 13 4% -

* Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Lid, Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP and Lansdowne UK Strategic
Invesimeni Master Fund Lid have been collectively called Lansdowne Funds for the purpose of
this disclosure

Other than equity transactions detailed In notes 20 and 22, there have been no transachons with these
related parties

32 Events after the reporting penod

i Costain construction contract

Due 1o construchon delays and bulding design changes on the Notingham Treatment Centre during
2007, addiionat costs were incurred in the completion of the buillding The primary building contractor,
Costain Limeted {'Costain’), brought a legal claim in 2010 for £1,200,000 of additional costs An
adjudication was held in January 2011 and an amount of £543,000 was awarded and paud to Costain as
settfernant of the clam Subsequent to this, Costain brought a second claim against the Group for
£1,200,000 for which costs of £700,000 are ncluded in the financial staternents. Dunng March 2011, the
Group agreed to pay Costain £700,000 on 1 June 2011 n full and final settlement of this claim

il Extension of AIB loan

At 31 December 2010, Health Properties Edinburgh had a loan facility for £7,380,000 from AIB with a
matunty date of 31 March 2011 Dunng March 2011, an extension until 30 June 2012 was agreed on
the faciity Interast is LIBOR + 4 0% and the entire amount of nterest payable until due date will be
pawd in advance

in Waiver of GE equipment lease covenant breach

The Group was in breach of certain financial covenants in the GE equipment lease at 31 December
2010 Buring March 2011, the Group received a wawver of all events of default and breaches from GE by
means of a Deed of Amendment and Wawer
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32 Events after the reporting pericd (continued)
v Waiwver of JCAM (i} loan facility covenant breach

The JCAM (1) {note 17) facility was in default at year end due to (1)) a cross-default inggered by an
underlying default under the GE equipment lease above and (i) the dehvery of secunty by certan
Group companies in breach of the negative pledge in the JCAM faciity agreement Dunng May 2011,
the Group recewed a wawver of all events of default and breaches from JCAM The waiver is
conditionzl on the Group completing a raise of a specified amount of funds from external mvestors,
which was completed as detarled below in addibon, the repayment date of the facihly was extended
from 29 August 2012 to 28 February 2013

in May 2011 it was agreed with JCAM that if a hsting of the Cempany on AIM does not occur by the
end of 2011 and the Vinci loan agreement of £5,000,000 (see {x) below} 1s repaid in full out of Graup
funds that JCAM will be entitled to recewe a mortgage over the Manchester land from Health
Properties {(South Manchester) Limited to the extent of such Group funds

In June 2011 t was further agreed with JCAM that they will receive a potenhal prepayment of
£4,100,000 on the later of two business days after (i) a isting on AIM and {i) the repayment in full of
the Vincs loan agreement The £4,100,000 prepayment will be reduced by the amount that the Vinc
loan agreement 1s repaid using funds from within the Group rather than from a third party financing

v March 2011 equity raise, warrant repricing and shareholder restructure

During March 2011, existing shareholders commitied to provtde additional equity of £20,000,000 to
fund the Group Of thus amount, £7,500,000 has already been receved with a further £12,500,000 to
ke receved In the event that there 1s no imtial Public Offenng {'IPO") by 31 May 2011 Furthermore,
the existing investors were 1ssued a sei of warrants fo subscribe for an additronal number of ordmary
shares at nominal value so that the subscription price under the equity commitment is adjusted to be,
eftectivaly

1) ifthere 15 an IPO before 31 May 2011, 90 0% of the IPO price, and
2) ifno IPO by 31 May 2011, £20 00

The subscription agreement and the warrant instrument were subsequently amended (see {(x) below)
Health Trust (Jersey} undertook, as part of the same transaction, to ransier 3 0% of the fully diluted
number of sharas in the Company to certain existing shareholders i return for a 6 0% holding in the
Circle Partnership A further consequence of the additonal aquity funding by the existing investors 1s
that all outstanding share warrants, priced at either £51 55 or £29 84 (note 22), are repriced to £20 00
or the pnce of the IPO, if it occurs prior to 31 May 2011

vi Nabons Healthcare Burton contract

In March 2011, the Group was notified that the onginal Burton ISTC contract, due for renewal n July
2011, would not be renewed and that the treatment facility would be returned to Burton Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust {the Trust'}

As part of the hand over of the Burton operations to the Trust, the Group has entered into a 'Sale of
business and mobihsation mitigation and business know-how services’ agreement {the ‘Agreement’) In
order to ensure the orderly transfer of operattons upon the expiration of the ISTC contract on 11 July
2011 Under the agreement, Nations Healthcare Burton will transfer all operating assets and provide
waming and mobifisation services to ensure the Burton Treatment Centre 15 able to continue operating
over the transitron period The Agreement stipulates that Nations Healthcars Burton will be pard
£2,500,000 less any residual hability payabie to the Trust under the Agreement The Group has also
served notice under the original master agreement with GE to purchase the leased assets, which will
be transferred to the Trust on 11 July 2011
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32 Events after the reporting period (continued)
vii Change of name and tax status

On 13 May 2011, the Directars passed a resolution changing the Company's name fram Health
Investment Holdings Limited to Circle Holdings plc This came into effect as of 16 May 2011 In
addition, on 17 May 2011, a resolution was passed to bring the Directors onshore, thus changing the
tax residency of the Company from Jersey to the UK

viii Authorised preference share capital

On 1 June 2011, the shareholders passed a resolution adopting new Aricles of Association ahead of
Admission These articles, among other items, reclassiied the share capital of the Company into a
single class of ordinary shares, thereby elminating the previously authorised preference shares
However, f Admission does not occur by 30 September 2011, the ordinary shares isstied In
MNovember 2010 (and the warrant shares tssuable pursuant to the warrant instrument from the same
transaction) wall convert into preference shares

ix Winding up of Heaith Properties share scheme

On 3 May 2011, a decision was taken by the Duectlars to take steps to wind up the Heafth Properties
share scheme with the intention that any shares being held on its behalf be transferred to EES
Teustees International Limited It 1s the ntentian that the paciicipants concerned will be offered sharas
in Circle Partnershup Limited, pursuant to the terms of the Group's remaining employee share
awnership plan

x  Purchase of South Manchester land

The Group, through a property SPV, Health Properfies Manchester identified a site in Manchester and
incurred costs of £1,700,000 comprising deposits of £900,000 and development costs of £830,000. In
May 2011, Health Properties Manchester entered into an agreement to buy the land from Silversword
Properties Limited for approximately £7,200,000 Of this amount, £900,000 has already been paid in
the form of a land depaosit, £5,000,000 has been lent by Vinci to Health Properties Manchester
secured agamnst the land, and £200,000 has been pad in cash The remairing £1,100,000 will be paid
dunng July 2011 The £5,000,000 foan from Vinci 1s a short term faciity which will be repaid on 23
December 2011 and will incur interest at a rate of 9 0% + LIBOR

xt  May 2011 equity raise, warrant repricing and shareholder restructure

in May 2011, agreement was reached with Odey European inc and BlueCrest Venture Finance
Master Fund Limited to prowide equity of £15,000,000 and £5,000,000 respectively prior to the IPO in
order to provide further funding for the business over the next 18 months The subscnphon price was
£11 15 per share, however warrants were also 1ssued which are exercisable at nominal value into the
number of warrant shares equai to 30 0% and 10 0%, respectively, of the warrants 1ssued pursuant to
the November 2010 and March 2011 warrant mstrument [n addition, Health Trust (Jersey) will receve
an additonal 4 0% of the equrty in Circle Partnerstup It was further agreed that the IPQ completian
date of 31 May 2011, as contemplated in (v) above, would be extended to 30 June 2011, and that the
effechve subscnption price of the March 2011 eguity commitment i scenano 2 of {v) above would be
reduced to £8 72

xn (ntention to float on Alternative investment Market

On 25 May 2011, the Group announced s intention to hst on the Altemative Investment Market, a
market operated by the London Stock Exchange plc  This intention forms part of the Group's overall
fundrausing strategy
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32 Events after the reporting period (continued)
xii Contingent funding arrangement

On 13 June 2011, some of the exsting sharsholders (BlackRock Investment Management (UK}
Limuted, the Lansdowne funds (note 20) and BlyeCrest Ventura Finance Master Fund Limited) agreed
lo subscribe for addibonal ordinary shares in the Company at a total subscription price of up to
£2,460,000 on 27 June 2012 {ar such ather date as they agree with the Company) at a prce per
ordinary share that ig 90 0% of the closing price of the ordinary shares on 19 June 2012, subjact to a
mnimum price per ordinary share of £0 90, provided that cerlam capital raisings ar refinancings have
not occurrad by 20 June 2012

33 Reconciliahon from IFAS to UK GAAP

As explalned In note 2, these are the Group's first set of IFAS financial statements The impact of
adopting IFRS 15 a £6,570,000 decrease 1n net agsets on transition and an explanation of the principle
changes are set aut in the “lmpagct of transton’ section at the end of thus note

The following tables show the detalled impact of transition from UK GAAP to IFRS, and reconcile the
bafance sheet posiion as at the date of transition to IFRS {f January 2008}, and the ncome
statement and balance sheet at the date of the last annual financial staterents reported under UK
GAAP (31 December 2009) Note there is no diference belween the income statement and the
statement of total comprehensive ncome and therators the lattar fas not been separately reported.

The same accounting palicies set out in note 2 have been appled m the following reconcifiations
ncluding the exemption to restate its busmess cominnations under IFRS 3
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33 Balance sheet reconciliation from UK GAAP to IFRS

as at 31 December 2008

ASSETS
Non-current assats

Intangible assets

Praparly, plant & squipment
Long term contracts

Trade and other raceivables

Current ascels

Inventories
Trade ard other receivables
Cash at bank and in hand

Total assets

Current liabifitias

Trada and other payables
Loans and other barrowings
Provisions

Non-curfent liabilities

Trade and other payables
Loans and other cofrowings
Deferred 1ax llabitres
Provislons

Denvativa financal ingtruments

Tatal liabiiltles

Net assels

Shareholders' aquily

Called up share capital
Share premium account
Warrant reserve
Retalned deficit

Equny
Non-controling interasts

Total sharsholders' equity

An axplanation of the above IFRS adjustments is included at the end of this note

{b) {c) (d) (e}
Derlvative Non-| Amounts QOthar
UK GAAR] financiai| controikng| recoverablej intangible IFRS
31.12.08!  instruments| interests! on contrac assat 31 12.408
£'300! £'000 £'000 £"000) £'000 £'000]
8,213 - 218 8,431
33,385 - 4 (218) 33,167
T.GBBI - {7,688) . J
44,384 E 8.279 52,663
93,670 E 591 - 94,261
1,259 . {547y - 712‘
5,358 - 3,210 8,568
17,005 - E - - 17.,008]
23,624] - 2,663 { 25287
117,294 - - 3,254 120,548
(17,407} . (2,863) {20,070)
(51,980} 4 {51,980)
{652) . . - {852)
{70,033) 1 (2,663) (72,702)
{82) - (591} {683)
{33,150) . - {23,150)
(n - - - (17
{1,133) - - - - (1,933}
- (86,5700 - B {8,570}
(30,302) (6.570) . {591) | (41,953
(104,431) (6,570} - (3.254) -| (114,255)
12,863 (6.570) - - 6,293
239 - - - 239,
69,49 . - 69,49
10,805 . - - - 10,905
{E67,765) {6,461) 1,649 E . (72,578)
12,870 {6.461} 1,649 E a.usa}
) {1084  (1,848) - 4 {1,765)
12,853 {6.570) - - 6,207
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33 Income statement reconciliation from UK GAAP to IFRS

as at 31 December 2009

Revepue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Admimstrative expenses before

exceptional iems

Prowision for joint venture deheit

Exceptional tems:

- Imparrment of goodwill

- Share-hased paymenis in
raspect of warrants 1ssued

- Warrants issued for ml
consideration

- Netincrease in pravision for
onerous ieases

- Profit on disposal of subsidiary
undertaking

- Extemal site costs wntten off
- QOfher exceptional items

Total administrative expenses
Other ocperating ncome

Operating loss

Share of operating proit of joint
ventures
Operating loss including jont
ventures

Profit on disposal of subsidiary
underfaking

Finance mcome

Finance costs

Share of interest payable of joint
venture

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss after taxation
Non-controling interests

Loss for the financial year

(b) {c)

UK] Dernvativel Non-! (a)
GAAP (a); financialj controlling (f)] Profit on IFRS
31 12.09] Presentation| instrument] nterests| Goodwill| disposal] 31 1209
£'009, £'000 £'000 £'000] £00 £°000 £'000
63,309 873 . . . 4 64,182
(41,856) y " b 4 (41,8586)
21,453 8731 e . 41 22,326
(37,789) - - - 2,480 - (35,329)
y {25) (132) - - |1 15N
- - . - (334) - (334)
(4,169) . - : {1 (4,169)
(1,450) - g - - (1,450)
(1,299)| - - | - 1 (1,209)
- 1,156 - E 1,745 2,901
{1,993) . - . - - (1,993)
{258) - - . - - (258)
{46,958) 1,131 (132) . 2,126 1,745 (42,088)
873 (873) - - - - .
{24,632) 1,131 {132) 41 2125 1,745) (19,762)
272) (272) - - - -
{24,360) 859 (132) s 2,126 1.745 (19,762)
1,156 {1,156) - - ] j .
3,493 1 523 . . {1 408
(7,839) . . . { (7,839)
(297) 297] . - . . -
(27,847) E 391 . 2,126 1,745| (23,585)
17| - E - E 17
(27,830) 4 391 - 2,126 1,745 (23,568}
7 {13) 2,393 4 2,387
{27,823) - 378 2393 2126 1,745| (21,181)

8g

An explanation of the above IFRS adjustments 1s inciuded at the end of this note
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33 Balance sheet raconcihiation from UK GAAP to IFRS
as at 31 December 2009

{b) {c) (d) (e} (g}
Denvabve Non-| Amounts Other Profit]
UK GAAP tinancial| contralling! recoverablel intangibl 43! a IFAS)
31.1209) nstruments| cnterasts| on contrac assets| Goodwill| disposal]  31.12.09
£000 £'000; £000 €000 £000 00y  £000 2g00]
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 5,092 4 - - 137 2,126 8,255
Prapesty, plant & equipment 16,264 - - (137) - E 16,127
Investment in joint vanture - - L - - E E
Long-term contracts 5,25 = E {5,250}, - | | |
Trade and other receivables 43,372 -‘ - 5,326 - 48,698
70,878 - 76 2,128 : 73,080
Current assets - o J
[nventones 2,128 - (1,348) - - 780
Trade and other receivables 11,655 E E 2,988 - - 14,643
Cash and cash squivalents 25,829 - B - 25,824,
39,607, - 1,640 . . 41,247,
Total assets 110,485 - 1,716 { 2128 | 114327
Current liabilites - L E - - -]
Trade ang other payables {18,533) - L (1,640} _j - - (20,173)
Loans and ather borowings {53,597) : 4 . 4 (93,597)
Prowisions {711) R - b 4 E - (711)
(72,841} g 4 (1,640) - g {74,481)
Non-current habilities
Trade and other payahles {40} - - (76) - ] (116)
Loans and other borrowngs {(13,217) 4 4 . 4 13,217
Deferred tax iabiliies - - . - - E - -
Prowvision for junt venture deficit (212) (132) E -1 (1,163) (1,507)
Provistons (1,664) g ¥ - - - E (1,664)
Denvative financial instruments . (6,04 7) - - - - 3,004 {3,043)
(15,133) (6,179) (76) i 1,841 (19,547)
‘folal habijities {87,974) (B,179) {1.718) - - 1,841 {83,028)
Net assels 22,511 {6,179) g - 2,128 1,841 20,299
Shareholders’ equity
Cailed up share capital 386 - - E - 386
Share premum account 101,190 E g E 101,190
Warrant raserve 16,524, - - . g . - 16,524
Retamned defict {95,589) {6,083y 4,042 - 2,126 1,745  {93,759)
Equity 22,511 (6,083) 4,042) ] 2128 1,745 24,341
Non-contralleng nterests - (96) {4,042) - -| g 96 (4,042)
Total sharshelders’ equity 22,511 (6.179) . b i 2,126 1,841 20,299

An explanation of the ahove IFRS adjustments is included at the end of this note
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

33 Reconciliation from UK GAAP to IFRS
Impact of transition

a Presentation

The mamn presentational differences hetween IFRS and UK GAAP are that under UK GAAP, the joint
venture's share of revenue, operabing loss and finance costs were included within the relevant categones of
the Group's income statement Under IFRS, the results of the joint ventura are presented as a single ine item
in the income statement, enitled ‘provision for joint venture deficit’ which represents the Group's constructive
and {egal oblgation to fund the joint venture's losses In addwion, under UK GAAP, the profit on disposal of
subsidiary undertaking was disclosed as non-operating under the cntena set out in FRS 3 ‘Reporting
Financial Performance’ and credited after operating foss in the mcome statement Under IFRS, this item has
been credited befare arriving at the Group's operating loss

Furthermore, under IFRS all assets and liabiliftes on the balance sheet are disclosed as being either current
or non-current in nature and all the other operating income has been reclassified fo revenue since It meets
the definition of revenue under IAS 18

b Derivative financial insfruments

Under UK GAAP, providing an interest rate swap was related to an asset or hability, there was no requirement
to recognise its fair vaiue on the balance sheet As such, under UK GAAP, the Group's policy was to accrue
the interast differential within net interest payabile and i the swap was terminated early, the gain or loss was
spread over the remamning matunty of the onginal mvestment Under IAS 39 'Financial instruments,
recognition and measuremant’, afl interest rate swaps must be recognised on the balance sheet at fair value,
and revalued at each subsequent balance shest date, with the corresponding movement flowing through the
face of the income statement, unless certaln hedging documentation cnterra 15 met, in which case the
movement flows through other comprehensive income

At the date of transition, the Group did not meet the hedging documentation requirements, nor had 1t adopted
a policy of hedge accountmg, therefore the full mpact of fair valuing the denvatives has been recogmised The
impact has been a reduchion in Group net assets of £6,570,000 at t January 2009 and a reduction in the loss
of £378,000 for the year to 31 December 2009

¢ Non-controling interest

Under UK GAAP, a mmonty interest was not recognised in respect of Circle Partnership's 49 9% shareholding
in Circle Health This was because Circle Health 15 ioss-making and in a net liabilty postion, and Crrcle
Partnershup has no obigation to fund these losses  Under IERS, 1AS 27 "Consolidated financial staterments’
requires the Group to subdivide equity to show a defieit in equity attributable to non-controfling interests for
those shares that have unconditionally vested in Circle Partnership This has resulted in a non-controlling
inferest of £1,649,000 and £4,042,000 being recognised at 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2009
respectively, and equity atinbutable to equity holders of the parent increasing by ihe same amount This has
also rosulted 1n an increase In loss for the year to 31 December 2009 attrbutable to non-controlling interest of
£2,393,000

Note that none of the shares in the Health Properhes share scheme had vested as at 31 December 2009 and
therefore a non-conirolling interest did not anss on transihon to IFRS or in the comparative penod i respect
of its 10 0% nterest n Health Properies

d Amounts recoverabie on contract

Upfront costs are incurred on certatn contracts with the DoH, which are capitalised and spread over the life of
the contract and offsets the release of the deferred income received in advance from the DoH pertairung to
those contracts Under UK GAAP, SSAP 9 "Stocks and long term contracts' required the Group to net down
the balances rather than show them gross, whereas under IFRS, the Group 15 required to hold the receiwvable
and the deferred income gross on the balance sheet The impact on the balance sheets at 1 January 2009
and 31 December 2009 Is an increase in assets and labihibies of £3,254,000 and £1,716,000 respectively
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

33 Reconciliahon from UK GAAP to IFRS
Impact of transition (continued)

e Other ntangible assets

IAS 3B ‘intangible assets' requires computer software to be shown as an intangiblz asset rather than as
property, plant and equipment as it was under UK GAAP This has had no impact on the measurement of the
asset and the same amartisation polcy applies The adoption of IFRS has resulted in a reclassification from
property, plant and equipment to intangible assets at 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2009 of £218,000
and £137,000 respectively

f  Goodwill

Under UK GAAP, capitalised goodwill was amortised over its useful economie Iife of up to ten years Under
IFRS, capitalised goodwill 1s not amortised but instead is tested at least annually for impairment This has
resulted i a reversal of the UK GAAP amortisation in the year to 31 December 2009, thus ncreasing net
assets by £2,128,000 at 31 December 2009, net of the goodwill impairment an Circle Clime Windsor of
£334,000 As permitted under IFRS 1, the Group has chosen to apply IFRS 3 prospectively from 1 January
2008 and has not restated previous busingss combinations Goodwill 1 therefore stated at 1 January 2009 at
its UK GAAP carrying value of £8,213,000

g Profit on disposal of subsidary undertaking

The impact of fair valuing the interest rate swaps n the joint venture means that the net habiliies of Health
Properties Bath increased at the date that 4 became a jont venture This increased the proftt on disposal n
the year to 31 December 2009 by £1,745,000

t  Explanation of matenal adjustments to the cash flow statement

The application of IFRS has changed the presentation of the cash flow statement which now classifies ¢ash
flaws as ansing under only three activiies, operating, investing and financing As a resuit, interest pald and
interest recewed are both shown under operating activities, but were included in a separate category of
returmns on investments and servicing of finance cash flows under UK GAAP
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Circle Holdings plc

Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Circle Holdings plc

We have audited the financial statements of Circie Holdings ple for the year ended 31 December 2010
which comprise the Company balance sheet and the related notes The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation 1s appilcable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explamed more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities set out on page 17, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
far view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opimion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and Internationa! Standards on Audrting (UK and Iretand) Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and anly for the Campany’s members as a body
in accordance with Articie 113A of the Companies {Jersey) Law 1981 and for no other purpose  We do
not, n gving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent i writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audtt involves obtaning evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
suffictent to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from materal misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error  This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the company’s cireumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately
disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statemenis

Opinion on financial statements
In our apimon the parent company financial statements

- gwve a true and far vew of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2010,

- have been properly prepared in accordance United Kingdom Accounting Standards, and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compares (Jersey) Law 1981

Opinion on other matter

In our opinion the mformation given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for wiuch financial
staternents are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compantes {(Jersey) Law 1991
reguires us to report to you If, in our opnion

- proper accaunting records have not been kept by the parent company, ar
- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records,
- we have not regeved all the infermation and explanations we require for our audit

Other matters
We have reporied separately on the group financial statements of Circle Holdings ple for the year ended
31 December 2010

Nigel Reynolds

For and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants

London

ll.’- June 2011
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2010

Fixed assets
Investments

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at hank and in hand

Creditors - amounts faling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors - amounts falling due after one year

Net assets

Cap:tal and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premwum account
Warrant reserve

Profit and loss account

Total shareholders’ funds

Note

10,12
10

11

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
26,210 26,201
49,920 22,344
482 11,646
50,402 33,990
{17,783) (2,413)
32,619 31,577
58,829 57,778

- {12,8586)

58,829 44,922
425 386
111,680 101,190
19,878 16,524
(73,154) (73,178)
58,829 44,922

The financial statements on pages 94 to 109 were approved by the board of Directors on r?’June 2011 and

were stgned on its behalf by-

Ali Parsadoust /9 ( J
Director ¢ N

Curele Holdings ple

Director

Registered number: 100016 (Jersey)



Circle Holdings plc

Noates to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared for Circle Holdings ple (the '‘Company'’) for the year ended 31
December 2010 The Company is the ulbmate parent entity of the Circle Holdings ple Group (the 'Group)

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis in accordance with the Companies
(Jersey) Law 1991 and applicable UK accounting standards The Company has not prepared a separate profit
and loss account and cash fiow statement as it 15 not a regquirement under Compantes {Jersey) Law 1991

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis which assumes that the Company
will continue In operational exstence for the foreseeable future The Directors have prepared cash flow
forecasts for a penod of not less than 12 months from sigrming the financial statements for the year ending 31
December 2010 Committed funds and underwntten IPQ proceeds (associated with the Company’s intention
to hst on the Alternative Investment Market), together with existing cash balances and cash flows from the
operating businesses, are sufficient to fund head office costs necessary to sustain the current aperations,
interest payments over the next 12 months and future grawth plans, ncluding taking on the management of
NHS Hospitais and funding the commissioning and start up fosses of the projected private hospital roll out
programme

Cn this basis, the directars conclude that it 1s approprate for these accounts to be prepared on a going
concern basis
Investments

Investments in subsidiaries and joint venturas are valued at cost less prowsion for impairment The carrying
value of fixed asset investments Is reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying value may not be recoverable

Trade debtors

Trade debtors are amounts due from customers for goods or services performed in the ordinary course of
business Trade debtors are measured at far value, less provisian for imparment

Trade creditors

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
bustness from suppliers Trade creditors are recognised at fair value

Deferred tax

Deterred tax 1s provided in full {without discounting) based on current tax rates and law, on timing differences
that resuit in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a nght to pay less tax in the future
except as otherwise required by FRS 19 'Deferred Tax'

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation in respect of a past avent, it 1s more
hkely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obkgation and where the amount can
be rehably estimated Provisions are discounted when the tme value of money 15 considered matenal
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 {continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Share capital

QOrdinary shares are classified as equity Proceeds received, net of any directly atinbutable
transaclron costs, are credited to share capital {(nominal value) and share premium. Within the
Group, any shares of a company which are held by that company's subsidiary are treated as
treasury shares, and effectively eliminated from share capital

Warranis

A warrant 1s an instrument 1sued by a company which gives the holder the nght to purchase shares
in thal company at a speaific pnce at a fulure date An equity nstrument 1 any contract that
evidences a residual interest m the assets of an entity after deducting ail of its labiiies A warrant 1s
treated as a financial liablity if

— It a non-derivabve and the eniity is obliged to deliver a vanable number of the company's own
shares, or

— 1ti1s a dervative that will be settled other than by a fixed amount of Gash or other assets for a
fixed number of the company's own shares

Transaction costs are apportioned between ihe habilty and equity components of the shares based
on the allocation of proceeds to the labiity and equity components when the instruments are first
recognised

i Equity warrants

The proceeds an issue of equity warrants are included within shareholders' equity, net of iransacton
costs The far value of the equity component 18 not remeasured 1n subsequent years The far
value of warrants 1s credited to equity with the debit being charged to the income statement or taken
to non-current liabilities where the warrants ara linked to a loan

Equity warrants are valued using an appropnate valuaton methodology on a diluted pricing basis,
based on the relevant share price at the time of 1ssue or based on an assessment of the market
price at the tme of 1ssue

u  Firancial liatulity warrants

Warrants 1ssued that create a financial hability ta the Company are presented as a liabiity in the
balance sheet, measured mtially at far value, net of transaction costs and subsequently at
amortised cost until extinguished on conversion of redemption The wwtial faw value of the wamant
Irability 1s determined using an appropnate valuation methodology

Capital coniributions

A number of subsidiary undertakings operate share-based incentive schemes for employees that
ara seftled by equity wnstruments wn the Company The cost of equiy-settled transactons with
employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted and 1s
recogrised over the vesting penod, which ends on the date on which relevant employees become
fully entitled to the warrants in the Company

The grant of these warants in the Company to employees of subsidary undertakings 1s treated as a
capital contnbution The fair value 15 recogmised over the vesting penod as an increase to the
investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity

Dwidands

Dividend distnbution to the Company's shareholders 1s recognised as a lability in the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dwvidends are approved by the Company's
shareholders
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

2 Profit and loss

The rasult for the year 15 a loss of £24,000 (2009 £5,412,000)

3 Auditors’ remuneration

The Company wncured £22,000 {2009 £20,000) in refation to UK statutory audit fees for the year ended 31
December 2010

4 Directors' emoluments

No emoluments are pard directly by the Company, however nformation on Directors' remuneration 1S given in
note & to the Group accounts

5 Fixed asset iInvestments

Company

2010 2009
Cast £'000 £'000
At 1 January 60,983 56,814
Addihons - Health Properbies 9 -
Additions — capifal contributions {note 13) 3,354 4,169
At 31 December 64,346 60,883
Provision for impairment
At 1 January 34,782 30,613
Proviston in the year 3,354 4,169
At 31 December 38,136 34,782
Net book value
At 31 Decamber 26,210 26,201

The Directers consider that the value of the company's fixed asset investments is supported by their underlying
assets

The £9,000 addition to Health Properhies represents the Group paymng up dunng the year for the remainder of
the 9,000 'B' shares of £1 nominal value in Health Properties Health Properties i1s 90 0% owned by the Group
and 10 0% owned by Health Properties share scheme to which 1,000,000 ‘A" shares of £0 001 nommal vaiue
have been 1ssued Each share has proportionate rights to the dividends and capital of the company, but only the
'B' shares have voting nghts
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

6 Debtors
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Amounts owed by Group undertakings (note 14) 49,920 22,344

Amounts awed by Group underakungs ara interest-freq, unsecured and payable on demand

7 Creditors - amounis falling due within one year

2010 2009

£'000 £000

Trade creditors 16 3
Amounis owed to subsidiary undertakings (note 14) 2,134 2,110
Accruals and deferred wmcome 438 300
Warranty hability 1,971 -
Bank loans {(JCAM ) 13,224 -
17,783 2413

The JCAM (1) loan represents a bridging facility of £13,300,000 together with rolled up interest of £831,000
giving a total amount due at redemption af £14,131,000 (2009 £14,131,000) The loan is repayabie within
four years and carres a quarterly interest chargs of 250% Warrants were 1ssued to the lender at
inception and ware prasented separately n equiy at an amount of £1,616,000 gwving nse to a loan
balance at inception of £11,684,000 At 31 December 2010 the loan was carned at £13,224,000 (2009
£12,856,000) and had an effective interest rate of 30 0%, taking into account bath wterest and accration
tawards the redemption amount

At the year end, the JCAM (1) faciity was under a cross-default due 1o a default under a GE equipment
lease In March 2011 an agreement was signed with JCAM whereby a waiver of the cross-default was
received and the loan repayment date was extended from 29 August 2012 until 28 February 2013

8 Creditors - amounts falling due after one yeat

2010 2009
2000 £'000
Bank loans (LJCAM (1)} - 12,856
The loan has been classified as current due to being under cross-default (note 7)
9 Called up share capital
Authorised 2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Ordinary and preference shares of £0 10 each 700 500
Number of authonsed shares 7,000,000 5,000,000
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 {continued)

g Called up share capital (continued)

Aflotied and fully paid up
Share Share

Shares Capital Premum Total
Ordmary shares of £0 10 each {number) £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2009 2,389,290 239 69,492 69,731
Proceeds from shares issued 1,468,385 147 31,698 31,845
At 1 January 2010 3,857,675 386 101,190 101,576
Proceeds from shares issued - August 2010 156,250 16 4,984 5,000
Proceeds from shares wssued - November 2010 234,375 23 5,506 5,529

At 31 December 2010 4,248,300 425 111,680 112,105

Transacton costs incurred dunng the 2010 equity raises were £27,000 {2009 £68,000), all of which have
been expensed due to therr immaterial amount Proceeds are net of warrant hability of £1,971,000 (2009
£nil)

On 13 February 2009, 373,534 preference shares of £0 10 were 1ssued These were exchanged for fully
paid ordinary shares in a 1 1 exchange on 26 November 2009 The preference shares were cancelled as
a class of shares on this date and all associated warrants were converted to ordinary shares on a 11
basis As at 31 December 2010 there are authonsed but no allotied preference shares {2009 mil and nif
respectively, 2008 nil and nil respectively) The authorised preference shares form part of the £7,000,000
authorised share capital

10 Reserves

Share Proiit and
premium Warrant loss
account reserve  account
£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2010 101,190 16,524 (73,178)
lssuance of shares 10,490 - -
Protit for the financial year - - 24
Addiions to warrants reserve {note 12) - 3,354 -
Al 31 December 2010 111,680 19,878 {73,153)
e ———

11 Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Prafit / (loss) for the finanaal year 24 (5,412)
Net proceeds of 1ssue of ordinary share capital (note 9) 10,529 31,845
Additions to warrant reserve (note 12) 3,354 5,619
Net addition to sharehotders’ funds 13,908 32,052
Opening sharehalders’ funds 44,922 12,870
Clasing shareholders’ funds 58,830 44,922
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 {continued)

12 Warrants

The Gompany Issues warrants which gwe the holders the nght to putchase shares i the Gompany for a
specific price at a future date The warrants are treated either as equity instruments and recorded in the
warrant reserve, or as financal habdites and recorded in hahilibes, depanding on the antena authined m the
Company's accounting palictes

a Warrants treated as equity instruments
1 Movemeants in the warrant reserve dunng the year are as follows

2010 2009

£'000 2000
At 1 January 16,524 10,905
Capital contribution expense {note 13} 3,354 4,169
Warrants 1ssued for nil consideration expense - 1,450
At 31 December 19,878 16,524
i The warrant reserve comprises the following warrants

2010 2009
Warrants issued in 2008 £'000 £'000
= Health Trust (Jersey) 8,721 7,954
— Balderton Capital il LP 4,111 4,111
— Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited n mn
- Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP 21 21
-~ Lansdowne UK Strategic investment Master Fund Limiied N 33
- JCAM Global Fund (Master) LP 1,616 1,616
Warrants 1ssued in 2009
~  Healin Trust {Jersey) 2,197 610
~ Balderton Capital Il LP 675 675
— lLansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited 436 436
= Lansdowne UK Equity Fund [P 43 43
-  BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund Limited 206 296
Total 19,878 18,524

No warrants treated as equity wstruments were issued durning the year The warrants i1ssued to
shareholders in 2009 were valued at £19 57 per warrant Wamants are valued according to the Black-
Scholes option pricing methodology on a diluted pricing basts using the parameters in the table below The
warrants 1ssued to JCAM Global Fund {Master) LP in 2008 were valued at £33 84 based on an assessment
of the market price for the associated JCAM {i} loan

2009 warrant issue parameters’ 13 February 2009
Stock price £29 84
Exercise price £29 84
Expected volattity 50 0%
Risk frae interest rate 50%
Warrant hfe 10 years
Fair value of warrant £19 57
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Notes to the Company financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

12 Warrants {continued)

The Iife of the warrant 1s based on the expected term and is not necessanly indicative of exercise patterns that
may occur  The hustencal volabhity 1s assumed to be indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the
actual outcome

m

The following table details all share wamants 1ssued by the Company which are recognised in equity

Beneficiary

Warrants issued in 2008

Health Trust (Jersey)}

Balderton Camtat 1l LP

Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP
Lansdowne UK Strategic lnwestment
Master Fund Limited

Balderton Capital il LP

JCAM Global Fund (Master) LP

Warrants issued in 2008

Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited
Lansdowna UK Equity Fund 1P
BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund
Limited

BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund
Limited

Balderton Capuat Il LP

Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited
Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP
Lansdowne UK Strategic Investment
Master Fund Limited

BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund
Limited

Balderton Capital Ill LP

Health Trust {(Jersey) - Option Pool

Note

a, d

a
a
a

oo oo

A a o

1,268,435

Warranis

number
(actual)

267,680
5,800
9,446

517

9,963
104,692
47,786

32,297
2,174

15,102

1,333
34,471
163,645
9,581

32,897

95,819
234,958
200,473

Exercise
price
g

£51 545

£010
£51 545
£51 545

£51 545
£51 545
£51 545

£29 838
£29 838

£29 838

£29 838
£29.838
£010
£010

£0 10

£0 10
2010
£51 545

Fair value
3

£3928
Exercised
£38 28
£39 28

£39 28
£30 28
£33 84

£1957
£19 57

21957

Exercised

£19 57
Exercised
Exercised

Exercised

Exercised
Exercised
£1372

2010
Warrant
reserve
£'000

9,721

371
21

Kich
4,111
1,616

436
43

296

675

2197

19,878

On 26 Novemnber 2009, the 440,084 warrants 1ssued n 2008 with an exercise price of £59 67 per share
{(which mncludes the 267,680 warrants 1ssued to Health Trust {(Jersey) in 2008) were adjusted to an exercise
price of £51 55 per share There was no adjustment to the far values of the warrants as the updated
axercise price took mnto account the dilution factor of the November 2009 share issue, and therefore there 15
no effect an the Company financial statements

On 13th February 2009, 85,377 warrants were 1ssued to shareholders that entitle the holder to acquire an
equivalent number of preferred shares in the Company with an exercise price of £29 84 per share The
warrants have no expiry date but lapse iIf the Company 15 sold Of these warrants, 1,333 were exercised
immediately  On 26 November 2008, the remaining 84,044 warranis were replaced by warrants with the

same terms for ardinary shares
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

12  Warrants {continued)

c On 26th November 2009, 536,901 anti-diution warrants were 1ssued to shareholders that entitle the
holder to acquire an equivalent number of Company ordinary shares with an exercise pnce of £0.10 per
share. These warrants have no expiry date but lapse f the company 1s listed or sofd These warrants
wera exercised immediately for a total consideration of £54,000

d This 1s a sharg-based payment transacton

b Warrants recogmised as financial liabilities

The following table details all share warrants 1ssued by the Company which are recogrised as a financial
hability in the Gompany balance sheet

2010

Exercise Warrant

price liability

Beneficiary £ £'000

Warrants 1ssued in 2010
- BlackRock Investment Management (UK)

Limited £0.10 394
—  Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Limited £010 526
-  lLansdowne UK Equity Fund LP £010 38
- Lansdowne UK Strategic Investment

Master Fund Lymited £0 10 a5
—  Balderton Capital lli LP £010 657
- BlueCrest Venture Finance Master Fund

Limited £0 10 263

1,971

In November 2010, the Company raised £7,500,000 from a number of existing shareholders A condition of
the raise was that in the case of a further equity raise pnor to 30 Septembear 2011, these onginal investors
would be aflocated £0 10 anti-dilutive ordinary share warrants The number of wamrants to be 1ssued will be
based on the share price of the equity raised in the subsequent offering

Thesa warrants were valued by an independent gxternal valuation firm using a Monte-Carlo simulation, which
15 a complex mathematical algorithm valuation tooi They calculated the total farr value of these anti-dilutive
share warrants to be €1,971,000

The number of warrants to be 1ssued 1s variable as it 15 dependent an the share price of the subsequent
financing Consequently, the warrant portion of equity raised 1s treated as a financial iability under FRS 25
Financial instruments, disclosure and presentation’ The balance 1s classified as current since the hability will
be settled at the earlier of a further equity raise or 30 September 2011

In the event that no subsequent financing takes place, the warrants shall become exercisable for the same
number of shares as they purchased durng the November 2010 equity raise Per the Articles of the
Company, these warrants and the onginally issued ordinary shares will convernt nio preference shares which
rank ahead of ardinary shares for the entire subscription price pawd in the case of liguidation or sale of the
Cornpany
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13 Capital contributions

Shares and share warranis are 1ssued to employees who contribute to the success and growth in value of
the Group The issuance of these warrants and shares qualifies as equity-settled share-based payment
transactions and falls within the scope of FRS 20 'Share-based payment’ The charge to the profit and
loss account in respect of share-based payments 1s recognised in the subsidiary undertaking with the
corresponding capial contribution recogrised in the Company

Capital contributions duning the year

2010 2009

Note Type £000 £'000

Heaith Trust (Jersey) a Warrants 1,767 3,559
Health Trust {Jersey} - option pool b Warrants 1,587 610
3,354 4,169

a  Health Trust (Jersey)

Health Trust {Jersey), of which Mr A Parsadoust 15 a beneficiary, recewed 220,180 warranis on
acquisiion of Health Properbies Group at an exercise price of £53 67 on 29 May 2008 and 47,490
warrants at an exercise price of £69 67 on 4 June 2008 The far value of the warrants at the date of
1ssue was determined to be £38 28 per warrant and £10,514,000 i total, according to the Black-Scholes
methodolcgy

The warrants entitle the holder to acquire an equivalent number of ordinary shares in the Company with
an exercise price of £59 67 per share, with no expry date These were issued as additional
consideration for the sale of 100 0% of the shares m Health Properties to the Company

The warranis are conditionat on Mr A Parsadoust remaining with the Group for a specified penod up to 48
months and vest evenly over this penod The warrants lapse if the Company 15 sold and if there 15 a
change of control, the outstanding warrants will immediately vest However vesting Is unaffected if the
Company 1s hsted

The exercise pnce of these warrants was repriced to £61 545 duning 2008

b Heaith Trust (Jersey) - option pool

An additional share-based payment was made 10 Health Trust (Jersey} on 27 November 2009 The trust
received 200,473 warrants to subscribe for an equivalent number of ordinary shares in the Company at
an exercise price of £51 545 The fair value of the warrants at the date of 1ssue was determined to be
£13 72 per warrant and £2,750,000 in total, according to the Black-Scholes methodology

The warrants vest in 20 0% increments based upon the next five hospitals opening duning the hospital
plan penod The warrants are also conditional on Mr A Parsadoust, a beneficiary of Health Trust
(Jersey), remaining with the Group at the time of each hospital opening  Again, the warrants lapse if the
Company 1s sold and if there is a change of control, the outstanding warrants will immediately vest
Haowever vesting 1s unaffacted f the company 1s isted
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13 Capital contributions (continued)

Movements in the number of warrants outstanding and their related weighted average exercise prices
are as follows

2010 2010 2009 2009

Average Average

Warrants exercise price Warrants exerclse price

{actual) (£ per share) (actual) {€ per share)

At 1 January 468,153 £51.55 267,680 £59 67
Granted - - 200,473 £51 55
Modification - - - £5155
At 31 December 468,153 £51 55 468,153 £51 55
——————  — - — - ——— & _—

There were no new wairant 1ssues qualifying as share-based payments dunng 2010 (2009 200,473
rssued warrants) The capital contribution recognised for the year to 31 December 2010 m respect of
previously rssued shars-based payments was £3,354,000 {2009 £4,169,000) No warrants were
exercised in 2010 (2009 nl) Of the 468,153 outstanding warrants (2009 468,153), only 212,971
were exermsable (2009 105,957 warrants)  All the outstanding warrants have an exercise price of
£51 545 The warrants 1ssued to Health Trust (Jersey) do not have an expiry date

The warrants 1ssued have been valued according to the Black-Scholes option pnaing methodology on
a diluted prnicing basis, based on the nputs bslow and the relevant share price at the ame of 1ssue
These were valued at the time of the warrant issue, or modification where appropnate, and are
debrted to fixed asset investments as capital contnbutions (note 5} with the credit being recognised in
the warrant reserve over the warrant vesting period The weighted average far value of warrants
granted was £33 18 (2009 £33 18)

The 267,680 warrants 15sued dunng 2008 were modified on 27 November 2009 due to the ongmnal
exercise price being "under water' following a fall in the Company's share price The exercise price for
the warrants was changed from £359 67 to £51 545, which had no effect on the onginally determmed
falr value of the warrants The fair value of the modified warrants was also determined using the Black
Schaoles valuation model, again using the same inputs as listed above
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14 Related party transactions

Duning the year, the Company entered into transactions, n the ordinary course of business, with other
related parties Transactions entered into and trading balances outstanding as at 31 December 2010 are
as follows

2010 2009
Amounts Amounts  Amounis Amounts
owedby owedto owedby owed to

related related related related
Note party party party party
£'000 £°000 £000 £'000
JCAM (1) a = {13,229) - (12,856}
Health Estates Managers o 90 - 77 -
Health Properties Edinburgh c 619 - 619 -
Circle Health d 42,871 {2,134} 18,138 (2,110}
Nations Healthcare e 6,340 - 3.510 -
Capita t - (72) - {50}
49,920  (15,430) 22,344  {15,016)

a JCAM

JCAM has loaned the Company £14,131,000 (2009 £14,131,000), which includes £831,000 of rolled
up interast The loan 1s repayable within four years and carnes a quarterly interest charge of 25 0% At
inception, 47,786, warrants were ssuad to JCAM at an exercise price of £53 87 and were presented
separately tn equity at an amount of £1,616,000, giving nse to a loan balance at incephon of
£11,684,000 At 31 December 2010 the loan was carned at £13,224,000 (2009 £12,856,000) and had
an effective interest rate of 30 0%, taking nio account both interest and accreton towards the
redemption amount (notes 7 and B)

b Health Estates Managers

Health Estates Managers 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of the Campany and regulated by the Jersey
Financial Services Commussion to conduct fund services business Health Estates Managers acts as a
manager to a Jersay fund, Health Estates To date, the Company has advanced loans to Health
Estates Managers of £115.000 (2009 £115,000) with an interest rate of 12 0% and was recharged
adrmtnistrative expenses of £29,000 (2009 £29,000) at cost. Interest of £18,000 has been accrued to
31 December 2010 (2009 £5,000) In 2008, debtors of £72,000 from Health Estates Managers were
fully prowided for, leaving a residual balance of £90,000 at 31 December 2010 {2009 £76,000} The
Birgctors have reviewed this balance and consider that on current cash flow forecasts, no change In
the prowision 1s required

¢ Health Properties Edinburgh

Health Properbes Edinburgh, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company has been advanced loans of
£938,000 {2009 £938,000) for the payment of interest on the JCAM {u) loan These lpans are
unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand These loans were partially provided for during 2008,
and based on current cash flow forecasts the Directors do not believe that any further provision I1s
appropriate for the remaimng bafance of £619,000 (2008 £613,000)
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14 Related party transactions (continued)
d Circle Heaith

Circle Health 1s a 50 1% owned subsidiary of Circle International, a wholly owned subsidiary
undertaking To date, the Company has advanced unsecured loans to Circle Health of £50,854,000
(2009 £30,905,000) bearng interast of 12 0% and to date has accrued nterest of £6,006,000 (2003
£1,223,000) on these loans The Company also recharged expenses of £80,000 (2009 £80,000) at
cost, dunng 2008 which have yet to be repaid Dunng 2008 £14,069,000 of the receivables from
Circle Health were provided for Based on current cash flow forecasts the Directors do not beheve
that any further prowision 1S reguived on the residual balance of £42,871,000 at 31 Cecember 2010
(2009 £18,139,000)

During the year Circle Health incurred expenses on behalf of the Company and recharged these at
cost to the value of £2,134,000 (2009 £2,110,000)

e Nahons Healthcare

The Company indirectly owns 69 2% of Nations Healthcare, via 1ts subsidianes Circle Health and
Circle Intemational

The Company directly owns £4,500,000 non-voting 20 0% preference shares in the Company which
are inciuded in fixed asset investments {note 5) The Company has accrued a total of £2,284,000
(2009 £1,384,000) on these preference shares

Ta date the Company has advanced loans of £16,055,000 (2009 £18,055,000) to Nations Healthcare
and has accrued interest of £5,568,000 (2009 £3,638,000) on these loans

Dunng 2008 all recevables from Nations Healthcare (£17,567,000) were fully prowded for Based on
current cash flow forecasts the Directors do not believe that any further prevision 1s appropriate on
the remaining residual balance receivable of £6,341,000 at 31 December 2010 (2009 £3,510,000)

f Capita Fiduciary Group Limited

A number of the current Directors who served durng the year are employed by Capita (as disclosed
in the Directors' report), a management and fiduciary services company based in Jersey In total, the
Company was charged £110,000 (2008 £8,000) by Capita for management and fiduciary services
provided to the Company dunng the year The amount outstanding at 31 December 2010 was
£72,000 (2009 £50,000) is shown in trade creditors and accruals
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14 Related party fransactions (continued)

The following are related parties by virtug of their significant shareholding The Group financial
statements provide more details

Number of % Number of warrants

shares held sharehoiding held

Balderton Capital LLP 921,938 18 5% 139,163
ING Capital LLG 100,168 2 0% -
Lansdowne Funds* 964,192 19 4% 44,387
BlueCrest Strategic Limited 417,018 84% 15,102
BlackRock Investment Managament 665,234 13 4% -

* Lansdowne UK Equity Fund Ltd, Lansdowne UK Equity Fund LP and Lansdowne UK Strategic
Investment Master Fund Lid have been coltectively called Lansdowne Funds for the purpose of
this disclosure

Other than equity transactions detalled in note 12, there have been no fransactions with these
related partes

15 Events after the batance sheet date

1 Waiver of JCAM (1) loan facilitly

The JCAM (1) (note 17) facilty was in default at year end due to {t) a cross-default trnggered by an
underlying default under the GE equipment lease above and (i1} the delivery of secunty by certain
Group companies in breach of the negative pledge in the JCAM facility agreement Dunng May
2011, the Group recewved a waiver of all events of default and breaches from JCAM The wawer s
conditional on the Group completing a raise of a specified amount of funds from external investors,
which was completed as detaled below In addibon, the repayment date of the facilily was
extended from 29 August 2012 to 28 February 2013

In May 2011 it was agreed with JCAM that if a isting of the Company on AlM does not cccur by the
end of 2011 and the Vinc loan agreement of £5,000,000 (see (x) below) 15 repaud in full out of
Group funds that JCAM will be entitled to receve a mortgage over the Manchester land from Health
Praperties (South Manchester) Limited to the extent of such Group funds

In June 2011 ¢ was further agreed with JCAM that thay will receive a potentrai prepayment of
£4,100,000 on the Tater of two business days after {i} a isting on AlM and {u) the repayment in full of
the Vinci loan agreement The £4,100,000 prepayment will be reduced by the amaount that the Vinci
loan agreement is repaid using funds fram within the Group rather than from a third party financing
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15 Events after the balance sheet date (continued)

i March 2011 equity raise, warrant repricing and shareholder restructure

Dunng March 2011, existing sharehelders committed to provide additional equity of £20,000,000 to
fund the Group OF this amount, £7,500,000 has already been recewed with a further £12,500,000
to be recewved in the event that there is no lnial Public Cffenng (PO by 31 May 2011
Furthermore, the existing nvestors were 1ssued a set of warrants to subscnbe for an additional
number of ordinary shares at nomnal value so that the subscnption pnce under the equity
commitment is adjusted to be, effectively

1) f there 1s an IPO before 31 May 2011, 90 0% of the iPQ price, and
2) no PO by 21 May 2011, £20 00

The subscription agreement and the warrant nstrument were subsequently amended {(see (v
below) Health Trust (Jersey) underigok, as part of the same transaction, to transfer 3 0% of the
fully diluted number of shares in the Company to certain existing shareholders in return for a 6 0%
holding n the Circle Partnership A further consequence of the additional equity funding by the
existing investors is that all outstanding share warrants, priced at ether £51 55 or £29 84 {note 12},
are repriced to £20 00 or the pnce of the IPO, if it occurs prior to 31 May 2011

iii Change of name and tax status

On 13 May 2011, the Directors passed a resolution changing the Company's name from Health
investment Holdings Limited to Circle Holdings plc This came nto effect as of 16 May 2011 In
addition, on 17 May 2011, a resolubion was passed to bring the Directors onshore, thus changing
the tax residency of the Company from Jersey to the UK.

iv Authorised preference share capital

On 1 June 2011, the sharsholders passed a resolution adopting new Asticles of Assaciation ahead
of Admission  These artlcles, among ather items, reclassified the share capital of the Company into
a single class of ordinary shares, theraby eliminating the previously authorised preference shares
However, if Admission does not occur by 30 September 2011, the ordinary shares Issued in
November 2010 (and the warrant shares 1ssuable pursuant to the warrant instrument from the same
transaction} will convert into preference shares

v May 2011 equity raise, warrant repnicing and shareholder

In May 2011, agresment was reached with Odey European Inc and BlueCrest Venture Finance
Master Fund Limited to provide equity of £15,000,000 and £5,000,000 respectively prior to the IPQ
in order to provide further funding for the business over the next 18 months The subscription price
was £11 15 per share, however warrants were aiso issued which are exercisable at nominal value
nte the number of warrant shares equal to 30 0% and 10 0%, respectively, of the warrants issued
pursuant to the November 2010 and March 2011 warrant instrument In addition, Health Trust
(Jersey) will recerve an additional 4 0% of the equity in Circle Partnership It was further agreed that
the IPO complehon date of 31 May 2011, as contemplated in (v} above, would be extended to 30
June 2011, and that the effective subscription price of the March 2011 eguity commiiment in
scenario 2 of (v} above would be reduced to £8 72
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15 Events after the balance sheet date (continued)

vi Intention to float on Allernative Investment Markat

On 25 May 2011, the Company announced is intention to list on the Alternative Investmant Market,
a market operated by the Londan Stock Exchangg ple  Thes intention forms part of the Company's
overall fundralsing strategy

wvii Contingent funding arrangement

On 13 June 2011, some of the existing shareholders (BlackRock Investment Management (UK}
Limited, the Lansdowne funds (note 20) and BlueCrest Venturs Finance Master Fund Lmmted)
agreed to subscribe for addiional ardinary shares 10 the Company al a total subscription arice of up
to £2,460,000 on 27 June 2012 {or such other date as they agree with the Company) at a price per
erdinary share that is 80 0% of the cloging price of the crdinary shares on 19 June 2012, subject to
& mintmum price per ordinary share of £0 90, provided that certain capital raisings or refinancings
have not occurred by 20 June 2012
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CIRCLE HOLDINGS (UK) PLC
has this day been registered under the Companies Act 2006 as having

established a UK Establishment in the United Kingdom
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